




































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 60 Romero Elementary 

 
School Year:    2023-24     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Romero Elementary         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

24736196025746         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

April 24, 2023         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
The purpose of the SPSA is to increase the overall effectiveness of the school program by crafting a 
strategic plan that maximizes the resources available to the school while minimizing duplication of 
effort with the ultimate goal of increasing student achievement. The School Site Council (SSC) is 
required to develop and annually review the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make 
modifications in the plan to reflect changing needs and priorities, as applicable, pursuant to EC 
52853(b) and 52855. California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the 
utilization of federal resources in support of underserved student groups. The SPSA provides 
schools with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal 
investments in support of underserved students. The implementation of ESSA in California presents 
an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded programs and align them with the 
priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and 
provide services that meet the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, 
and lifelong learning. The SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, 
and improvement.         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Purpose and Description ...................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................4 

Data Analysis ............................................................................................................................................4 

Surveys .....................................................................................................................................................4 

Classroom Observations ...........................................................................................................................4 

Analysis of Current Instructional Program .................................................................................................4 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................7 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................8 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................9 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................9 

CAASPP Results .....................................................................................................................................11 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................15 

Student Population ..................................................................................................................................18 

Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................20 

Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................22 

Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................27 

Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................29 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................31 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................31 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................42 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................47 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................51 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................51 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................51 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................52 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................52 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................52 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................52 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................52 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................53 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................54 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................55 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .............................................................................................................56 

Appendix B: .............................................................................................................................................59 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 60 Romero Elementary 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s). 
A formal comprehensive needs assessment was sent out to parents in March of 2023.  The survey 
data showed the following: 
Parents were able to meet with teachers when needed. 
Teachers were meeting the needs of the students. 
Parents wanted more events for parents to attend with students on campus (ex. Father-Daughter 
Dances). 
Parents would like to have opportunities to attend classes available for them with parenting, literacy, 
and how to help their children with homework. Parents would like to see after-school help for 
students. 
During the year, parents provide input at monthly Coffee with the Principal visits. Quarterly, parents 
and teachers provide input at School Site Council and ELAC meetings. 
         
 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during 
the school-year and a summary of findings. 
Informal classroom walk-throughs occur weekly in all classrooms and across subjects.   New 
teachers are assessed a minimum of three times a year until they reach tenure recommendation 
status.  Once a teacher is tenured, he/she will receive evaluations every other year until reaching 
year ten.  Teachers who have completed ten years of service and received satisfactory status, 
receive a minimum of two formal evaluations a year every five years, unless there is a reason that 
would incline the evaluator to evaluate sooner.  Teachers at Romero Elementary are meeting the 
satisfactory or exceeding the requirements as set forth by the district.         
 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these 
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional 
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on 
verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the 
status of these findings and note progress made.  Special consideration should be given to any 
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical 
programs. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
At Romero, we utilize state data in order to analyze students grade level abilities in both math and 
language arts. Teachers review and use data to formulate intervention groups, plan strategic 
instruction, and move students toward proficiency levels. This data allows teachers to focus their 
plans around claims and targets which guides their year long instruction. 
 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction 
(EPC) 
At Romero our teachers utilize common formative assessments to ensure that their students are 
accessing curriculum and meeting the expectations of the integrated CCSS units being taught. 
Students are assessed at the close of each unit through an assessment which provides teachers, as 
well as district administration, with data in each of the CCSS claims, allowing for guidance in 
following up on action and instruction. 
 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
Romero Elementary staff are all highly qualified. 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional 
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
All Romero teachers are credentialed and attend yearly professional development on a number of 
different topics.  All teachers have been trained and have continued training on all adopted 
instructional materials.  K-3 grade teachers have completed year one of the LETRS program, based 
in the Science of Reading. 
 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional 
needs (ESEA) 
Staff receive professional development during staff meetings, and the district is provides district wide 
professional development and site professional development. Teachers also attend ongoing 
professional development throughout the year. GUSD provides an Elementary Instructional Coach 
to the site. The Instructional Coach provides training for teachers, as well as helping teachers with 
looking at data to drive instruction. 
 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional 
coaches) (EPC) 
The District Instructional Coach for elementary assists teachers in planning and delivering engaging 
instruction as well as helping with classroom management issues and providing professional 
development. Romero staff also has access to a Reading Intervention teacher, a school counselor, a 
school psychologist, as well as a speech pathologist. 
 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades 
nine through twelve) (EPC) 
Teachers collaborate weekly at PLC meetings.  Instructional strategies, data and best practices are 
shared among teachers and grade levels.  These conversations lead teachers to make impactful, 
data driven changes to improve student achievement. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 60 Romero Elementary 

 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
All curriculum material is adopted by the district and is Common Core aligned. This is an integral 
practice of Romero Elementary. 

 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) 
(EPC) 
Romero Elementary follows the guidelines and is compliant with instructional minutes in ELA and 
math.  Teachers are given a master schedule at the beginning of the year by the principal. The 
master schedule outlines the instructional minutes to be spent on core areas, as well as ELD and 
reading intervention, and any programs needed to meet the needs of students designated a part of a 
statistically significant subgroup. 
 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention 
courses (EPC) 
During PLC time teachers have created pacing calendars to ensure all essential standards are 
covered throughout the school year.  The master schedule has time built into it for interventions.  
Currently, Romero has a time built-in when the intervention teacher and the aide push into the 
classroom to assist students in mastering the essential standards.  A special Power Hour focusing 
on reading intervention is set up to help students with their specific needs. 
 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
All students and teachers have availability of the standards based curriculum adopted by the district. 

 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, 
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Standards-based curriculum is used for math, ELA, history, science and an ELD curriculum is being 
piloted.  Eureka Math is adopted by the district and aligned to the standards.  Benchmark is adopted 
by the district and aligned to the standards.  Social Studies Weekly has been adopted by the district 
and is aligned to the standards.   TWIG science is adopted which is aligned with NGSS standards. 
 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Romero Elementary students are provided with immediate help in the tier 1 program which is built 
into the regular program. Students are also given time for intervention, language development, 
literacy instruction and intervention, as well as other supports. 
 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
Students not on grade level in reading receive researched based small group instruction.  The 
intervention teacher and intervention aide both push in to classrooms to assist students.  Grade level 
PLC teams meet weekly to discuss data results on students. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students 
(ESEA) 
Parents have access to a variety of help from both the school and district in terms of supports.  
Parenting classes, education presentations and  education nights are available for parents of 
Romero and the district. 
 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and 
students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs 
(5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
Parents are provided the opportunity to give input on use of funds and implementation of programs 
in a variety of ways. ELAC and School Site Council allows parents to discuss these matters directly 
with teachers, community members, and admin. Parents also contribute their input through annual 
parent surveys as well as a district LCAP survey. 
 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Categorical funding provides our site with several educational professionals, dedicated to ensuring 
that under-performing students meet standards. A full-time intervention teacher and aide see small 
groups of students throughout the day, providing reading interventions.  Our instructional coach 
provides teachers with instructional strategies to ensure that all students have access to the core 
curriculum.  Kindergarten has an intervention aide that assists under-performing students in the 
classroom. 
 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Ongoing assessment of funds is necessary to ensure we are always allocating funds where 
necessary to support student need. Should it be programs or intervention teachers, careful attention 
is placed to funding and to ensuring equitable access is given to all.  The school is funded by Title I 
funds, LCFF, Lottery unrestricted and Lottery restricted. 
 
Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA was reviewed during SSC and ELAC meetings in the 2022-23 school year. At the 
February meeting, stakeholders participated in discussion, suggestions and possible modifications 
to the 2023-24 SPSA. During the April SSC and ELAC meetings, stakeholders viewed the proposed 
goals for the 2023-2024 SPSA and made suggestions.  Discussion/suggestions were included in the 
minutes and then included in the goals/actions for the 2023-2024 SPSA.  SSC council approved the 
SPSA at the April meeting.         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
N/A         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        47 24 26 

Grade 1        27 46 31 

Grade 2        42 27 47 

Grade3        30 44 25 

Grade 4        53 28 36 

Grade 5        37 53 25 

Total Enrollment        236 222 190 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The total enrollment of the school has declined over the last two years.        

2. The kindergarten class sizes have decreases the last two years.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners        112 111 91 47.50% 50.0% 47.9% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        42 36 30 17.80% 16.2% 15.8% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        9   8.0%   
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of EL students decreased significantly.        

2. The Fluent English Proficient percentages have been decreasing over the last three years.        

3. Data for RFEP students is not shown at this time.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 31 43  0 43  0 43  0.0 100.0  

Grade 4 52 28  0 28  0 28  0.0 100.0  

Grade 5 33 55  0 55  0 55  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 116 126  0 126  0 126  0.0 100.0  
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
 
 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  2338.
6 

  6.98   11.63   23.26   58.14  

Grade 4  2464.
6 

  25.00   14.29   42.86   17.86  

Grade 5  2466.
4 

  18.18   25.45   14.55   41.82  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  15.87   18.25   23.81   42.06  
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  9.30   48.84   41.86  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  12.73   61.82   25.45  

All Grades  13.49   57.94   28.57  
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  4.65   30.23   65.12  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  9.09   50.91   40.00  

All Grades  8.73   44.44   46.83  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  6.98   55.81   37.21  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  7.27   69.09   23.64  

All Grades  8.73   66.67   24.60  
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2.33   51.16   46.51  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  20.00   54.55   25.45  

All Grades  14.29   55.56   30.16  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall percentage of students who met or exceeded in reading is 34%.        

2. 46% of students are below standard in writing, showing a need to focus on writing.        

3. 100% of students are being tested at Romero.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 31 43  0 43  0 43  0.0 100.0  

Grade 4 52 28  0 28  0 28  0.0 100.0  

Grade 5 33 55  0 55  0 55  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 116 126  0 126  0 126  0.0 100.0  

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
  

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  2355.
3 

  4.65   11.63   23.26   60.47  

Grade 4  2472.
2 

  28.57   21.43   21.43   28.57  

Grade 5  2447.
6 

  10.91   12.73   25.45   50.91  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  12.70   14.29   23.81   49.21  
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  11.63   25.58   62.79  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  12.73   47.27   40.00  

All Grades  17.46   37.30   45.24  
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  2.33   39.53   58.14  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  3.64   43.64   52.73  

All Grades  7.94   43.65   48.41  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  6.98   55.81   37.21  

Grade 4  *   *   *  

Grade 5  12.73   47.27   40.00  

All Grades  15.87   46.03   38.10  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall math achievement is at 27% meeting or exceeding standards.        

2. Fourth grade had 50%  of students meet or exceed standard in math.   Based on this data the PLC process is 
working and modeled for other teams.        

3. 100% of students enrolled were tested.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    1429.1 1405.0  1447.7 1413.9  1385.6 1384.1  27 16  

   1    1448.4 1430.9  1464.9 1444.7  1431.4 1416.4  16 21  

   2    1456.1 1462.7  1473.7 1466.8  1438.0 1457.9  24 16  

   3    1491.3 1468.1  1504.9 1477.0  1477.1 1458.9  12 24  

   4    1457.8 1534.6  1467.9 1523.4  1447.1 1545.2  17 12  

   5    1515.0 1513.9  1515.6 1515.1  1513.8 1512.4  16 20  

All Grades                 112 109  
 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    18.52 6.25  37.04 18.75  33.33 62.50  11.11 12.50  27 16  

   1    12.50 0.00  25.00 19.05  37.50 61.90  25.00 19.05  16 21  

   2    0.00 0.00  33.33 37.50  50.00 50.00  16.67 12.50  24 16  

   3    0.00 4.17  50.00 20.83  50.00 41.67  0.00 33.33  12 24  

   4    0.00 25.00  23.53 66.67  41.18 8.33  35.29 0.00  17 12  

   5    6.25 20.00  37.50 30.00  43.75 30.00  12.50 20.00  16 20  

All Grades        7.14 8.26  33.93 29.36  41.96 44.04  16.96 18.35  112 109  
 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    29.63 6.25  48.15 18.75  11.11 50.00  11.11 25.00  27 16  

   1    31.25 0.00  25.00 52.38  37.50 33.33  6.25 14.29  16 21  

   2    16.67 18.75  54.17 43.75  20.83 31.25  8.33 6.25  24 16  

   3    41.67 16.67  41.67 33.33  16.67 33.33  0.00 16.67  12 24  

   4    35.29 41.67  23.53 50.00  17.65 8.33  23.53 0.00  17 12  

   5    37.50 40.00  56.25 40.00  0.00 10.00  6.25 10.00  16 20  

All Grades        30.36 19.27  42.86 39.45  16.96 28.44  9.82 12.84  112 109  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    3.70 0.00  33.33 18.75  48.15 68.75  14.81 12.50  27 16  

   1    6.25 0.00  25.00 9.52  12.50 38.10  56.25 52.38  16 21  

   2    4.17 0.00  16.67 18.75  33.33 56.25  45.83 25.00  24 16  

   3    0.00 0.00  25.00 4.17  41.67 41.67  33.33 54.17  12 24  

   4    0.00 8.33  5.88 58.33  23.53 33.33  70.59 0.00  17 12  

   5    0.00 10.00  25.00 15.00  50.00 35.00  25.00 40.00  16 20  

All Grades        2.68 2.75  22.32 17.43  35.71 44.95  39.29 34.86  112 109  
 

Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    22.22 12.50  70.37 56.25  7.41 31.25  27 16  

   1    50.00 42.86  43.75 52.38  6.25 4.76  16 21  

   2    33.33 18.75  54.17 75.00  12.50 6.25  24 16  

   3    41.67 33.33  50.00 50.00  8.33 16.67  12 24  

   4    35.29 83.33  29.41 16.67  35.29 0.00  17 12  

   5    12.50 35.00  81.25 55.00  6.25 10.00  16 20  

All Grades        31.25 35.78  56.25 52.29  12.50 11.93  112 109  
 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    22.22 6.25  59.26 87.50  18.52 6.25  27 16  

   1    13.33 0.00  80.00 76.19  6.67 23.81  15 21  

   2    8.33 18.75  83.33 75.00  8.33 6.25  24 16  

   3    58.33 16.67  41.67 62.50  0.00 20.83  12 24  

   4    29.41 8.33  52.94 83.33  17.65 8.33  17 12  

   5    87.50 60.00  6.25 30.00  6.25 10.00  16 20  

All Grades        32.43 19.27  56.76 66.97  10.81 13.76  111 109  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    0.00 6.25  88.89 68.75  11.11 25.00  27 16  

   1    25.00 9.52  18.75 38.10  56.25 52.38  16 21  

   2    4.17 0.00  58.33 68.75  37.50 31.25  24 16  

   3    0.00 0.00  41.67 20.83  58.33 79.17  12 24  

   4    0.00 25.00  29.41 75.00  70.59 0.00  17 12  

   5    0.00 10.00  62.50 50.00  37.50 40.00  16 20  

All Grades        4.46 7.34  54.46 49.54  41.07 43.12  112 109  
 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    29.63 12.50  40.74 62.50  29.63 25.00  27 16  

   1    6.67 0.00  46.67 61.90  46.67 38.10  15 21  

   2    0.00 12.50  54.17 68.75  45.83 18.75  24 16  

   3    16.67 4.17  58.33 66.67  25.00 29.17  12 24  

   4    0.00 16.67  58.82 83.33  41.18 0.00  17 12  

   5    0.00 30.00  75.00 45.00  25.00 25.00  16 20  

All Grades        9.91 11.93  54.05 63.30  36.04 24.77  111 109  
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall scores dropped in the 20-21 school year.        

2. The well developed section grew for the reading and listening sections.        

3. Writing scores are the lowest of all the sections.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
For the past two years, many state and federal accountability requirements were waived or adjusted due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on LEAs, schools, and students. Beginning with the 2021-22 school year, the requirements to hold 
schools and districts accountable for student outcomes has returned with the release of the 2022 California School 
Dashboard (Dashboard). The Every Student Succeeds Act is requiring all states to determine schools eligible for support. 
Similarly, under state law, Assembly Bill (AB) 130, which was signed into law in 2021, mandates the return of the Dashboard 
using only current year performance data to determine LEAs for support. Therefore, to meet this state requirement, only the 
2021-22 school year data will be reported on the 2022 Dashboard for state indicators. (Data for Change [or the difference 
from prior year] and performance colors will not be reported.) 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2021-22 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

222         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Romero Elementary. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

83.3         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

50.0         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2021-22 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         111 50.0 

Foster Youth           

Homeless         9 4.1 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         185 83.3 

Students with Disabilities         33 14.9 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American         1 0.5 

American Indian         1 0.5 

Asian         1 0.5 

Filipino         1 0.5 

Hispanic         203 91.4 

Two or More Races         3 1.4 

Pacific Islander           

White         11 5.0 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The student group of socioeconomically disadvantaged has the highest percentage of all student groups and 4% of 

student are considered homeless.         
2. The largest student population by race/ethnicity is Hispanic. The lowest race/ethnicity percentage is Asian, African 

American and American Indian.         
3. Based on the data, more support should be provided to the socioeconomically disadvantaged and English Learner 

student populations.         
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2022 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Low        

Mathematics 

 
Low        

English Learner Progress 

 
Low        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Very High        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Very Low        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups performed at the very high for chronic absenteeism.        

2. All student groups performed at the low level in ELA and Math.        

3. Based on the data, extra support needs to be provided during mathematics, ELA and chronic absenteeism.        

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 60 Romero Elementary 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
3        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

45.8 points below standard        
116 Students        

English Learners 

 
Low         

50.5 points below standard         
73 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Low         

53.3 points below standard         
105 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         

116.6 points below standard         
19 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 60 Romero Elementary 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Low         

47.4 points below standard         
105 Students        

Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

92.9 points below standard         

50 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

41.6 points above standard         

23 Students        

English Only 

49.4 points below standard         

38 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Romero Elementary students overall are 45.8 points below standard in ELA.        

2. Current English Learners are behind other groups and 92.9 points below standard.        

3. Reclassified students are out performing all other groups with a score of 41.6 points above standard.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathamtics Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
3        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

62.0 points below standard         
116 Students        

English Learners 

 
Low         

59.8 points below standard         
73 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Low         

71.9 points below standard         
105 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         

123.4 points below standard         
19 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 60 Romero Elementary 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Hispanic 

 
Low         

63.4 points below standard         
105 Students        

Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

93.4 points below standard         
50 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

13.4 points above standard         
23 Students        

English Only 

79.5 points below standard         
38 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The dashboard shows that all students and sub groups performed in the low range.        

2. Reclassified learners scored 13.4 points above standard, scoring high than all other sub groups.        

3. Based on the data, we need to focus on math instruction for all groups.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
This section provides information on the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language 
proficiency or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
Low         

38.2 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 89 Students          
Performance Level: 2        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

28.1%         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

33.7%         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

1.1%         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

37.1%         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Romero English learner progress scored low with 38.2% are making progress towards English language proficiency.        

2. 28.1% of English learners decreased one ELPI level.        

3. We need to improve EL instruction.  We have begun piloting a program for ELD.        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Very High        
4        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very High         

38.2% Chronically Absent         
233 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very High         

32.5% Chronically Absent         
117 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

58.3% Chronically Absent         
12 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very High         

39.2% Chronically Absent         
194 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very High         

35.7% Chronically Absent         
42 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 60 Romero Elementary 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Very High         

39.6% Chronically Absent         
212 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

9.1% Chronically Absent         
11 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups percentages were in the very high level.        

2. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students have the highest percentage of chronically absent.        

3. Based on the data students are attending and we need to continue working with parents on attendance.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Very High        
0        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
4        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
242 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
119 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

0% suspended at least one day         
12 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
202 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
43 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 60 Romero Elementary 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

219 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

6 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

11 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All student groups are in the very low level with 0%.        

2. Continue with PBIS on campus.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Academic Achievement          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college and career ready 
by providing opportunities for access to a broad course of study, academic counseling and intervention supports, 
technology and research based curriculum, provided by a high quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local 
data.         

 

Goal 1 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college 
and career ready by providing opportunities for access to a broad course of study, academic 
counseling and intervention supports, technology and research based curriculum, provided by a high 
quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local data.          

 
Identified Need 
ELA -All students scored 45.8 points below standard on the CAASPP.  Math –All students 62 points 
below standard on CAASPP.  All data based on 2021-22 testing year.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

SBAC, I-Ready, ELPAC         On the District ELA Benchmark 
3 Assessment (I-Ready) given 
in May 2022, 38% of all 
students scored on grade level.  
Decrease of 2% from May 
2021. 
22% of English Learners 
scored on Grade level on the I 
Ready ELA Benchmark 3. 
Decrease of 4% from May 
2021. 
 
SBAC data from the 18-19 
school year.  SBAC ELA –31% 
of all 3-5 grade students met or 
exceeded standards.4% of 
English Learners met or 
exceeded standards.  English 
Learners' reclassification rate 
increased by 0%, as reported 
by the state. The percentage of 
ELs attaining English 
proficiency as measured by 
ELPAC; 39% proficient.  All 

 I Ready ELA scores will 
increase to 50% of all the 
students will be at grade level 
by May 2023. 
Increase English Learners on 
grade level in ELA to 40% by 
May 2023. 
 
SBAC ELA –40% of all 3-5 
grade students will meet or 
exceed standards. 17% of 
English Learners will meet or 
exceed standards. Increase in 
current English Learners 
reclassification rate by 5% as 
reported by the state. Increase 
the percentage of EL’s 
attaining English proficiency by 
5% as measured by ELPAC.  
All students have access to 
District-adopted Common Core 
instructional materials as 
measured by the Williams 
Report.  All students will be 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

students were provided access 
to District adopted Common 
Core instructional materials.  
All students were instructed in 
Common Core curriculum in all 
core subjects as measured by 
lesson plans and observations.  
All students had access to a 
broad course of study, 
including ELA, Math, Science, 
Social Studies, Arts, PE, and 
ELD as appropriate. 
 
SBAC data from the 2021-22 
school year.  SBAC ELA –34% 
of all 3-5 grade students met or 
exceeded standards.13% of 
English Learners met or 
exceeded standards. The 
percentage of ELs attaining 
English proficiency as 
measured by ELPAC; 8.26% 
scored a level 4 well 
developed.  All students were 
provided access to District 
adopted Common Core 
instructional materials.  All 
students were instructed in 
Common Core curriculum in all 
core subjects as measured by 
lesson plans and observations.  
All students had access to a 
broad course of study, 
including ELA, Math, Science, 
Social Studies, Arts, PE, and 
ELD, as appropriate. 
 
On the District Math 
Benchmark assessment given 
in May 2022, 35% of students 
scored on grade level. Increase 
of 7% over May 2021. 
21% of English Learners 
scored on Grade level on the I 
Ready Math Benchmark 3. 
 
SBAC data from the 18-19 
school year. SBAC Math –22% 
of all 3-5 students met or 
exceeded standards 4% of 

instructed in Common Core 
curriculum in all core subjects 
as measured by lesson plans 
and observations. On the 
District ELA Benchmark 
Assessment (iReady) 62% of 
students will score proficient or 
above on the district ELA 
Benchmark assessment. 
 
I Ready Math scores will 
increase to 50% of all students 
will be on grade level by May 
2023. 
Increase English Learners on 
grade level in Math to 40% by 
May 2023. 
 
 
SBAC Math –35% of all 3-5 
students will meet or exceed 
standard. 18% of English 
Learners will meet or exceed 
standards. All students have 
access to District-adopted 
Common Core instructional 
materials. All students will be 
instructed in Common Core 
curriculum in all core subjects 
as measured by lesson plans 
and observations. All students 
will have access to a broad 
course of study including ELA, 
Math, Science, Social Studies, 
Arts, PE, and ELD as 
appropriate. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

English Learners met or 
exceeded the standard, which 
is a 25 increase. The 
reclassification rate increased 
by 0%, as reported by the 
state.  All students had access 
to the district-adopted Common 
Core instructional materials.  
All students were instructed in 
Common Core curriculum in all 
core subjects as measured by 
lesson plans and observations. 
All students had access to a 
broad course of study, 
including ELA, Math, Science, 
Social Studies, Arts, PE, and 
ELD, as appropriate. 
 
SBAC data from the 2021-22 
school year. SBAC Math –27% 
of all 3-5 students met or 
exceeded standards. 13% of 
English Learners met or 
exceeded the standard. All 
students had access to the 
district-adopted Common Core 
instructional materials.  All 
students were instructed in 
Common Core curriculum in all 
core subjects as measured by 
lesson plans and observations. 
All students had access to a 
broad course of study, 
including ELA, Math, Science, 
Social Studies, Arts, PE, and 
ELD, as appropriate. 
 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Continue to fund an additional teacher and aides to support lower performing students in phonemic 
awareness, reading fluency, and comprehension through best practices and the use of push-in 
model for assistance of students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
64,108         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
65% R. Johnson - 102 

32,270         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
35% R. Johnson 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase licenses for reading program, SDC curriculum, SEL curriculum, student supplies and 
copier costs.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
7500         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
102 - Academy Supplies $1000.00 
101 - Instructional Materials - $5500.00 
106 - Agenda and Planners $1000.00 
 

5000         Unrestricted 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

2000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
SEL Curriculum, Supplemental materials 

15000         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Copier Leases 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Through PLC collaboration, teachers will discuss and purchase supplemental materials to 
support/enhance ELA and Math programs.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to fund a library clerk will work with students and teacher to increase literacy.  By 
providing assistance in finding the correct leveled books for students and find books that interest 
the student to increase reading.  Purchase high interest books for students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10858         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
100% Miske - 107 

500         Unrestricted 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Library Books 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 60 Romero Elementary 

All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to provide meaningful professional development to increase student mastery of ELA, 
Writing, Science, Technology and math essential standards based on testing data.  Training on 
new programs and curriculum.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0000         None Specified 

None Specified 
 

12100         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Conferences (10,000), Mileage (500), subs 
(1600) - 104 

3000         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Training 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to fund Intervention aides for additional support to students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
16700         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
L. Miske - 102 

26000         Title I 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
G. Olivera 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Licenses for EL related programs, supplies and copier costs.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2500         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

1500         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
108 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to fund an instructional coach to assist teachers with instruction, planning and strategies 
to increase student achievement.  Academic celebration awards for student success.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
28117         Title I 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
D. Torres 

1000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
117 - Academic awards 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 60 Romero Elementary 

All students grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Create an after school Essential Standards academy for students who have not met specific 
essential standards in ELA (4 weeks) and Math (4 Weeks).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Teacher hourly rate - 102 

500         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies for academy - 102 

600         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Homework Night Supplies 

1800         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Teacher Hourly Rate 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Language Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide an ELD coordinator to support English learners in achieving language as well as academic 
standards.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
R. Johnson -108 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 60 Romero Elementary 

All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will continue to meet in weekly PLC and grade level collaboration day or instructional 
rounds (with substitute) to disaggregate data as it pertains to student needs and student success.  
Data will drive instruction.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Sub Costs - 103 

         None Specified 
None Specified 
 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase technology devices, such as laptops/Chromebook, headphones, and monitors to 
enhance instruction.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
23000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
110 - Technology (4400) $22000 
Tech Supplies (4300) $1000 
 
 

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 60 Romero Elementary 

 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide enrichment opportunities related to STEAM, Visual & Performing Arts and Educational 
Fieldtrips.  Also, academic enrichment assemblies.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5600         LCFF 

None Specified 
105 - Professional Services - Experimental 
Learning 
Admission (5805) /Transportation (3600) 
 

1500         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Academic Assemblies 

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Increase a positive learning environment and create opportunities for collaboration by purchasing 
furniture to provide flexible seating.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
112 - Flexible Seating/Classroom Environment 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 60 Romero Elementary 

ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The intervention teacher will monitor, assess non-proficient students in all grades with Benchmark 
assessment and I-Ready, then place students in appropriate intervention groups based on student 
need. The intervention teacher will organize and teach intervention groups as well as assist 
teachers in classroom UA instruction delivery. The intervention teacher will monitor and evaluate 
student progress and report to the Principal and classroom teachers. All groups will be fluid as 
students progress, they will move through the levels of intervention as needed. 
Students in grades 3-5 struggle with mastering mathematical concepts. Updated Eureka Math 
materials and manipulatives will be provided to support students who are not at proficiency levels. 
Teachers will assess student math skills as needed to ensure students master the foundational 
skills. The intervention teacher will provide intervention focusing on foundational skills. 
        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Some money was left over for the family nights and trainings.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
In reviewing the California School Dashboard and after consulting with stakeholders. To support 
growth in ELA with our ELs and our Special Needs population, we will implement a multi-tiered 
intervention program (RTI) to support students. The multi-tiered intervention will be taught by the 
classroom and an intervention teacher and will be on a six-week rotation. The intervention teacher 
and intervention aid will now push into the classroom to assist students. Data will be gathered from 
teacher observation, foundation skill test (will replace DIEBLES/SRI test), and I-Ready will be used 
to move students into intervention areas needed. The teachers will use a variety of curriculum 
appropriate for the students' needs based on the data. ALL teachers will provide ALL students with 
CORE/Benchmark curriculum within the classroom. The site will continue to support three 
Instructional Lead Teachers who will work with PLC teams to identify students who need additional 
support.  It will now be in grades 3-5 to support students in ELA and math. Family Nights will be 
provided throughout the year to support school-to-home in ELA and Math.  In reviewing the 
California School Dashboard, new actions have been added to the 2024 SPSA. To support growth 
in Math, we will implement a multi-tiered intervention program to support students. We will provide 
“family” nights to support the school-to-home collaboration. The expected outcome with the 
implementation of the changes is for students to maintain their status and/or to increase by 5.0 
points        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Positive School Climate and Culture          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe facilities, student 
support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra and co-curricular activities as 
measured by state and local data.         

 

Goal 2 
GUSD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe 
facilities, student support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra 
and co-curricular activities as measured by state and local data.          

 
Identified Need 
In an effort to address areas of need identified with ATSI RES will Improve student attendance for 
students with disabilities( 35.7%). 
Need to reduce chronic absenteeism for all students (38.2%) 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

FIT Report, CA Dashboard         Fit report score for the 2021 
school year was 98.6 overall 
good. 
Fit report score for the 2022 
school year increased by .59% 
to 99.19%. 
CA Dashboard 2019 3.4% 
suspension rate and 10.8% 
chronically absent. 
CA Dashboard 2022 0% 
suspension rate and 38.2% 
Chronically absent. 
 

 Keep suspension rate at 0%  
and reduce chronically absent 
to 10% on CA Dashboard 
2023. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Strategy/Activity 
Fund a full-time school counselor to help students with their social emotional needs thus increasing 
student achievement, decreasing suspension and chronically absenteeism. PBIS retraining and full 
implementation of all 3 Tiers.(Also, in goal 1) Funded through district LCFF.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0         LCFF - Supplemental 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
DD2 202 Moua    District Funded 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to pay a Stipend for the Teacher in Charge, when needed.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
750         LCFF 

None Specified 
205 - Teacher in Charge 

0000         None Specified 
None Specified 
 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Resume training staff on PBIS and SEL.  Student presentations to support SEL, anti-bullying, 
leadership and positive school culture and climate.  Student leadership group to increase positive 
culture and climate.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 60 Romero Elementary 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
6958         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
204  - Assemblies and guest speakers 

2000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
204 - Leadership Group 

2400         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
204 - Conferences 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
The PBIS team will continue to provide Tier 1, 2, 3 behavior supports and interventions.  PBIS team 
and administration will attend trainings and conference related to safety, positive student discipline 
and attendance.  Provide student incentives for positive school climate and attendance.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
206 - PBIS Training, or other conferences 

5000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
206 - PBIS incentives, attendance incentives, 
supplies and food. 

2500         Unrestricted 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
PBIS incentives, attendance incentives, supplies 
and food. 

Strategy/Activity 5 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Increase communication and maintenance to ensure a safe school environment.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
201 - School Facilities Equipment ($4000) 
205 - Radios, ear pieces and safety equipment 
($1000) 
 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
In an effort to address areas of need identified with ATSI RES will Improve student attendance for 
students with disabilities( 35.7%). 
Need to reduce chronic absenteeism for all students (38.2%) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students with disabilities will receive monthly postcards notifying them of how many absences they 
have and the importance of being at school.  Since many absences are due to medical issues or 
illness, the health aide will follow up monthly to see if we can support the student and families with 
any medical issues. 
Positive attendance rewards and recognition (monthly).  Attendance meetings with students, 
parents, and teachers, letters sent home, daily phone calls, emails, and Parent Square. 
Conferences to learn new techniques for attendance. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2500         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
207 

6000         LCFF 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 60 Romero Elementary 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
207 -CASCWA Conference or other 
conferences 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Increase counseling services and referrals to help students with their SEL needs.  Reduce 
discipline with SEL and PBIS.  We will be able to track the number of students counselor sees and 
look at discipline/suspensions.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
PBIS training was done at the school by our counselor reducing training costs.  Less money was 
spent on food than anticipated.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Added funds for increased school safety and chronic absenteeism for student with disabilities.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Family, and Community Partnerships          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will create partnerships with parents, families, and the community to provide meaningful opportunities that will 
build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as well as celebrate student learning. 
 
         

 

Goal 3 
GUSD will create partnerships with parents, families and the community to provide meaningful 
opportunities that will build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as 
well as celebrate student learning. 
 
          

 
Identified Need 
Needs assessment data shows parents want more opportunities to participate in their child's 
education by attending event and workshops that prepare them to help their children.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Parent attendance at meeting 
and graduation from parent 
workshops.        

 On average 18 parents attend 
meetings and coffee with the 
Principal. 

 20 Parents will attend meetings 
and coffee with the Principal.  
40 parents will graduate from 
parent workshops in the 23-24 
school year. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Romero with hold monthly parent event this school year to increase parent/community participation.  
(Principals Coffee, Back to school night, Homework help Nights x 3 , Romero Games and school 
events with child care.)        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 60 Romero Elementary 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
301 - Food and Supplies for events ($1000) 
302 - Engagement Supplies ($1000) 
 

1000         LCFF 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
303 - Child Care and Translation 

1000         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
301 - Teacher Pay for Homework Nights 

2000         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
301 - Speakers or Presenters 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Bilingual Community Liaison to assist parents with communication needs.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
16,180         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
304 - Marianna Franco 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Latino Family Literacy classes for parents to establish family reading routines for Spanish and 
English speaking parents and their children.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
700         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
301 

1000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
302 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All student grades; including all significant subgroups (EL's, Special Education, foster youth and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged)        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Parents Square, office supplies, DTS Translations and Website (Webmaster) for parents 
communication.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2500         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
305 - (Postage, envelopes, paper) 

500         LCFF 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
305 - Web Master 

1400         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
305 - DTS Translations 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 60 Romero Elementary 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
         None Specified 

None Specified 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
All other activities were implemented and monthly events were held.  The events we did hold were 
well attended.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Less was spent on food for family events.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
The metrics are now based on meeting attendance and workshop graduations.  We are increasing 
the number of parent events to monthly.  Also, we are adding parent homework nights (one per 
trimester) where parents are shown upcoming assignments so they can help their children.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $ 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $ 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $333,541.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title I        $93,287.00 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $93,287.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

LCFF        $226,754.00 

LCFF - Supplemental        $0.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $5,500.00 

None Specified        $0.00 

Unrestricted        $8,000.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $240,254.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $333,541.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

LCFF         226,754.00 

LCFF - Supplemental         0.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials         5,500.00 

None Specified         0.00 

Title I         93,287.00 

Unrestricted         8,000.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         134,495.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         71,238.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         69,100.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        

 52,358.00 

None Specified         6,350.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  72,308.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  45,238.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  55,000.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 60 Romero Elementary 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 LCFF  47,858.00 

None Specified         LCFF  6,350.00 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF - Supplemental  0.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  5,500.00 

None Specified         None Specified  0.00 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  62,187.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  26,000.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  600.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 Title I  4,500.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Unrestricted  8,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  270,153.00 

Goal 2  35,108.00 

Goal 3  28,280.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 60 Romero Elementary 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Nicholas Freitas         X Principal        

Prima Chavez         X Classroom Teacher        

Rachael Johnson         X Classroom Teacher        

Shannon LaSalle         X Classroom Teacher        

Jaqueline Garcia         X Other School Staff        

Erica Gonzalez         X Parent or Community Member        

Lizette Ortiz         X Parent or Community Member        

Maria Robles         X Parent or Community Member        

Adeline Patino         X Parent or Community Member        

Maria Salazar         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on April 24, 2023. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Nicholas Freitas on 4-24-2023 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements   
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
 
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the 
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC. The content of a 
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
 
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s 

goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as 
noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil 
performance against state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the 
Identified Need); and 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school, 
including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section 
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to— 
i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and 

learning need to be improved; and 
ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are 

not yet achieving the State's academic standards; and 
iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the 

schoolwide program under §200.28. 
iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of 

individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan. 
v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and 

the conclusions it drew from those results.  
B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA 

and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update).  

 
Requirements for the Plan 

II. The SPSA shall include the following:  
A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as 

identified through the needs assessment.  
B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 60 Romero Elementary 

1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school 
needs, including a description of how such strategies will-- 
a. provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to 

meet the challenging state academic standards 
b. use methods and instructional strategies that: 

i. strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, 

activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education. 
c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students 
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through 
activities which may include: 
i. strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas;  
ii. preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and 

the workforce;  
iii. implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 

behavior;  
iv. professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data; and 
v. strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood 

education programs to local elementary school programs. 
C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing 

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to 
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including 
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s 
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and 
Budget Summary). Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a 
single cost objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described in 
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update). 
1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide 

program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of 
academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the 
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for 
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure 
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review, 
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Educational Partner 
Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 60 Romero Elementary 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience 
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be 
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to 
1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students. 

G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in 
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 

H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 

I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in 
the Strategies/Activities). 

Authority Cited: S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 6400 et. seq.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Appendix B:  
 
Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at 
SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and 
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement). 
The CSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. Department 
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf); 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); and  

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to 
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; and Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Targeted Support and Improvement 
In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents) 
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each 
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Educational Partner Involvement).  
The TSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); and 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. 
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf.) 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA. 

  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 60 Romero Elementary 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school identified for ATSI shall:  

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, 
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable).  

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall 
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds 
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019).  
 
However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the 
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, 
effective January 1, 2019). 
 
Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option 
are available in the LCAP Instructions.  
 
Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

 
School Year:    2023-24     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Gustine Elementary 
School         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

CA         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 25,2023         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 14, 2023         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        
X Comprehensive Support and Improvement        
X Targeted Support and Improvement        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
Gustine Elementary School is located in the San Joaquin Valley, in Gustine, California. The school 
site opened in August 2001. Gustine Elementary houses Transitional Kindergarten through Grade 5. 
Gustine Elementary School is on a traditional school calendar. The current enrollment stands at 532 
students. Approximately 86.4% of the students are Hispanic, approximately 9.6% are white (non-
Hispanic), 48.1% are identified as English Learners. 78.9% are low socioeconomic, and all students 
obtain free meals. Gustine Elementary School provides a safe environment for students to learn and 
be a part of the school community. Gustine Elementary has an active ASB on campus; with activities 
to improve school culture throughout the school year.  
 There is one principal and an assistant principal. There is a 
full time elementary school counselor as well. The office staff consists of a secretary, attendance 
clerk and a home/school bilingual liaison. The District employs a full-time nurse that serves all sites 
and a full-time health aide for each school site. There are 28 certificated teachers, with one 
intervention teacher and one instructional coach. Classified staff consists of part-time aides for 
intervention support and one part-time aide in each TK through first grade classes. In addition, 
Gustine Elementary School also employs special education instructional aides, lunch and yard duty 
supervisors, a crossing guard, library clerk, and two full-time and one part-time custodians. Gustine 
Unified School District provides a full time BCBA and two Mental Health Clinicians that share 
responsibilities at all four GUSD school sites.  
 
School Vision and Mission 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

In partnership with families and the community, Gustine Elementary is committed to the task of 
educating students and giving them the skills to be productive and contributing members of society. 
Core beliefs are: 
 

• High expectations yield high results. 
• Every individual is unique and has worth. 
• Learning is a lifelong process. 
• Everyone has the right to be safe and secure and free from discrimination. 
• Encouragement, enthusiasm and motivation are essential for success. 
• Honesty and integrity are important values. 
• The partnerships of schools, -parents and community enrich society. 
• Hard work and perseverance are the cornerstones of good character. 
• Excellence in education is essential to our country’s democracy. 

 
Our Mission Statement  
The students at Gustine Elementary are our greatest asset. Their paths to success are unique. We 
believe that our students will experience success with the support and encouragement of parents, 
teachers and staff through positive social and educational experiences, respect for cultural diversity, 
a strong academic program, and a safe and secure learning environment. Our goal is to ensure that 
every student at GES is a critical thinker, a collaborative learner, as well as a productive member of 
society. Gustine Elementary provides a safe, friendly, and encouraging environment in which 
students thrive academically, socially, and emotionally. All students will leave GES prepared to take 
on the academic, social, and emotional challenges of middle school.  
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Purpose and Description ...................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................3 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................5 

Data Analysis ............................................................................................................................................5 

Surveys .....................................................................................................................................................5 

Classroom Observations ...........................................................................................................................5 

Analysis of Current Instructional Program .................................................................................................5 

Educational Partner Involvement ....................................................................................................................11 

Resource Inequities ........................................................................................................................................11 

School and Student Performance Data ..........................................................................................................12 

Student Enrollment ..................................................................................................................................12 

CAASPP Results .....................................................................................................................................14 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................18 

Student Population ..................................................................................................................................21 

Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................23 

Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................25 

Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................31 

Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................34 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................36 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................36 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................45 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................49 

Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................53 

Goal 5 ......................................................................................................................................................56 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................57 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................57 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................57 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................58 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................58 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................58 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................58 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................58 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................58 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................60 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................61 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................62 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents ....................................................................................................62 

Purpose and Description .........................................................................................................................63 

Educational Partner Involvement ............................................................................................................63 

Resource Inequities ................................................................................................................................63 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review ........................................................................................64 

Annual Review ........................................................................................................................................65 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................66 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .............................................................................................................68 

Appendix B: .............................................................................................................................................71 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...................................................................................73 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s). 
Gustine Elementary School  utilizes the 2021-2024 LCAP Student/Stakeholder Survey to obtain data 
from students about our school climate. The LCAP Student/Stakeholder Survey is an anonymous, 
confidential survey of our GUSD LCAP goals related to academics, school climate and safety, 
student wellness, and parent and community involvement.  The survey is administered to 4th and 
5th grade students and parents at Gustine Elementary School. It enables Gustine Elementary 
School to collect and analyze data regarding our LCAP goals. The LCAP Student/Stakeholder 
Survey is part of a comprehensive data-driven decision making process on improving school 
climate, student learning environment for overall school improvements. 
 
 
         
 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during 
the school-year and a summary of findings. 
Formal and informal classroom observations are conducted weekly by school site administrators, 
instructional coaches and district office administrators to ensure that teachers are focused on 
teaching Essential Standards through differentiated high-quality instruction utilizing a variety of 
instructional strategies. Classrooms are observed weekly, though not every teacher is seen weekly. 
Probationary teachers are evaluated annually and given formal observations at least three times a 
year. Tenured teachers are evaluated every five years and are given at least two formal 
observations during these evaluation years.         
 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these 
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional 
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on 
verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the 
status of these findings and note progress made.  Special consideration should be given to any 
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical 
programs. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
School wide results of state and district assessments in math and language arts are reviewed in 
August to identify the school’s focus and areas of need. Assessment results are analyzed by staff 
and the School Site Council during the meetings held in early fall. The entire staff reviews both 
individual student scores and grade level results to determine trends, identify gaps, and establish 
goals. The site uses results from CAASPP, ELPAC and multiple local assessments. Teachers use 
this data to identify student needs and place students in groups in which instruction is tailored to 
their targeted levels. iReady Assessments for ELA and Math, other district benchmarks, and 
computerized reading level scores (STAR) are used to target learning gaps and address the 
language needs of students to help improve student achievement. Students are continually 
assessed throughout the year via district-wide standards-based benchmark assessments in Math 
and ELA. These assessments help guide teachers as they modify instruction and identify student 
intervention groups via Tier II and Tier III interventions. Teachers use CFA benchmark results in 
Language Arts and Mathematics to monitor and modify instruction. Grade levels meet after 
benchmarks at PLC meetings to analyze data and plan instruction for the next instructional period. 
Learning targets are set, teaching practices discussed, and reteaching planned during these 
meetings. In addition, individual teachers meet with a team to look closely at student data during 
Cycle of Inquiry which occurs at the end of the first grading period. Data is looked at on an individual 
student basis to help with individual student achievement. 
 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction 
(EPC) 
Teachers utilize the curriculum embedded assessments and Standards Mastery Assessments on a 
weekly/monthly basis to plan and modify instruction based areas of identified need and  focused on 
the Essential Standards for their grade level. 
 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
The majority of the teachers at Gustine Elementary School meet the highly qualified staff 
requirements.  The teachers that do not meet the requirements as highly qualified are notified as 
well as their students and parents/guardians through written and verbal notification. 
 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional 
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
Teachers are professional development (PD) at a site and district level. They attend, on average, 
one site PLC weekly and one PD weekly. They are also given additional opportunities for 
professional development via our district contracted consultants and instructional coaches. The site 
also has set aside funds for teacher to attend conferences as another means of giving PD 
opportunities. 
 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional 
needs (ESEA) 
Staff developments for the 2022-23  have been focused on our new ELA adoption with using the 
UFLI curriculum, LETRS Training and Writing Training and working with the county office of 
education on math training with the county math coach. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional 
coaches) (EPC) 
Ongoing instructional assistance has moved away from the use of instructional site based coaches 
and to district instructional coaches and the use of grade level leads (content experts). These district 
Teacher Leads provide the ongoing assistance and support to teachers. The goal is for these leads 
to create professional learning communities amongst their grade levels that can to turn to each other 
for support. Site administration also fill the role of coaches by offering instructional strategies and 
support during walk-through visits, during collaboration and at staff meetings. In addition, teachers 
are given opportunities to visit other teachers to pick up new resources and ideas for teaching. 
 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades 
nine through twelve) (EPC) 
Our teachers in grades TK-5 meet in grade level PLC meetings weekly in which they review 
benchmark assessments, analyze results, plan re-teaching and examine the progress of target 
students. The grade levels are provided one day each trimester to plan and collaborate their plan for 
the year. During these days teachers are given collaboration time to discuss and plan for their 
students. Every teacher is constantly analyzing data to design tier II intervention strategies and 
establish class goal for success. 
 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
GES provides instruction and materials to content and performance standard as an integral practice 
at Gustine Elementary School. Instruction is aligned to the Essential Common Core State standards. 
Teachers work in grade levels to align instructional units to Essential Standards, and fill in areas 
where standards are not thoroughly addressed. They also collaborate to identify student 
performance in relation to each standard and to what degree of proficiency they have reached. 
Materials which have been adopted by the district are reviewed by District Curriculum Council and 
undergo scrutiny to analyze the degree of alignment between materials and standards. All teachers 
use state adopted textbooks & supplementary materials, grade level pacing calendar/blueprints to 
backward plan and prepare for weekly lesson plans. Grade level teams collaborate using data from 
the CFA/benchmark assessments to analyze student performance and adjust instruction 
accordingly. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) 
(EPC) 
All students at Gustine Elementary School are provided  standard-based instructional materials in all 
subject areas. A description of our Core Program standards based materials and in-person 
instructional minutes include: 
 
ELA  (Daily 2-2.5 hours for TK-2 and 1.5-2 hours for Grades 3-5) 
Essential Standards, Benchmark, Writing,  iReady UFLI for ELA, Read Alouds, etc. 
 
MATH  (Daily 45-60 minutes for TK-2 and 1-1.5 minutes for grades 3-5) 
Essential Standards, Eureka Math, Number Talks, iReady Math, Fluency Practice, etc. 
 
ELD (Daily 30 minutes Monday-Friday  ELD Integration throughout the day to provide supports to 
English Learners too. 
Content-based ELA using Social Studies Weekly and/or Science Weekly.  Focus is language targets 
and domains (listening, speaking, reading, writing, comprehension) 
 
Social Studies/Science (30-60 minutes daily or every other day) May be a designated time or 
integrated during ELA and Math. 
 
PE(Mandated 200 minutes each ten days of school) 
 
 
 
 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention 
courses (EPC) 
Teachers are guided to pace instruction according to the grade level Essential Standards pacing 
calendars. These calendars have been adjusted to meet the CCSS. Teachers have been 
encouraged to be more flexible in their pacing than in prior years and to collaborate when making 
adjustments they feel are needed. Teachers administer district assessments and CAASPP Interim 
Assessments during the school year. These assessments assess mastery of skills after they are 
taught. Additional reteach through Tier II is provided to students not meeting their targets. Gustine 
Elementary School continues to offer a Tier III/Intervention instruction to differentiate instruction for 
our students. We have increased support staff and now offer a pull-out model for intervention to first-
fifth grade students. Kindergarten students receive Tier III instruction after school with their teachers.  
Special education students that receive resource support, provided with services primarily through a 
push-in model. 
 
 
 
 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
Teachers and students at GES  have access to standards-based instructional materials in all core 
subjects. 
 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, 
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
All students at Gustine Elementary School use standard-based instructional materials in all subject 
areas. A description of our Core Program standards based materials and in-person instructional 
minutes include: 
 
ELA  (Daily 2-2.5 hours for TK-2 and 1.5-2 hours for Grades 3-5) 
Essential Standards, Benchmark, Writing,  iReady UFLI ELA, Read Alouds, etc. 
 
MATH  (Daily 45-60 minutes for TK-2 and 1-1.5 minutes for grades 3-5) 
Essential Standards, Eureka Math, Number Talks, iReady Math, Fluency Practice, etc. 
 
ELD (Daily 30 minutes Monday-Friday 9:00AM-9:30AM)   ELD Integration throughout the day 
supports ELs too. 
Content-based ELA using Social Studies Weekly and/or Science Weekly.  Focus is language targets 
and domains (listening, speaking, reading, writing, comprehension) 
 
Social Studies/Science (30-60 minutes daily or every other day) May be a designated time or 
integrated during ELA and Math?. Remember CCSS focuses on both designated and integrated. 
 
PE(Mandated 200 minutes each ten days of school) 
 
 
 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
All students receive standards-based instruction at their appropriate grade level. In classrooms, 
teachers provide Universal Access through small group instruction. During a Rotation period, 
students are grouped by ELD level or instructional level,  students are assessed every eight weeks 
and regrouped appropriately based on areas of need. Teachers regularly examine student work 
samples and data at grade level meetings to ensure that students are mastering standards. They 
also determine student needs, adjust instruction and plan re-instruction accordingly. Intervention 
action plans are developed when appropriate. The SST process is used to identify and monitor 
students at risk. Interventions are agreed upon and implemented by the classroom teacher in 
collaboration with the student’s family. SBE-adopted materials for the core instruction include:  Math: 
Eureka, Language Arts: Benchmark , Science: Science Weekly ,  Social Studies: Social Studies 
Weekly. Other materials for rotation and intervention include: iReady for ELA and Math, Phonics for 
Reading, Zearn, and Accelerated Reading. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
The Gustine Unified school district has set it's instructional norms around research based 
instructional practices. These include Learning Goals Posted and communicated to students in 
student friendly language. The cycle of Inquiry has been established to review and analyze student 
achievement data throughout lessons and post lesson through the utilization of instructional 
strategies. Teachers meet weekly during PLC meetings and after each benchmark to modify and 
adjust instruction based on local assessments. Teachers participate in staff development programs 
designed to improve their skills in addressing student needs and addressing core standards. 
Supplemental tutoring programs are available through the After School Program, Power Hour for 
Kindergarten and Math Night Grades K-5. 
 
 
 
 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students 
(ESEA) 
Gustine Elementary School partners with the MCOE's Strengthening Families program for resources 
to help families through difficult situations. The theory is that if a student has major trauma in the 
home they will have major difficulty learning. Gustine Elementary School provides additional 
academic intervention support during Tier II instruction by an Intervention teacher. Gustine 
Elementary School has two counselors for social-emotional support throughout the week and a 
district psychologist 2 days of the week. Gustine Elementary School provides parent involvement 
and trainings through PIQE (Parent Institute for Quality Education). In addition, the Counties after 
school program known as "Assets" serves about 80 students. 
 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and 
students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs 
(5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
Gustine Elementary continues to focus on increasing parent involvement. Our staff welcomes 
parents and family members to volunteer in our classrooms and the library. Parent involvement is 
encouraged through the monthly "Coffee with the Principal," parent nights, such as Open House, 
Back-to-School Night, and information nights, as well as in classroom activities. Gustine Elementary 
has the goal of surveying parents at least once a year for their perceptions about many aspects of 
the school. These include student programs, teacher qualifications, availability of interventions for 
students working below grade level, quality of and availability of parent trainings, quality of school 
leadership, school to home communications, and opportunities for meaningful input into the 
development of school wide planning. This data is tabulated and shared with both staff and the 
community, and then incorporated into future planning. A Parent- Teacher-Student three-way pledge 
outlining responsibilities of parents, teachers 
and students, has been developed by the School and sent home to all families to review and signed 
at the first parent-teacher conference. Parent communication is critical in student needs as well 
progress being made. Parents are notified and invited annually to a Title 1 meeting where they are 
informed about the progress of their students, services for students who are performing below grade 
level and trainings available for parents so that they can assist their children at home, and support 
their progress at school. We welcome parent volunteers, especially for assisting with field trips, 
special projects, and in the library. Involvement of parents and staff this is done through the School 
Site Council, ELAC/DELAC, Coffee with Principal and the PTC. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
The LCAP budget helps students in a variety of ways. Under performing students will be specifically 
be supported/targeted through an intervention program directly funded by LCAP goals. The 
intervention teacher will work collaboratively with teachers to help struggling students set goals, 
check progress and produce academic results. Students identified to need this support will be 
identified during Cycle of Inquiry meetings, which are also funded by LCFF. 
 
 
 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Refer to Budget Report. 

 
Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA was reviewed during SSC and ELAC meetings in the 2022-2023 school year.  In the 
December SSC and ELAC meetings, stakeholders participated in discussion and suggestions for the 
2023-2024 SPSA.  All discussion/suggestions were included in the minutes and then included in the 
goals/actions for the 2023-2024 SPSA draft.  SSC council approved the SPSA at the March, 28th 
2023 meeting. Contact Name: Amanda Hazan-Sanchez (209) 854-6496 
 
         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
Not Applicable         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Kindergarten        84 88 103 

Grade 1        87 75 77 

Grade 2        86 97 84 

Grade3        92 88 93 

Grade 4        77 98 96 

Grade 5        90 84 91 

Total Enrollment        516 530 544 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a large population of Hispanic/Latino students at Gustine Elementary School.        

2. There is a decrease in Latino population and an increase in the white population.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners        223 255 269 43.20% 48.1% 49.4% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        57 36 37 11.00% 6.8% 6.8% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        11   4.9%   
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. GES continues to have a consistent English Learner population with 48.1% of our students classified as English 

Learners.        
2. Eleven students were reclassified in the 2021-2022 school year.        

3. Thirteen students were reclassified in the 2022-2023 school year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 95 91  0 89  0 89  0.0 97.8  

Grade 4 81 97  0 96  0 96  0.0 99.0  

Grade 5 89 87  0 85  0 85  0.0 97.7  

All Grades 265 275  0 270  0 270  0.0 98.2  
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
 
 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  2344.
1 

  5.62   10.11   25.84   58.43  

Grade 4  2395.
7 

  6.25   14.58   17.71   61.46  

Grade 5  2424.
1 

  7.06   20.00   14.12   58.82  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  6.30   14.81   19.26   59.63  
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  3.37   64.04   32.58  

Grade 4  8.33   59.38   32.29  

Grade 5  5.88   56.47   37.65  

All Grades  5.93   60.00   34.07  
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  1.12   34.83   64.04  

Grade 4  5.21   42.71   52.08  

Grade 5  1.18   36.47   62.35  

All Grades  2.59   38.15   59.26  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  5.62   65.17   29.21  

Grade 4  3.13   73.96   22.92  

Grade 5  2.35   74.12   23.53  

All Grades  3.70   71.11   25.19  
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  3.37   57.30   39.33  

Grade 4  7.29   61.46   31.25  

Grade 5  7.06   58.82   34.12  

All Grades  5.93   59.26   34.81  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. GES grades 3rd through 5th grade only have 19.26% at meets or exceeds standards for ELA. With little difference 

in scores from last year it is hard to make assumptions. Fidelity to teaching Essential Standards, utilizing 
instructional strategies with fidelity to the adopted program, strengthening the PLC process with result in increase 
student achievement and implementation of UFLI is needed. 
 
For the 2021-2022, CAASPP assessments were administered. The local district assessment known as iReady was 
administered as well. In the iReady ELA,  34% of all kindergarten-fifth grade students performed at Tier 1 (at grade 
level) in the May 2022 i-Ready assessment in ELA.  25% of all English Learners in kinder-fifth grades performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the May i-Ready assessment in ELA. 
 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3 95 91  0 90  0 90  0.0 98.9  

Grade 4 81 97  0 97  0 97  0.0 100.0  

Grade 5 89 88  0 88  0 88  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 265 276  0 275  0 275  0.0 99.6  

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
  

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 3  2361.
8 

  1.11   16.67   22.22   60.00  

Grade 4  2402.
7 

  2.06   16.49   24.74   56.70  

Grade 5  2412.
9 

  4.55   5.68   17.05   72.73  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  2.55   13.09   21.45   62.91  
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  3.33   41.11   55.56  

Grade 4  5.15   34.02   60.82  

Grade 5  4.55   27.27   68.18  

All Grades  4.36   34.18   61.45  
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  5.56   37.78   56.67  

Grade 4  8.25   35.05   56.70  

Grade 5  4.55   36.36   59.09  

All Grades  6.18   36.36   57.45  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 3  1.11   56.67   42.22  

Grade 4  6.19   47.42   46.39  

Grade 5  3.41   44.32   52.27  

All Grades  3.64   49.45   46.91  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1.  

 
For the 2021-2022, CAASPP assessments were administered and the percent at or near standard was 21.45%. 
The local district assessment known as iReady was administered as well. In the iReady Math, 28% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at Tier 1 (at grade level) in the May 2022 i-Ready assessment in Math. 19% of all English 
Learners in kinder-fifth grades performed at Tier 1 (at grade level) in the May i-Ready assessment in Math. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    1397.5 1416.6  1410.1 1420.1  1367.9 1408.0  48 44  

   1    1433.0 1434.0  1453.9 1451.5  1411.8 1416.0  44 44  

   2    1456.3 1463.8  1458.8 1475.0  1453.3 1452.1  39 48  

   3    1470.4 1478.7  1469.9 1472.4  1470.5 1484.5  40 41  

   4    1476.7 1497.1  1479.4 1501.3  1473.5 1492.5  30 42  

   5    1501.9 1514.2  1497.2 1521.6  1506.3 1506.2  27 38  

All Grades                 228 257  
 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    4.17 18.18  22.92 20.45  45.83 47.73  27.08 13.64  48 44  

   1    2.27 4.55  20.45 18.18  54.55 50.00  22.73 27.27  44 44  

   2    5.13 8.33  51.28 35.42  28.21 39.58  15.38 16.67  39 48  

   3    0.00 7.32  25.00 43.90  62.50 26.83  12.50 21.95  40 41  

   4    0.00 7.14  16.67 40.48  60.00 40.48  23.33 11.90  30 42  

   5    7.69 18.42  30.77 28.95  42.31 39.47  19.23 13.16  26 38  

All Grades        3.08 10.51  27.75 31.13  48.90 40.86  20.26 17.51  227 257  
 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    6.25 18.18  41.67 25.00  31.25 38.64  20.83 18.18  48 44  

   1    20.45 11.36  27.27 36.36  40.91 40.91  11.36 11.36  44 44  

   2    25.64 22.92  41.03 43.75  20.51 22.92  12.82 10.42  39 48  

   3    12.50 31.71  45.00 36.59  30.00 12.20  12.50 19.51  40 41  

   4    6.67 19.05  50.00 64.29  33.33 9.52  10.00 7.14  30 42  

   5    26.92 31.58  46.15 52.63  23.08 7.89  3.85 7.89  26 38  

All Grades        15.86 22.18  40.97 42.80  30.40 22.57  12.78 12.45  227 257  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    6.25 11.36  8.33 25.00  45.83 38.64  39.58 25.00  48 44  

   1    0.00 4.55  11.36 11.36  38.64 38.64  50.00 45.45  44 44  

   2    7.69 0.00  28.21 33.33  33.33 33.33  30.77 33.33  39 48  

   3    0.00 7.32  10.00 24.39  52.50 36.59  37.50 31.71  40 41  

   4    0.00 2.38  10.00 21.43  30.00 40.48  60.00 35.71  30 42  

   5    0.00 2.63  15.38 13.16  53.85 44.74  30.77 39.47  26 38  

All Grades        2.64 4.67  13.66 21.79  42.29 38.52  41.41 35.02  227 257  
 

Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    12.50 27.27  81.25 56.82  6.25 15.91  48 44  

   1    27.27 31.82  68.18 59.09  4.55 9.09  44 44  

   2    20.51 20.83  69.23 72.92  10.26 6.25  39 48  

   3    17.50 36.59  70.00 43.90  12.50 19.51  40 41  

   4    23.33 40.48  63.33 54.76  13.33 4.76  30 42  

   5    23.08 21.05  57.69 71.05  19.23 7.89  26 38  

All Grades        20.26 29.57  69.60 59.92  10.13 10.51  227 257  
 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    10.42 15.91  52.08 52.27  37.50 31.82  48 44  

   1    15.91 11.36  61.36 68.18  22.73 20.45  44 44  

   2    28.21 20.83  56.41 64.58  15.38 14.58  39 48  

   3    15.00 41.46  67.50 39.02  17.50 19.51  40 41  

   4    10.00 19.05  76.67 71.43  13.33 9.52  30 42  

   5    42.31 63.16  46.15 28.95  11.54 7.89  26 38  

All Grades        18.94 27.63  59.91 54.86  21.15 17.51  227 257  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    4.17 11.36  66.67 72.73  29.17 15.91  48 44  

   1    4.55 9.09  36.36 29.55  59.09 61.36  44 44  

   2    12.82 2.08  53.85 62.50  33.33 35.42  39 48  

   3    0.00 4.88  47.50 46.34  52.50 48.78  40 41  

   4    0.00 0.00  23.33 57.14  76.67 42.86  30 42  

   5    7.69 7.89  57.69 47.37  34.62 44.74  26 38  

All Grades        4.85 5.84  48.46 52.92  46.70 41.25  227 257  
 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   K    16.67 31.82  37.50 34.09  45.83 34.09  48 44  

   1    0.00 0.00  61.36 70.45  38.64 29.55  44 44  

   2    10.26 10.42  53.85 66.67  35.90 22.92  39 48  

   3    0.00 14.63  67.50 70.73  32.50 14.63  40 41  

   4    0.00 11.90  60.00 66.67  40.00 21.43  30 42  

   5    3.85 7.89  73.08 71.05  23.08 21.05  26 38  

All Grades        5.73 12.84  57.27 63.04  37.00 24.12  227 257  
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. During the 2021-2022, eleven English Learner students were reclassified as RFEP.        

2. During the 2022-2023, thirteen English Learner students were reclassified as RFEP.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
For the past two years, many state and federal accountability requirements were waived or adjusted due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on LEAs, schools, and students. Beginning with the 2021-22 school year, the requirements to hold 
schools and districts accountable for student outcomes has returned with the release of the 2022 California School 
Dashboard (Dashboard). The Every Student Succeeds Act is requiring all states to determine schools eligible for support. 
Similarly, under state law, Assembly Bill (AB) 130, which was signed into law in 2021, mandates the return of the Dashboard 
using only current year performance data to determine LEAs for support. Therefore, to meet this state requirement, only the 
2021-22 school year data will be reported on the 2022 Dashboard for state indicators. (Data for Change [or the difference 
from prior year] and performance colors will not be reported.) 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2021-22 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

530         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Gustine Elementary School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

78.9         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

48.1         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

0.2         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2021-22 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         255 48.1 

Foster Youth         1 0.2 

Homeless         4 0.8 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         418 78.9 

Students with Disabilities         53 10.0 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American         1 0.2 

American Indian         2 0.4 

Asian         3 0.6 

Filipino           

Hispanic         458 86.4 

Two or More Races         7 1.3 

Pacific Islander           

White         51 9.6 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine Elementary School continues to be a Title I school. We have 84% of our student that are socioeconomically 

disadvantaged.         
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2022 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Very Low        

Mathematics 

 
Low        

English Learner Progress 

 
Low        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Very High        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Low        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We continue to make growth and are improving the academic achievement in English Language Arts and Math.  

We are strengthening our teaching by focusing on Essential Standards and implementing and embracing LETRS 
Training with the Science of Reading as well as Focused Math Instruction through the County Office of Education.        

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

2. We are focused on an attendance goal of 97% or higher. We have launched a campaign to promote regular 
attendance and incentives for perfect attendance, such as popcorn parties, awards and recognition, incentive points 
using a digital platform that can be redeemed for prizes routinely.        

3. Suspension rates increased. However, we are focusing on positive behaviors and preventative approaches through 
PBIS as well as working with teachers and staff on alternative interventions and supports for students.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Very Low        
4        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very Low         

76.5 points below standard        
240 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

91.3 points below standard         
121 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

87.2 points below standard         
192 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

121.3 points below standard         
33 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Very Low         

82.4 points below standard         
208 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

42.0 points below standard         
25 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

114.9 points below standard         

90 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

22.7 points below standard         

31 Students        

English Only 

62.9 points below standard         

112 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine Elementary School is making progress on the reclassification of English Learners to Fluent Proficient. Our 

focus this year is on content-based ELD instruction.        
2. Gustine Elementary School must continue to implement strategies to support students that are below standard and 

that have been identified through ATSI.        
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathamtics Equity Report 

Very Low        
1        

Low        
3        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

82.7 points below standard         
240 Students        

English Learners 

 
Low         

94.7 points below standard         
121 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Low         

86.8 points below standard         
192 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

120.2 points below standard         
33 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Low         

89.5 points below standard         
208 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

39.7 points below standard         
25 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

112.8 points below standard         
90 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

42.0 points below standard         
31 Students        

English Only 

70.7 points below standard         
112 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. There is a need to improve academic achievement in mathematics. Our reclassified students are continuing to show 

grow in math achievement.        
2. Gustine Elementary School must embrace all resources, trainings and supports available to support student learning 

and especially those students that are below standard.        
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
This section provides information on the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language 
proficiency or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
Low         

42.4 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 205 Students          
Performance Level: 2        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

17.6%         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

40.0%         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

0.0%         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

42.4%         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The highest group of English Learner students are in levels 2 and 3. We need to ensure that EL students receive the 

necessary ELD instruction to make progress and develop their language skills to be reclassified. We have large 
numbers of EL students that are absent for several days of school as they leave to Mexico or out of state during the 
school year.        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
College/Career data provides information on whether high school students are prepared for success after graduation based 
on measures like graduation rate, performance on state tests, and college credit courses.  College/Career data was not 
reported in 2022. 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Very High        
5        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very High         

41% Chronically Absent         
558 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very High         

40.6% Chronically Absent         
271 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

7 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very High         

42.6% Chronically Absent         
448 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very High         

36.8% Chronically Absent         
68 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Very High         

41% Chronically Absent         
485 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

66.7% Chronically Absent         
12 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

White     

 
Very High         

38.5% Chronically Absent         
52 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. A high percentage of students that are chronically absent are Hispanic (41%) and White students (38.5%).        

2. Due to COVID-19, student absences increased due to mandatory quarantine guidelines.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Very Low        Low        Medium        High        Very High        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 

 

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Very High        
0        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
2        

Very Low        
3        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

0.9% suspended at least one day         
580 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

0.4% suspended at least one day         
281 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

8 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Low         

0.9% suspended at least one day         
464 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
71 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Low         

1% suspended at least one 
day         

501 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

13 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

White     

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

57 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Suspension rate increased for Hispanic students and also increased for white students.        

2. Suspension rate decreased significantly as GES only had 6 suspensions during the 2021-2022 school year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Student Academic Achievement in English Language Arts & Mathematics          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college and career ready 
by providing opportunities for access to a broad course of study, academic counseling and intervention supports, 
technology and research based curriculum, provided by a high quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local 
data.         

 

Goal 1 
Increase students’ academic achievement in English Language Arts and Mathematics as indicated 
by a 30% increase in meeting the standard. As identified areas of need through ATSI increase 
academic achievement in English language Arts and Math for students with disabilities with targeted 
support and improvement in following the guidelines of ATSI. In ELA from 20.6% and increase to 
50.6% or higher and Math from 14.6% to 50.6% or higher.   Increase academic achievement for 
English Learner students in English Language Arts and Mathematics as indicated by a 30% increase 
in meeting the standard and at least one grade level.  Increase academic achievement for Students 
with Disabilities in English Language Arts and Mathematics by at least 30% or one grade level.          

 
Identified Need 
The 3rd-5th grade students’ performance on CAASPP was lower than anticipated, indicating a need 
for more support for struggling students and a focus on instruction. Gustine Elementary has 
demonstrated areas of need with ELA and Mathematics for Students with Disabilities based on 
indicators in the statewide accountability system and is in ATSI which is informed by all indicators in 
which they performed Very Low on the state assessment for ELA and Math. 
Students with Disabilities are currently performing in the category of Very Low.  The goal is for 
students to improve their scores in ELA and Mathematics by at least 30% or at least one grade level 
during the school year. 
The evidence-based interventions that have been put into practice to support struggling students are 
the professional development and implementation of LETRS Training which is based on the science 
of Reading as well as focused math instruction and professional development. 
There are no identified resource inequities. 
 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Academic Indicator ELA and 
Math 
(Tier 1 at grade level) 
        

 ELA: 12% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester I (beginning of the 
school year) i-Ready 
assessment in ELA.  3% of all 
English Learners in kinder-fifth 
grades performed at Tier 1 (at 
grade level) in the trimester I 

 ELA: 42% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester III (end of the school 
year) i-Ready assessment in 
ELA.  33% of all English 
Learners in kinder-fifth grades 
performed at Tier 1 (at grade 
level) in the trimester III (end of 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

(beginning of the school year) 
i-Ready assessment in ELA.  
7% of students with disabilities 
kinder-fifth grades performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester I (beginning of the 
school year) i-Ready 
assessment in ELA. 
 
Math: 3% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester I (beginning of the 
school year) i-Ready 
assessment in Math. 0% of all 
English Learners in kinder-fifth 
grades performed at Tier 1 (at 
grade level) in the trimester I 
(beginning of the school year) 
i-Ready assessment in Math. 
2% of students with disabilities 
kinder-fifth grades performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester I (beginning of the 
school year) i-Ready 
assessment in Math. 
 
ELA: 23% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester II (middle of the 
school year) i-Ready 
assessment in ELA.  12% of all 
English Learners in kinder-fifth 
grades performed at Tier 1 (at 
grade level) in the trimester II 
(middle of the school year) i-
Ready assessment in ELA.  
10% of students with 
disabilities kinder-fifth grades 
performed at Tier 1 (at grade 
level) in the trimester II (middle 
of the school year) i-Ready 
assessment in ELA. 
 
Math: 13% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester II (middle of the 
school year) i-Ready 

the school year) i-Ready 
assessment in ELA.  37% of 
students with disabilities 
kinder-fifth grades performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester III (end of the school 
year) i-Ready assessment in 
ELA. 
 
Math: 33% of all kinder-fifth 
grade students performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester III (end of the school 
year) i-Ready assessment in 
Math. 30% of all English 
Learners in kinder-fifth grades 
performed at Tier 1 (at grade 
level) in the trimester III (end of 
the school year) i-Ready 
assessment in Math. 32% of 
students with disabilities 
kinder-fifth grades performed at 
Tier 1 (at grade level) in the 
trimester III (end of the school 
year) i-Ready assessment in 
Math. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

assessment in Math. 4% of all 
English Learners in kinder-fifth 
grades performed at Tier 1 (at 
grade level) in the trimester II 
(middle of the school year) i-
Ready assessment in Math. 
11% of students with 
disabilities kinder-fifth grades 
performed at Tier 1 (at grade 
level) in the trimester II (middle 
of the school year) i-Ready 
assessment in Math. 
 
 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students, identified area of need through ATSI Students with Disabilities        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Action/Service 
Teachers will continue to meet in weekly PLCs and grade level collaboration days (with substitute)  
to disaggregate data as it pertains to student needs and student success in addressing students 
with disabilities in accordance with ATSI. Data for all students and subgroups will drive instruction 
to ensure that student needs are met. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teacher Leaders 
Teachers 
 
Action/Service 
Professional development opportunities for our teachers, administrators and instructional staff in 
the area of English Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies, English Language 
Development, Special Education, Technology. Professional development opportunities include site, 
district-wide, County, Regional, State and out-of State. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Teachers 
Instructional Staff 
 
Action/Service 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Tier III reading intervention will be provided to identified students in grades 1-5 that are struggling 
with decoding, reading fluency and reading comprehension. This intervention will be provided daily 
during the school day by the general education teachers, the Intervention teacher and the 
intervention instructional aides via a pull out service for 30 minutes.  Cost of instructional aides. 
(Funding: District funds) 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Intervention Teacher 
Intervention Instructional Aides 
 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund and Instructional Coach  to support all teachers and providing professional 
development and bring evidence-based practices into the classrooms by working with teachers and 
school leaders. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Instructional Coach 
 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund an Intervention Teacher to provide intervention to struggling readers in grades 1—
5. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Intervention Teacher 
 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund a library clerk who will work with students and teacher to increase literacy by 
promoting the Accelerated Reader program and purchasing books of high interest for students. 
Provide reading incentives. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Intervention Teacher 
 
Action/Service 
Provide supplemental instructional classroom supplies, materials, digital licenses and technology. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
Secretary 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

 
Action/Service 
Purchase technology devices, such as Laptops/Chromebooks/iPads, Headphones w/ mic, etc  to 
enhance instruction. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
Secretary 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to use AVID strategies in the  classroom by funding the AVID Coordinator and providing 
ongoing staff trainings and student supplies. 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
AVID Coordinator 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund a PE teacher to allow general education teachers to differentiate instruction via 
tier II and enrichment groups during PE instruction through a rotation schedule. (Funding: District 
funds) 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
 
Action/Service 
Increase a positive learning environment and create opportunities for collaboration by purchasing 
furniture to provide flexible seating. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
 
Action/Service 
Provide enrichment opportunities related to STEAM,  Visual & Performing Arts and Educational 
Fieldtrips 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teachers 
 
 
        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
7,500         LCFF 

 
101-Curriculum and Instruction 

5,000         LCFF 
 
102-Academic Intervention and Enrichment 
4300-Supplies 
 

55,123         LCFF 
 
104-High Quality Professional Development 
Academic PD/Conferences 
5200-Travel & Conference 
5230- Mileage 
1170-Teacher Subs 
1170-(.25) Instructional Coach 
 

22,000         LCFF 
 
105-Experiential Learning 
4300-Supplies 
5866-Professional Services 
5805-Admission Tix/field trips 
3600-Bus transportation for field trips 
 

1,000         LCFF 
 
106-College & Career Readiness 
1165-Teachers-Extra Duty (AVID Coordinator) 
 

31,348         LCFF 
 
107-Additional Student Supports 
4200-Books & Reference Materials/Classroom 
Libraries 
2260-Classified Support (Library aide) 
 

208,576         ESSER III 
 
Additional staff: Intervention Aides, TK-1st grade 
Instrictional Aides, PE Teacher  & Instructional 
Aide 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

15,000         LCFF 
 
110-Technology 
4400-Equipment ($500-$4,999) 
4300-Supplies 
 

18,000         LCFF 
 
111-Supports for Unduplicated Students 
4300-Supplies (promotion ceremonies) 
 

12,500         LCFF 
 
112-Classroom Environment 
4400-Supplies/Flexible Seating 
 

123,109         Title I 
 
Intervention Teacher 
 
 

44,000         Title I 
 
Intervention Instructional Aides 

25,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 
 
Digital Licenses: Enrichment, ESGI, Starfall, 
Learning Without Tears, Accelerated Reading, 
Reflex Math, etc. 

45,000         Unrestricted 
 
Curriculum Materials, Supplemental Materials, 
Classroom supplies, furniture, classroom copy 
paper, technology purchases 

3,000         LCFF 
 
103-Multi-Tiered Systems of Support 
PLC Leads, Subs 
 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner Students 
 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Action/Service 
Continue to fund ELD Coordinator to provide support for the ELD Program. 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Solution Tree 
ELD Coordinator 
Academic Coach 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         LCFF 

 
108-English Learner Support 
1165-Teachers-Extra Duty (ELD Coordinator 
Stipend) 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During the 2022-2023 school year, GES implemented a schoolwide Tier III/Enrichment support for 
all students. Intervention instruction was provided to students in grades 1-5 in small groups via 
general education teachers, intervention teacher and intervention aides.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
The Tier III intervention support was implemented as planned.  iReady Diagnostic #3 results for 
ELA and Math indicate students made progress toward grade level essential standards.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

For the 2023-2024 school year, GES will continue to fund a PE teacher to allow general education 
teachers to differentiate instruction via tier II and enrichment groups during PE instruction through a 
rotation schedule.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Positive School Culture and Climate          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine USD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe facilities, student 
support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra and co-curricular activities as 
measured by state and local data.         

 

Goal 2 
The goal is to maintain a low number of suspensions at GES during the 2023-2024 school year.          

 
Identified Need 
Additional counselor to support students that are on the waitlist for counseling.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

CA Dashboard         CA Dashboard 2021-2022: 
Suspension rate 0.9% 
 
This is a significant decrease in 
suspensions from previous 
years. 
 

 Decrease and or maintain the 
suspension rate from 1% for 
the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Action/Service 
Utilize and continue to fund the school counselor that will offer counseling and mental health 
services district-wide to help students resolve personal or interpersonal problems. Counselor may 
also offer small group counseling to help students enhance listening and social skills, learn to 
empathize with others, and find social support through healthy peer relationships.  Support services 
will include Social and Emotional Learning through programs, classroom presentations, small 
group, and individual sessions.  By expanding these services and supports for students the 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

academics, behavior, and social emotional needs of identified groups will be improved as 
measured by surveys and referrals. 
 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assistant Principal 
Counselor 
Teachers 
 
Action/Service 
PBIS will be implemented in all schools at GUSD including GES. The PBIS Team will continue to 
provide Tier I and Tier 2 behavior supports and interventions. PBIS team and administration will 
attend trainings and other conferences related to safety, positive student discipline and attendance. 
Provide student incentives for positive school climate and attendance. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assistant Principal 
PBIS Team 
Teachers 
 
Action/Service 
Provide Teacher In Charge a stipend. Principal designates a teacher in charge in the absences of 
administrators being present at the school site. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teacher In Charge 
 
Action/Service 
Provide ASB advisor a stipend. The ASB leadership team and ASB teacher leaders will continue to 
promote positive school culture by fostering school activities for student involvement. ASB advisers 
and administration will attend CADA and other leadership trainings. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
ASB Teacher Leaders 
 
Action/Service 
Conduct anti-bullying assemblies and guest speaker presentations to raise awareness. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Counselor/Psychologist 
 
Action/Service 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Provide enrichment opportunities via music, visual and performing arts classes, academic fieldtrips 
and other extra curricular activities. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund the Assistant Principal position to assist with student discipline and monitor 
SARC/SARB process. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
132,168         LCFF 

 
202-Support Services for Social Emotional and 
Mental Health 
1200-Pupil Support Services/Counselor 
 

21,190         LCFF 
 
204-Engagement, Enrichment, and Leadership 
5866-Professional Services 
5300-Dues & Memberships 
5200-Travel & Conference 
1165-ASB Stipend 
 

136,601         LCFF 
 
205-School Safety 
1165-Teacher In Charge 
1300-Assistant Principal 
 

10,000         LCFF 
 
206-PBIS & Restorative Justice 
4300-Supplies-PBIS Incentives 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
In the 2022-2023 school year, there was an increase in counseling referrals for SEL issues. In 
addition, there was an increase in students with socio-emotional needs that contributed to more 
discipline incidents reported in the Aeries discipline logs.  Student referral for behavioral supports 
increased.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
More counseling services were offered to more students as GES now has a full time elementary 
counselor and a part time district Mental Health Counselor and a Certified Behavior Analyst.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Increase in PBIS implementation for Tier 1-3. For the 2023-2024 school year, continue to offer 
alternative consequences to suspension and more positive behavior intervention strategies to 
decrease student discipline.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
GES Parent Involvement          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine USD will create partnerships with parents, families, and the community to provide meaningful opportunities that 
will build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as well as celebrate student learning.         

 

Goal 3 
GES will increase parent involvement opportunities in parent workshops and building capacity by 
5%. From 3% to 8% for the 2023-2024 school year.          

 
Identified Need 
GES parents have expressed a desire to participate in their child’s education by attending events 
and parent workshops that prepare them to help their child succeed in school.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

List of parents who graduated 
and participated in PIQE        

 18 parents graduated from the 
PIQE parent workshops in 
2021-2022 school year. 
 
 
Participation in ELAC meetings 
by parent membership: 54% 
(average of 4 meetings) 
 
Participation in SSC meetings 
by parent membership: 41.5% 
(average of 4 meetings) 
 
Parent Capacity Building by all 
parents: 3% (average for total 
parent participation out of 405 
families) Events include: 
Family Math Night and monthly 
Coffee with the Principal 
meetings. 
 
 
 

 Increase parent involvement 
opportunities in parent 
workshops and building 
capacity by 5%. 
 
Resume Parent Workshops in 
the 2023-2024 school year. 
 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students at GES        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Action/Service 
GES will hold monthly events this school year to increase parent/community participation (such as 
monthly Coffee with the Principal, provide child care, Back to School BBQ, Math Nights, ASB 
events, Turkey Trot, Grandparents Day, and AVID Parent Informational Night). 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Teacher Leaders 
ASB Advisers 
 
Action/Service 
Office supplies for parent communication (paper, envelopes, postage, etc.). 
Translation/Interpretation services. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Office Staff 
 
Action/Service 
Conduct parent workshops on ways to support their children academically, socially and 
emotionally. Provide child care during these workshops. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Bilingual Liaison 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund a Home-School Bilingual Liaison to support with parent communication, 
translations and interpretations. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
GES Principal 
Bilingual Liaison 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,500         LCFF 

 
301-Parent Capacity Building 
5866-Professional Services 
4300-Supplies/Food, Incentives 
 

2,000         LCFF 
 
302-Engagement Opportunities 
4300-Supplies 
5866-Professional Services (Speakers) 
 

2,500         LCFF 
 
303-Child Care 
4300-Supplies (Food), Materials 
2265-Classified Extra Duty 
 

1,400         LCFF 
 
304-Family Partnerships/Interpretation 
2265-DTS Translations 
 

5,500         LCFF 
 
305-Structures of Communication 
4300-Office Supplies(School-Home 
Communication) 
2265-Classified Extra Duty 
 

4,000         Unrestricted 
 
Office Supplies, Furniture 

36,083         Title I 
 
Bilingual Liaison 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During the 2021-2022 school year,  parents graduated from the PIQE parent workshops.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
For the 2021-2022 school year, parents are encouraged to get involved in leadership roles at the 
school such as membership in School Site Council, ELAC and Parent Teacher Club.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
During the 2023-2024  school year, GES will continue to provide and fund various activities such as 
Coffee with the Principal and parent workshops to increase parent involvement. For these events 
we will continue to provide incentives, prizes, childcare, translation, food to promote participation 
and eliminate barriers for involvement.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
GES will improve attendance for Students with Disabilities and White Students as identified as an area of need through 
ATSI.          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Goal #1 Academic Achievement, GUSD will support student achievement and college and career readiness.         

 

Goal 4 
Improve student attendance for students with disabilities and white students.          

 
Identified Need 
36.8% of students with disabilities, and 38.5% of white students are identified as chronically absent 
at Gustine Elementary School.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

California Department of 
Education CSI Website        

 36.8% of students with 
disabilities, and 38.5% of white 
students are identified as 
chronically absent 

 Attendance will improve from 
36.8% of students with 
disabilities, and 38.5% of white 
students are identified as 
chronically absent to a 
reduction of 16.8% of students 
with disabilities, and 18.5% of 
white students are identified as 
chronically absent. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students and Students identified as in need with ATSI Students with Disabilities and White 
Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
 
Action/Service 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School Administrators and Attendance Clerk will disaggregate data as it pertains to student needs 
and student success in addressing students with disabilities in accordance with ATSI. Data for all 
students and subgroups will drive the process for attendance procedures. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Attendance Clerk 
 
Action/Service 
Professional development opportunities for our teachers, administrators and office staff in the area 
of student attendance and accountability. Professional development opportunities include site, 
district-wide, County, Region and State. 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Teachers 
Office Staff 
 
 
Action/Service 
Continue to fund and support incentives for positive attendance (Attendance Hero's, Perfect 
Attendance, Attendance Celebrations etc). 
 
Person(s) Responsible 
Principal 
Assist. Principal 
Attendance Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
13,500         LCFF 

 
207-Attendance 
4300-Supplies/Attendance Incentives 
5200-Travel & Conference 
5230-Mileage 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Positive attendance rewards and recognition.  Attendance meetings with students, parents and 
teachers, letters sent home, daily phone calls, emails and Parent Square.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
The budget has accounted for the rewards and recognition for positive attendance and for the 
scheduled, meetings, mailers and staff for negative attendance.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
For the 2023-2024 GES will have an attendance flow chart that will explicitly detail the positives of 
good attendance and the consequences of negative attendance.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
         

 

Goal 5 
          

 
Identified Need 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 
startcollapse  
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

 
 
  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $797,357.00 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $0 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $988,098.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title I        $203,192.00 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $203,192.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

ESSER III        $208,576.00 

LCFF        $502,330.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $25,000.00 

Unrestricted        $49,000.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $784,906.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $988,098.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

ESSER III         208,576.00 

LCFF         502,330.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials         25,000.00 

Title I         203,192.00 

Unrestricted         49,000.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

         12,500.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

         ESSER III  208,576.00 

         LCFF  489,830.00 

         LCFF  12,500.00 

         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  25,000.00 

         Title I  203,192.00 

         Unrestricted  49,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  617,656.00 

Goal 2  299,959.00 

Goal 3  56,983.00 

Goal 4  13,500.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

6 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Amanda Hazan-Sanchez         X Principal        

Andrea Elizalde (2021-2024)         X Classroom Teacher        

Jennifer Lara (2021-2024)         X Classroom Teacher        

Christine Martins (2022-2025)         X Classroom Teacher        

Sylvia Martinez (2022-2025)         X Classroom Teacher        

X Other School Staff        

Christina Ruvalcaba (2019-2022)         X Other School Staff        

Carolina Gopar (2022-2025)         X Parent or Community Member        

Margarita Guerrero (2021-2024)         X Parent or Community Member        

Isabel Martinez (2022-2025)         X Parent or Community Member        

Sugey Cardenas (2019-2022)         X Parent or Community Member        

Hector Perez (2022-2025)         X Other School Staff        

Nancy Contreras (2022-2025)         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on May 23, 2023. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Amanda Hazan-Sanchez on 05/23/2023 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Nancy Contreras on 05/25/2023 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 

Instructions 
 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan process.  
 
The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through 
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school improvement programs, including 
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California 
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program 
planning requirements. It also notes how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation 
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized 
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet 
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The 
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. 
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review 
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also 
contains a notation of how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements.  
Educational Partner Involvement 
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
Annual Review and Update 
Budget Summary  
Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs  
Appendix B: Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact 
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 
 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the local 
educational agency, or the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support 
Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Purpose and Description 
Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the 
following prompts. A school that has not been identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose 
and Description prompts. 
 
Purpose 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive 
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
 
Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 

Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of 
the SPSA and the budget process. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and 
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these 
advisory groups in the development of the SPSA.  
 
The Stakeholder Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used to 
involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and 
implementation of this plan.] 
 

Resource Inequities 
Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment. Identified resource inequities 
must be addressed through implementation of the CSI or ATSI plan. Briefly identify and describe any 
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the 
identified resource inequities are addressed in the SPSA.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATSI. If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI 
this section is not applicable and may be deleted.] 
 

mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov
mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review 
In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to 
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
strategies and activities. 
 
Goal 
State the goal. A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all 
strategies/activities are directed. A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach. A S.M.A.R.T. 
goal is one that is Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound. A level of specificity 
is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it is 
reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic 
approach that supports student success.  
 
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals, 
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable 
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by 
districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements] 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating 
progress toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. 
Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available 
at the time of adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator 
includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome 
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the 
metrics that led to the school’s identification.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific 
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification.]  
 
Strategies/Activities 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal. A school may 
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of reference. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state 
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local 
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting, 
if applicable. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based 
interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation, 
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting.] 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students” 
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the 
TSI or ATSI designation. For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led 
to identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected.] 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for 
the school year to implement these strategies/activities. Specify the funding source(s) using one or 
more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other 
State, and/or Local. 
 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C), 
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or 
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting, 
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATSI.] 
 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In addition, 
funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 
 

Annual Review  
In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from 
the prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates 
to the plan. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as 
instructed. Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal the Annual Review section is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 

● Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of 
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal.  

 
● Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the 

budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
 
● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 

metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes 
can be found in the SPSA. 

 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual 
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATSI 
planning requirements. CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the 
Instructions. For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a 
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements.]  
 

Budget Summary  
In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp and 
that receive federal funds for CSI. If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this 
section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that meet the criteria 
for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total 
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for 
CSI. 
 
Budget Summary 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as 
follows: 
 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application: This amount is the 
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year.  The 
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

 
● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total of 

the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are 
listed in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows: 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

● Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is the total 
amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA.  

 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATSI. In addition, funds 
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements   
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
 
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the 
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC. The content of a 
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
 
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s 

goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as 
noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil 
performance against state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the 
Identified Need); and 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school, 
including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section 
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to— 
i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and 

learning need to be improved; and 
ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are 

not yet achieving the State's academic standards; and 
iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the 

schoolwide program under §200.28. 
iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of 

individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan. 
v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and 

the conclusions it drew from those results.  
B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA 

and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update).  

 
Requirements for the Plan 

II. The SPSA shall include the following:  
A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as 

identified through the needs assessment.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities) 
1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school 

needs, including a description of how such strategies will-- 
a. provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to 

meet the challenging state academic standards 
b. use methods and instructional strategies that: 

i. strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, 

activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education. 
c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students 
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through 
activities which may include: 
i. strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas;  
ii. preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and 

the workforce;  
iii. implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 

behavior;  
iv. professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data; and 
v. strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood 

education programs to local elementary school programs. 
C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing 

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to 
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including 
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s 
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and 
Budget Summary). Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a 
single cost objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described in 
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update). 
1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide 

program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of 
academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the 
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for 
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure 
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review, 
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Educational Partner 
Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience 
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be 
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to 
1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students. 

G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in 
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 

H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 

I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in 
the Strategies/Activities). 

Authority Cited: S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 6400 et. seq.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Appendix B:  
 
Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at 
SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and 
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement). 
The CSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. Department 
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf); 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); and  

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to 
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; and Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Targeted Support and Improvement 
In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents) 
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each 
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Educational Partner Involvement).  
The TSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); and 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. 
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf.) 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA. 

  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school identified for ATSI shall:  

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, 
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable).  

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall 
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds 
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019).  
 
However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the 
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, 
effective January 1, 2019). 
 
Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option 
are available in the LCAP Instructions.  
 
Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 73 Gustine Elementary School 
 
 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  
Programs included on the Consolidated Application: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ 
ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp 
Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/ 
 
Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

 
School Year:    2023-24     

SPSA Title Page 

 
 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
County-District-School 

(CDS) Code 
Schoolsite Council 

(SSC) Approval Date 
Local Board Approval 

Date 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Gustine Middle School         24736196103766         May 31, 2023         June 14, 2023         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        
X Comprehensive Support and Improvement        
X Targeted Support and Improvement        
X Additional Targeted Support and Improvement        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
Gustine Middle School is a comprehensive school located in the San Joaquin Valley, in Gustine, 
California. Gustine Middle School serves students 6th to 8th grade and is on a traditional school 
calendar. The current enrollment for GMS is 397 students pulling from the cities of Gustine and 
Santa Nella. Approximately 83% of the students are Hispanic, approximately 13% are white (non-
Hispanic), 40% are identified as English Learners. 84% are low socioeconomic, and all students 
obtain free meals. GMS provides a safe environment for students to learn and be a part of the 
school community. ASB is active on campus; activities to boost student and staff morale are most 
popular. There is a principal, a teacher on special assignment, and a full-time counselor. The site 
shares a School Psychologist who is on-site three days per week. A Mental Health and Behavioral 
Specialist are also available for students. The office staff consists of a secretary, attendance clerk, 
and a home/school bilingual liaison. The District employs a full-time nurse that serves all sites and a 
health aide for each school site. There are 20-certificated teachers, with a shared instructional 
coach. The classified staff consists of a campus supervisor, two aides for our SDC class, two 
instructional aides for our RSP classes, an ELD instructional aide, lunch and yard duty supervisors, 
a library clerk, a part-time custodian and two full-time custodians.  
 
We offer a comprehensive program of Common Core state Standards aligned curriculum and 
instruction. Each student is enrolled in five core content classes. In addition each student 
participates in an elective or ELD period, They also participate in an intervention or enrichment 
period. 
 
School Mission  
The mission of Gustine Middle School is to prepare and enhance student achievement through 
practicing readiness, maintaining respect and showing responsibility. 
 
School Vision 
Gustine Middle School staff will foster relationships with students based on trust and approachability 
while promoting and encouraging students to achieve excellence by demonstrating our core values: 
ready, respect, and responsibility. 
 

• Core beliefs are: Get Ready Maintain Respect Show Responsibility 
 
Our goal is to ensure that every student at GMS is a critical thinker, a collaborative learner, as well 
as a productive member of society. Gustine Middle School provides a safe, friendly, and 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

encouraging environment in which students thrive academically, socially, and emotionally. All 
students will leave GMS prepared to take on the academic, social, and emotional challenges of high 
school and have the knowledge to navigate college and career using A - G. GMS will address all 
areas of ATSI in ELA, Math, Suspensions, and Attendance. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Purpose and Description ...................................................................................................................................2 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................4 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................6 

Data Analysis ............................................................................................................................................6 

Surveys .....................................................................................................................................................6 

Classroom Observations ...........................................................................................................................6 

Analysis of Current Instructional Program .................................................................................................7 

Educational Partner Involvement ....................................................................................................................12 

Resource Inequities ........................................................................................................................................13 

School and Student Performance Data ..........................................................................................................14 

Student Enrollment ..................................................................................................................................14 

CAASPP Results .....................................................................................................................................16 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................20 

Student Population ..................................................................................................................................23 

Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................25 

Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................27 

Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................33 

Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................36 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................38 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................38 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................53 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................64 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................69 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................69 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................69 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................70 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................70 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................70 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................70 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................70 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................71 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................72 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................73 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................74 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents ....................................................................................................74 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Purpose and Description .........................................................................................................................75 

Educational Partner Involvement ............................................................................................................75 

Resource Inequities ................................................................................................................................75 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review ........................................................................................76 

Annual Review ........................................................................................................................................77 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................78 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .............................................................................................................80 

Appendix B: .............................................................................................................................................83 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...................................................................................85 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s). 
During the 2022-2023 school year, Gustine Middle School has utilized multiple means to consult 
with school stakeholders in our ongoing effort to communicate our planning process. GMS 
administered a Title 1 Needs Assessment at the beginning of the school year, held school site 
council meetings, English language Acquisition Committee (ELAC), District English Language 
Acquisition Committee (DELAC) meetings, and conducted Coffee with the Principal Meetings, to 
elicit feedback and stakeholder points of view.  All of these options allow parents a formal way to 
voice their interests and points of view.  School Site Council, ELAC, and DELAC meetings all 
happen at least quarterly.  Each meeting is open to the public, and an agenda to the public is posted 
prior to each meeting.  At each School Site Council meeting, the GMS principal delivers a report, 
and collects feedback from parents regarding what programs and services continue to be desired. 
As parents complete and submit the needs assessment, it frames the scope for site council 
meetings.  Each site council meeting agenda presents steps to be taken that will help GMS meet the 
SMART goals stated in the annual SPSA.  During the school year we surveyed parents using the 
Healthy Families Survey and the ELAC needs Survey.  The results of these surveys provided 
opportunities for meaningful student participation, promotes respect of all cultural beliefs and 
practices and treats all students with respect.  Surveys also revealed that the majority of our parents 
feel that the school enforces school rules equally and clearly communicates consequences of 
breaking rules. 
Finally, the teachers were asked to participate in an on-site Culture Survey.  These results indicated 
that a majority of teachers believe every student can be a success and feel that GMS has sufficient 
resources to create a safe campus. These conclusions, in conjunction with the data collected from 
the CDE Dashboard, helped GMS create broad goals that are directly related to academic 
improvement for all students including a special focus on our EL students, creating a sustainable 
and positive school culture, and improving the frequency with which parents are involved in the 
school and school-based activities. Once the broad goals were written, we used the information 
gathered to identify specific steps that will be taken in order to help GMS meet the goals stated in 
the SPSA.  GMS anticipates that as each step is implemented, with fidelity, the outcome will be 
indicated by successfully meeting the stated goals for the 2022-2023 SPSA. 
         
 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during 
the school-year and a summary of findings. 
Both Formal and informal observations occur throughout the year.  On a site level, informal walk-
throughs happen multiple times a week in random classrooms at random times. This allows the 
administration to have a general feel for the classroom environment and have various views of the 
teaching and learning that is happening in the classrooms.  Teachers are scheduled for formal 
observations by the site administrator, according to their contract and their years of service in the 
district and are conducted using the current district contract and forms.  New Teachers/Non Tenured 
Teachers are observed and evaluated by the site administrator, every year including two Formal 
Observations completed by February 1st.  Tenured Teachers are observed and evaluated, by the 
site administrator, two times every other year which will be completed prior to May 1st. Tenured 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Teachers in the district for 10 + years, if they have satisfactory evaluations during the 10 years, will 
be evaluated every 5 years. If unsatisfactory evaluation, then the teacher will be evaluated every 
year until a satisfactory evaluation is obtained. Tenured Teachers in the District for less than 10 
years, if received satisfactory evaluations during the years, will be evaluated every other year by the 
site administrator and if there is an unsatisfactory evaluation, the teacher will be evaluated every 
year until a satisfactory evaluation is obtained.  A teacher may be recommended in PAR if a teacher 
has received an unsatisfactory evaluation. Teachers will be given constructive feedback and 
recommendations for growth throughout all observations. Throughout the observations we have 
learned that GMS teachers have been proactive in displaying learning objectives and target learning 
goals. the majority of our teachers actively engage students using various strategies and various 
technology.  Observations have also shown that many teachers are still working on engaging 
students in their learning and practicing collaboration techniques as well as utilizing small groups to 
better differentiate learning and scaffold instruction to meet all students where they are at.  At GMS, 
we are focused on helping students to be proficient in SEL strategies and be responsible for their 
own learning. Observations are used to help administration give specific support in areas of need as 
well as guide the professional learning during the school year.         
 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these 
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional 
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on 
verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the 
status of these findings and note progress made.  Special consideration should be given to any 
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical 
programs. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
Gustine Middle School utilizes results from CAASPP and ELPAC state assessments to guide 
teaching practices.  CAASPP testing was administered during the 2021 - 2022 school year.  Initial 
assessment data was dissected at the site level and will be shared at the District Level. 
 
The Assessment information was broken down into multiple leveled groups including grade-level 
groups, subject area, language levels, ethnicity groups, and socio-economic groups. 
 
This process allows the data to identify the needs of our students and guides the instruction. In 
addition, students are given the Intermittent Benchmark Assessments (IBA) throughout the year to 
further direct instructional practices of the site. The IBA's allow students to experiment with the 
assessment tools as well as understand the context in which they are taking the assessments.  The 
IBA's are scored and the data is used to guide the instruction to better prepare students and to 
confirm that they are learning in a high rigor environment. Information from these assessments are 
further explored through our PLC meetings to analyze data and plan instruction for the next 
instructional cycle.  Learning targets are set, teaching practices discussed, and reteaching plans are 
made during these meetings. Data is looked at on an individual student basis to help with individual 
student achievement. 
 
 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction 
(EPC) 
In addition to the IBA's our students complete three iReady Diagnostic Assessments throughout the 
year.  The initial assessment is given in the middle of the first quarter, towards the end of the second 
quarter, and prior to the end of the fourth quarter.  The information gathered is used to help teachers 
differentiate and guide their instructions for all students.  As a site, we are tasked to be sure all 
identified essential standards are addressed and the pacing of the instruction is such that all 
essential standards will be covered by the end of the school year. This information is also used to 
identify skills in which students have a deficit and offer extra support, intervention, after school 
academies, and tutoring. 
 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
All certificated employees in a teaching or services positions hold a legally recognized certificate or 
credential. 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional 
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
All teachers at GMS are highly qualified who use SBE adopted instructional materials with 
opportunities from professional development.  GMS teachers have had multiple professional 
development opportunities addressing Study Sync, CPM Math, National Geographic, and the Twig 
science curriculum. In addition, GMS teachers have had professional development on standard 
based grading and on iReady, which is our district-wide Benchmark Assessments. There had been a 
multitude of Professional Development sessions regarding Technology and the technological tools to 
use with blended and distance learning. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional 
needs (ESEA) 
Staff development for 2022-2023 focused on assisting teachers in addressing the struggles students 
have in regards to accessing the necessary grade level standards.  Teachers address multiple 
standards throughout the year but focus most intently on the site identified essential content 
standards that have been collaboratively identified by GMS teachers. The professional development 
in CPM Math, and Science assists teachers in gaining new skills and deepening their knowledge of 
the grade level standards that they are teaching. This information supports our teachers in their 
instruction to meet the needs of our students where they are at as well as scaffold the information to 
our struggling students so they can access grade level information. The professional development 
assist the teacher in understanding the functions and tools of the assessments so they can teach 
our students the needed skills to access the test and accurately share the knowledge they have 
gained in the core content areas. The alignment of staff development across all areas will allow 
teachers to meet and address the needs of the whole child.  Enhancing students skills in social and 
emotional learning and language development will provide the students the ability to navigate 
difficult situations in life. 
 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional 
coaches) (EPC) 
Gustine Middle School is committed to on going instructional assistance and support for our 
teachers. With multiple ways of providing ongoing assistance and supports, GMS utilizes an 
instructional coach to support all of our teachers as well an additional layer of an induction program 
for our beginning teachers. In addition we contract with our county office to utilize our PBIS, PLC, 
Science, and Math experts. Recommendations, workshops, future visits, and observations of our 
instruction will guide our teachers to use best practices and will support them in the evidenced 
based research. 
 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades 
nine through twelve) (EPC) 
Gustine Middle School participates in weekly Professional Learning Communities. This is time where 
teachers meet by content and grade level teams to analyze the data collected from their instruction.  
Our teachers collaborate to monitor instruction, enhance students learning, improve instruction when 
students are not learning the identified essential standards and how to move students forward when 
they do understand the information and are willing to broaden and expand their knowledge. This 
work is done on a weekly basis and and is cyclical in nature.  Once a data cycle is completed the 
whole process begins again focusing on the next targeted learning objective derived from the district 
identified essential standard.  Teachers must also use the data of our students to determine 
strategies for interventions to support our students so that our students will succeed. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
The importance of our Professional Learning Communities is to ensure that through identifying 
essential standards as well as the specific learning targets within that standards, students are 
exposed to grade-level curriculum, instruction, and materials. Following this process ensures 
students are receiving appropriate instruction and we work towards guarantying students have 
mastered the standards before they leave their grade level.  The process also includes creating 
common formative assessments to compare data across the grade level using inter-reliability 
standards.  Teachers collaborate on the most effective practices used and share information with 
their peers.  Students who did not master the information are re-taught in a different way and 
students who mastered the information are pushed to go deeper into the standard. In addition to 
working with their grade level and content team, teachers are also given the opportunity to work 
vertically with their peers in the above and lower grade levels. Work with peers cross-curricular 
ensures that students have the opportunity to learn the information in a variety of ways. Professional 
Learning Communities occur throughout the year and will continue to use the lens of Hattie's Visible 
Learning work throughout the 2022-2023 school year. 
 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) 
(EPC) 
Students receive core Tier I instruction throughout the day. Adherence to the recommended amount 
of instructional minutes is reviewed annually at the beginning of the year by site leadership in a 
review of master schedules. 
 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention 
courses (EPC) 
Site and District Leadership work together with teachers to ensure that all students have adequate 
access to Tier I core instruction in all content areas. Targeted intervention (Tier II) are provided 
within the school day through intervention time as well as offering after school extension time. 
 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
All students at Gustine Middle School have standards based materials available and accessible at 
all times for all core subjects. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, 
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
In addition to Gustine Middle School utilizing the intervention pieces of the adopted, standards-
based aligned curriculum housed within Study Sync, targeted specific needs are assessed and 
addressed within the iReady program that all students use throughout the year.  Most significantly, a 
growing number of teachers are gaining the ability to target specific needs by differentiating and 
utilizing small groups and AVID tutors in during class. 
 
All students at Gustine Middle School use standard-based instructional materials in all subject areas. 
A description of our Core Program standards based materials and in-person instructional minutes 
include: 
ELA -  Essential Standards, Study Sync, novels, and iReady. 
MATH -  Essential Standards, CPM Math, Number Talks, iReady Math, Assistments Math, Fluency 
Practice, etc. 
ELD - ELD Integration happens throughout the day as well as a Designated ELD Instructional 
period.  Content-based ELA focus is on language targets and domains (listening, speaking, reading, 
writing, comprehension)  Additionally, an Instructional bilingual aide supporting our EL students at 
1st and 2nd level. 
History - National Geographic curriculum supporting ELA Essential Standards 
Science - NGSS focused lessons, Twig Science 
PE - For the 2022-23 school year, was set with the guidelines prescribed to keep students healthy 
and safe.  By the end of the year students were engaged in physical education. 
 
 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Gustine Middle School provides an ELD Coordinator who provides instructional support for students 
in 6th through 8th grade as well as an instructional support para-professional who assists  identified 
at-promise students in the general education classrooms. We also provide an Academic Coach who 
provides coaching, demonstration lessons, and planning to support teachers. 
 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
At Gustine Middle School we incorporate the use of Professional Learning Communities with other 
evidence-based practices to raise student achievement.  Currently, we have an Academic Coach 
who assists teachers in improving their instructional practices and RSP teachers have committed to 
and began a push-in/ co-teaching model to support our students with disabilities allowing students 
more general education classroom time, more exposure to grade-level standards as well as less 
time out of the classroom. We have also offered after school with a learning focusing on specific 
learning standards for our 8th grade students and teachers will utilize an intervention time within 
their periods. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students 
(ESEA) 
The families at Gustine Middle School have multiple resources available to support social-emotional 
and academic needs. To encourage communication from our families, the administration hosts 
Coffee with the Principal each month. This is time to reflect on what is happening at the site and 
address any concerns that parents may have and present information on topics of need for our 
parents. During these monthly meetings, we also offer various workshops to parents to help 
increase engagement between parents and their students as well as parents and the school.  We 
have a Spanish speaking Community Liaison available at each meeting to assist in translating 
information to our Spanish speaking parents. The school has a full-time counselor for social-
emotional support and a district psychologist 2.5 days of the week. Gustine Middle School 
participates in Parent Information Nights hosted by our school counselors.  GMS hostess the County 
after school program "Assets" who serves students from our site. 
 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and 
students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs 
(5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
Gustine Middle School offers various ways of gaining involvement from parents, community 
representatives, all personnel to evaluate the programs offered at the site.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, input gathered during and planning core programs and supplemental services such as;  
Parent Compact which is included in the Parent/Student Handbook, School Site Council, our English 
Language Acquisition Committee, District English Language Acquisition Committee, our time at 
Coffee with the Principal, and meetings surrounding the LCAP process.  Gustine Middle School has 
a Parent Teacher Club that is rebuilding and plan to meet regularly, conduct fundraisers, and 
supports for our students. 
 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Gustine Middle School supports the needs of English Learners, students who need academic 
support, and at promise students through allocations from multiple funding sources such as LCFF, 
Title I, and Title II funds.  With these funds we are able to support students through an Instructional 
Coach, an EL Para Professional, Academic Tutoring, county level Academic coaching. 
 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Gustine Middle School received funds to support student needs through the LCFF, Title I, and 
additional funds. 

 
Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The school met with the Leadership Team and the site Instructional Coach as part of the SPSA 
process. Meeting again as a team we received input from the School Site Council and our ELAC 
committee. In addition, input was gathered from stakeholders through Coffee with the Principal, 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Parent/Student surveys, Back to School, Open House, and community LCAP Meetings. All 
discussions/suggestions were included in the minutes and then included in the goals/actions for the 
2023-2024 SPSA draft. The final update was provided at the School Site Council meeting on May 
23, 2023 for approval.         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
N/A         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6        136 122 140 

Grade 7        129 142 123 

Grade 8        141 123 142 

Total Enrollment        406 387 405 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The student enrollment at GMS has decreased for 21- 22.        

2. The largest Student Group is our Hispanic population at 88.3% which is an increase of 0.56%.        

3. The average enrollment is 400 students        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners        135 132 139 33.30% 34.1% 34.3% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        135 129 129 33.30% 33.3% 31.9% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        1   0.7%   
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of English Learners increased by 0.2%        

2. The number of Fluent English Proficient students decreased by 1.4%        

3. The number of Reclassified Fluent English Proficient students decreased by 0.3%        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6 135 127  0 124  0 124  0.0 97.6  

Grade 7 124 143  0 141  0 141  0.0 98.6  

Grade 8 141 127  0 125  0 125  0.0 98.4  

All Grades 400 397  0 390  0 390  0.0 98.2  
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
 
 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6  2445.
9 

  4.84   13.71   26.61   54.84  

Grade 7  2502.
2 

  8.51   29.79   17.73   43.97  

Grade 8  2502.
3 

  4.80   20.80   32.00   42.40  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  6.15   21.79   25.13   46.92  
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  6.45   40.32   53.23  

Grade 7  9.93   54.61   35.46  

Grade 8  12.90   49.19   37.90  

All Grades  9.77   48.33   41.90  
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6  2.42   40.32   57.26  

Grade 7  10.64   55.32   34.04  

Grade 8  4.00   49.60   46.40  

All Grades  5.90   48.72   45.38  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  8.87   62.10   29.03  

Grade 7  6.38   75.18   18.44  

Grade 8  4.03   76.61   19.35  

All Grades  6.43   71.47   22.11  
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  8.06   61.29   30.65  

Grade 7  14.89   54.61   30.50  

Grade 8  8.80   65.60   25.60  

All Grades  10.77   60.26   28.97  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall writing score for all students is at 5.9% at above standards but 10.6% was the percentage above 

standards for 7th grade.        
2. A total of 77.9 % of all students are above standards or near standards for listening.        

3. 46.92 % of all students are at standards not met, The percentage decreases as the students progress from 6th to 
8th grade.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6 135 127  0 124  0 124  0.0 97.6  

Grade 7 124 143  0 141  0 141  0.0 98.6  

Grade 8 141 127  0 124  0 124  0.0 97.6  

All Grades 400 397  0 389  0 389  0.0 98.0  

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
  

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 6  2416.
7 

  2.42   4.03   21.77   71.77  

Grade 7  2465.
6 

  5.67   10.64   32.62   51.06  

Grade 8  2450.
0 

  0.00   5.65   18.55   75.81  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  2.83   6.94   24.68   65.55  
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  0.81   20.16   79.03  

Grade 7  7.09   41.13   51.77  

Grade 8  0.81   39.52   59.68  

All Grades  3.08   33.93   62.98  
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  0.81   35.48   63.71  

Grade 7  4.96   56.74   38.30  

Grade 8  2.42   45.97   51.61  

All Grades  2.83   46.53   50.64  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 6  3.23   54.03   42.74  

Grade 7  4.26   60.28   35.46  

Grade 8  0.00   66.94   33.06  

All Grades  2.57   60.41   37.02  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Concepts and Procedures was 3.08 % above standards for all students, however it was the 7th grade students who 

had a 7.08% above standards in that area.        
2. Overall % of the 7th grade students performed higher than the 6th and 8th grade students.        

3. 9.77 % of all students exceeds or at Standards Met for GMS.  Changes must be made to address 90.23 % that 
have not met the standards.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    1517.1 1516.9  1519.5 1508.9  1514.3 1524.5  51 45  

   7    1543.5 1530.1  1554.0 1521.9  1532.4 1537.9  38 50  

   8    1535.2 1542.4  1529.9 1536.5  1539.9 1547.9  45 41  

All Grades                 134 136  
 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    19.61 8.89  31.37 42.22  33.33 33.33  15.69 15.56  51 45  

   7    18.42 10.00  39.47 50.00  36.84 26.00  5.26 14.00  38 50  

   8    11.11 19.51  37.78 46.34  37.78 24.39  13.33 9.76  45 41  

All Grades        16.42 12.50  35.82 46.32  35.82 27.94  11.94 13.24  134 136  
 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    39.22 20.00  37.25 53.33  13.73 20.00  9.80 6.67  51 45  

   7    34.21 16.00  39.47 58.00  21.05 16.00  5.26 10.00  38 50  

   8    26.67 26.83  40.00 51.22  24.44 14.63  8.89 7.32  45 41  

All Grades        33.58 20.59  38.81 54.41  19.40 16.91  8.21 8.09  134 136  
 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    5.88 2.22  21.57 24.44  33.33 46.67  39.22 26.67  51 45  

   7    0.00 8.00  28.95 22.00  47.37 52.00  23.68 18.00  38 50  

   8    4.44 17.07  33.33 29.27  33.33 39.02  28.89 14.63  45 41  

All Grades        3.73 8.82  27.61 25.00  37.31 46.32  31.34 19.85  134 136  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    23.53 17.78  50.98 71.11  25.49 11.11  51 45  

   7    18.42 8.00  55.26 72.00  26.32 20.00  38 50  

   8    8.89 9.76  68.89 73.17  22.22 17.07  45 41  

All Grades        17.16 11.76  58.21 72.06  24.63 16.18  134 136  
 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    64.71 31.11  29.41 64.44  5.88 4.44  51 45  

   7    78.95 46.00  21.05 46.00  0.00 8.00  38 50  

   8    51.11 51.22  44.44 39.02  4.44 9.76  45 41  

All Grades        64.18 42.65  32.09 50.00  3.73 7.35  134 136  
 

Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    11.76 6.67  33.33 37.78  54.90 55.56  51 45  

   7    10.53 10.00  42.11 56.00  47.37 34.00  38 50  

   8    15.56 19.51  33.33 34.15  51.11 46.34  45 41  

All Grades        12.69 11.76  35.82 43.38  51.49 44.85  134 136  
 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   6    11.76 15.56  80.39 73.33  7.84 11.11  51 45  

   7    2.63 14.00  89.47 74.00  7.89 12.00  38 50  

   8    2.22 4.88  84.44 85.37  13.33 9.76  45 41  

All Grades        5.97 11.76  84.33 77.21  9.70 11.03  134 136  
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Levels 4, 2, and 1 all decreased from 20-21 to 21-22 school year.  Percentage for Level 3 increased by 10.5 % for 

overall score.        
2. The Speaking Domain had the highest percentage of  42.65% well developed in 21-22, a decrease of 21.53 % from 

20-21 school year.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

3. 58.82% of all students are Level 3 and Level 4,  How many can be moved to be RFEP?        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
For the past two years, many state and federal accountability requirements were waived or adjusted due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on LEAs, schools, and students. Beginning with the 2021-22 school year, the requirements to hold 
schools and districts accountable for student outcomes has returned with the release of the 2022 California School 
Dashboard (Dashboard). The Every Student Succeeds Act is requiring all states to determine schools eligible for support. 
Similarly, under state law, Assembly Bill (AB) 130, which was signed into law in 2021, mandates the return of the Dashboard 
using only current year performance data to determine LEAs for support. Therefore, to meet this state requirement, only the 
2021-22 school year data will be reported on the 2022 Dashboard for state indicators. (Data for Change [or the difference 
from prior year] and performance colors will not be reported.) 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2021-22 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

387         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Gustine Middle School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

87.1         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

34.1         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

0.3         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2021-22 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         132 34.1 

Foster Youth         1 0.3 

Homeless         4 1.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         337 87.1 

Students with Disabilities         53 13.7 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American           

American Indian           

Asian         2 0.5 

Filipino         3 0.8 

Hispanic         344 88.9 

Two or More Races         7 1.8 

Pacific Islander           

White         28 7.2 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine Middle School has a large population of Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students at 87.1%.         

2. Gustine Middle School has a minimal amount of diversity as 88.9% are Hispanic, with the remaining percentage is 
divided between all other student groups.         

3. Foster Youth and Homeless make up 1.3% of the population when combined.         

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2022 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Low        

Mathematics 

 
Very Low        

English Learner Progress 

 
Low        

Academic Engagement 

Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Very High        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Very High        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine Middle School has a very high suspension rate.        

2. Attendance at Gustine Middle School  is poor, as the indicator on the dashboard shows a very high absenteeism        

3. The dashboard indicates that English Language Arts and Math scores are low and very low respectively.        

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Very Low        
3        

Low        
1        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

64.9 points below standard        
364 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

107.9 points below standard         
152 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

4 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

73.2 points below standard         
319 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

136.9 points below standard         
50 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Low         

69.0 points below standard         
324 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

45.0 points below standard         
26 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

137.9 points below standard         

113 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

21.2 points below standard         

39 Students        

English Only 

57.6 points below standard         

120 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Socially economically disadvantaged students scored 8,3 points more when compared to all students.        

2. Our current English Learners doubled in points compared to all students, 137. 9 points for EL compared to 64.9 for 
all students.        

3. English only students are 57.6 points below standard        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathamtics Equity Report 

Very Low        
4        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very Low         

123.1 points below standard         
363 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

159.5 points below standard         
152 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

4 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

130.5 points below standard         
318 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very Low         

186.2 points below standard         
50 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Very Low         

125.8 points below standard         
324 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

7 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

115.2 points below standard         
25 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

187.1 points below standard         
113 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

79.3 points below standard         
39 Students        

English Only 

117.4 points below standard         
119 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall math performance for all groups of students were very low.        

2. Reclassified students performed 38,1 points below standard compared to English Only students.        

3. 69.7 points is the difference between the current English Learners compared to English Only students.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
This section provides information on the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language 
proficiency or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
Low         

41.2 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 131 Students          
Performance Level: 2        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

22.9%         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

35.9%         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

3.1%         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

38.2%         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 15.3 % of EL students progressed compared to EL who decreased.        

2. 41.2% are making progress towards English Language Proficiency, 58.8 % not making progress.        

3. How many of the 22.9% decrease were from Level 3?        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
College/Career data provides information on whether high school students are prepared for success after graduation based 
on measures like graduation rate, performance on state tests, and college credit courses.  College/Career data was not 
reported in 2022. 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. N/A        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Very High        
4        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very High         

42.2% Chronically Absent         
405 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very High         

49.7% Chronically Absent         
147 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very High         

42.5% Chronically Absent         
353 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very High         

60.7% Chronically Absent         
56 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

5 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Very High         

40.8% Chronically Absent         
355 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

42.9% Chronically Absent         
14 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

62.1% Chronically Absent         
29 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall absenteeism are all very high in all student groups.        

2. Students with Disabilities absenteeism is 18.2 points higher than Socioeconomically disadvantaged and 18.5 
compared to all students        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Very Low        Low        Medium        High        Very High        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Very High        
5        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very High         

12.2% suspended at least one day         
410 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very High         

14.1% suspended at least one day         
149 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very High         

12.4% suspended at least one day         
354 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very High         

22% suspended at least one day         
59 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

5 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Very High         

12.3% suspended at least 
one day         

357 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

6.7% suspended at least one 
day         

15 Students        

Pacific Islander White     

 
Very High         

12.9% suspended at least 
one day         

31 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All Student Groups were very high on suspension rates.        

2. Students with disabilities were suspended 9.8% more when compared with all students.        

3. EL students were 1.8% more as compared to all students.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Academic Achievement          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college and career ready 
by providing opportunities for access to a broad course of study, academic counseling and intervention supports, 
technology and research based curriculum, provided by a high quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local 
data.         

 

Goal 1 
For the 2022-2023 School year: 
1.1 The percentage of Gustine Middle School students meeting or exceeding ELA standards will 
increase 15% as measured by State and/or local assessments. 
1.2 The percentage of Gustine Middle School students meeting or exceeding Math standards will 
increase 15% as measured by State and/or local assessments. 
1.3 The percentage of Gustine Middle School English Learners meeting or exceeding ELA 
standards will increase 15% as measured by State and/or local assessments. 
1.4 The percentage of Gustine Middle School English Learners meeting or exceeding Math 
standards will increase 15% as measured by State and/or local assessments. 
          

 
Identified Need 
Many GMS students struggle with literacy and math skills. Our goal is intended to increase the 
performance outcomes for each GMS student in the areas of reading comprehension, math 
comprehension, and language fluency. We determined this need based on the data output from the 
CDE Dashboard, CAASPP Testing results, ELPAC Testing results, individual student scores on 
iReady, and parental input. 
The targeted subgroup of English Language Learners, will be addressed in the focus for increased 
academic achievement. The California Dashboard indicates that EL students performed at a lower 
rate than the rate of all students. 
 
GUSD has a large population of English learner students.  According to the CDE Dashboard, many 
of our current EL and LTEL students are performing multiple levels below grade-level standards. We 
have identified a need to target our instruction towards meeting the academic needs of all English 
Learners. Where GMS needs to continue to focus future attention is in connection to improving our 
commitment to integrated EL instruction for all children within all classes. We assert that this 
additionally focused commitment will in turn help all EL students make gains in terms of improved 
learning outcomes across all academic disciplines. We determined this need based on data from the 
CDE Dashboard, CAASPP Testing results, individual student scores on iReady, and parental input. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

*CAASPP ELA and Math 
Scores 
 

 *Met/Exceeded Standards   
ELA                               Math 

 *Assuming that GMS meets its 
performance SMART goal for 
ELA performance in 2020, 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

*English Learner ELA Scores 
 
*English Learner Math Scores 
        

2018-2019 Percent              
2018-2019 Percentages 
6th      25.28%                       
6th   10.69 % 
7th      28.29%                       
7th   16.44 % 
8th      25.94%                       
8th     9.55 % 
 
*English Learner Students: 
1.65 % of students performed 
at a Meets or Exceeds level in 
the 2019 Math CAASPP 
 
*English Learner Students: 
5.83 % of students performed 
at a Meets or Exceeds level in 
the 2019 ELA CAASPP 
 
 

the modified, yet continued 
SMART goal for May 2021 will 
be to continue increasing 
overall performance growth 
numbers by 5%. 
6th grade=30.28% 
7th grade=33.29% 
8th grade=30.94% 
 
*Assuming that GMS meets its 
performance SMART goal for 
Math performance in 2020, 
the modified, yet continued 
SMART goal for May 2021 will 
be to continue increasing 
overall performance growth 
numbers by 5%. 
6th grade = 15.69 % 
7th grade = 21.44 % 
8th grade = 14.55 % 
 
*English Learner Students:  
11.83 % of students performed 
at a Meets or Exceeds level in 
the 2021 ELA CAASPP 
 
*English Learner Students:   
6.65 % of students performed 
at a Meets or Exceeds level in 
the 2021 Math CAASPP 
 
There has been a decrease in 
percentage based on the 
IReady scores.  2022 - 2023 
CAASPP scores would more 
than likely decrease as well.  
The CAASPP scores should be 
adjusted so that the continued 
5% gains expected would be 
reflected on the 2023 - 2022. 
 

GMS will use 2022-2023 
iReady Diagnostic 3 Scores to 
evaluate with goals have been 
met. 
 
        

 2020-2021 iReady Diagnostic 
3. The percentages below are 
students that meet or 
exceeded standard in the 
indicated area. 
 
ELA Scores - 28%                              
Math Scores  - 17% 

 All students will show an 
increase of 15% on their 
iReady Diagnostic 3. The 
percentages below are 
students that meet or 
exceeded standard in the 
indicated area. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

6th 22%                                            
6th   22% 
7th 28%                                            
7th   17% 
8th 28%                                            
8th   15% 
 
EL ELA Scores - 28%                         
EL Math Scores - 17% 
6th 4%                                             
6th   10% 
7th 5%                                               
7th   5% 
8th 7%                                               
8th   15% 
 
2021-2022 iReady Diagnostic 
3. The percentages below are 
students that have met or 
exceeded standard in the 
indicated area. 
 
ELA Scores - 22%                               
Math Scores - 18% 
6th     21%                                              
6th - 17% 
7th     26%                                              
7th - 24% 
8th     20%                                              
8th - 13% 
 
EL ELA Scores - 22%                           
EL  Math Scores   18% 
6th -  2%                                                 
6th - 4% 
7th -  0 %                                                
7th - 4% 
8th - 0%                                                  
8th - 3% 
 
2022-2023 iReady Diagnostic 
3. The percentages below are 
students that have met or 
exceeded standard in the 
indicated area. 
 
ELA Scores -                                
Math Scores - 
6th                                                  
6th - 

ELA Scores - 32%                    
Math Scores  - 19.5% 
6th 25%                                            
6th   25% 
7th 32%                                            
7th   19.5% 
8th 32%                                            
8th   17% 
 
EL ELA Scores - 32%                         
EL Math Scores - 19.5% 
6th 4.6%                                     
6th   11.5% 
7th 5.75%                                          
7th   5.75% 
8th 8%                                               
8th   17% 
 
All students for the 2021 - 2022 
show a decrease of 6% on the 
ELA and an increase of 1% for 
the math.  EL students 
decreased significantly on both 
ELA and Math. 
2022 - 2023 
ELA Scores -                    Math 
Scores  - 
6th                                           
6th 
7th                                           
7th 
8th                                            
8th 
 
EL ELA Scores              EL 
Math Scores 
6th                                     6th 
7th                                     7th 
8th                                       8th 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

7th                                                   
7th - 
8th                                                  
8th - 
 
EL ELA Scores -               EL  
Math Scores 
6th -                                                 
6th - 
7th -                                                 
7th - 
8th -                                                 
8th - 
 
 
 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS Teachers will continue to meet weekly in their Professional Learning Communities and grade-
level collaboration days (with substitute coverage) to disaggregate data which in return will drive 
instruction that will be planned and organized to meet our student's needs. Additionally, substitute 
teachers will be used to release classroom teachers to review data, plan instruction, articulate 
between grade levels, and refine pacing calendars and curriculum.  Additionally, Science and 
Social studies will continue to integrate ELA  Essential Standards within their instruction as a focus 
on a district recognized Critical Essential standard and teachers will ensure student exposure to 
CAASPP assessments tools and strategies by giving a monthly identified standards based IAB.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10,500         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Co-teaching Conference, AVID, MCOE 
trainings, Solution Tree Leadership, and others 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Grade level collaboration time during the day 
(substitute cost). 

4,000         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
PLC Lead Stipends 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to participate in professional development and consulting service opportunities 
as individuals and as goals for specific grade levels and teams. Professional development shall 
meet the needs of our teachers as they plan and adjust instruction to meet the needs of all of our 
students, especially our specific sub groups. Topics may including but are not limited to PLC, 
Grading and Assessments, Intervention Strategies, Social and Emotional Learning, and English 
Language Learning. Opportunities may include; site, district-wide, county, and state and out of 
state Professional Development/ Conferences where substitute teachers may be used to release 
classroom teachers to review data, plan instruction, articulate between grade levels, and refine 
pacing calendars and curriculum.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3,000         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Monies will be utilized for professional 
development for staff who work with students. A 
focus on PD will be refining our PLC process, 
English Language Development Strategies, and 
curriculum development. 

15,000         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Professional development opportunities will be 
made available as the need arises or as 
opportunities present themselves including but 
not limited to Co-Teaching conference, AVID, 
MCOE trainings, Solution Tree, or others. 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to fund a Bilingual Aide to provide support and intervention for our students at a 
level 1 and 2 and struggling EL readers.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
29,000         Title I 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Bilingual Aide 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to fund an Instructional Coach to support teacher instruction with focus on 
English Language Development strategies and improved first instruction.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
32,000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Instructional Coach (25%) 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will offer targeted Tier II intervention in ELA, Math and ELD standards to identified students 
within the school day.  Intervention sessions may also occur after school, before school, during 
lunches, or during Saturday Braves Boosts. Interventions will be focused on students who are not 
meeting or exceeding identified Essential Standards on the State and Local assessments, who are 
not receiving an overall GPA of 2.0 or above, and English Language learners who are working 
towards reclassification. Additionally, GMS will continue to provide a site-based intervention 
targeting the whole student through academics and social emotional services.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
8,000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Afterschool Intervention Teachers 

3,000         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Supplies and Digital Licenses 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide 8th Grade students opportunity to take the PSAT for College and Career preparation        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,300         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
PSAT Tests 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide an STEM Coordinator and well as STEM materials and supplies to support academic 
growth towards College and Career Readiness (Amazon Future Engineers)        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,200         Title I 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

STEM Coordinator Stipend 
5,000         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
STEM Materials and Supplies 

3,000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
STEM training and supplies 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to fund a library clerk who will work with students and teachers to increase 
literacy and support by supporting teachers with necessary resources, assisting students to enable 
them to receive digital book access, and encouraging students with reading incentives.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
17,000         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Library Clerk - Reading Incentives 

1,000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Reading Incentives 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase technology, supplemental instructional classroom supplies, alternative seating choices, 
and materials as need to focus on Essential Standards. Materials purchased will enhance ability to 
work in an environment that is comfortable and conducive to student learning, relevant, and based 
on research based instructional practices that will enhance students' learning as we continue to 
teach in a blended model to improve student performance on local and state assessments.  Smart 
Boards, Chromebooks, Laptops, etc. that would provide access for all students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
50,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Classroom Supplies/materials/technology 

1,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Digital licenses 

30,000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Alternative Seating and collaboration tables 

32,300         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Technology, Smart Boards, Chromebooks, 
Laptops 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide digital reading choices for classrooms as needed allowing access to all students through a 
digital library.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Digital licenses 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue to fund an ELD Coordinator. GMS administration and EL Coordinator will construct a 
system for improved instruction for EL students as well as provide staff with professional 
development focusing on English Learners geared towards maximizing instructional outcomes for 
all EL students in the general education (integrated) setting. (ie, Soluciones Conference, ELD 
training, CABE, Assessment Conference, and others) Establish an EL Committee that will meet at 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

least quarterly and have the opportunity to have collaboration days (with substitute)  to 
disaggregate student data as it pertains to student needs and student success. Data will drive 
instruction to ensure that student needs are met and best practices in the five (5) domains for 
effective instruction and are intentionally targeted for EL students will be used to continue 
incorporation of elements of formal language acquisition within an integrated setting.  The CDE 
dashboard indicated significant improvement for EL students due to improved EL instruction during 
designated EL time.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
20,000         Title I 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Professional development opportunities will be 
made available as the need arises or as 
opportunities present themselves.  To ensure 
EL best instructional practices are being 
implemented system-wide in all GMS  
classrooms. 

6,000         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
EL Committee collaboration time during the day 
(substitute cost and supplies). 

1,500         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
ELD Coordinator will place students according 
to ELPAC results, attend and participate in 
ELAC and DELAC meetings, organize and 
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) 
attend EL PD opportunities, and organize re-
designation ceremony. 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students with a focus on English Learners.        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Daily walk through and observations followed up with instructional feedback.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Digital License 

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS for ATSI are 
1.  EL students in English Language Arts (107.9 points below standard ) 
2   EL  students in Mathematics (159.5 points below standard) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Strategies and activities that will be used to support GMS students who were identified for ATSI for 
the following student groups will be as followed; 
1.  EL students in ELA will have an intervention period on Tuesday and Wednesdays.  Teachers 
will meet on PLC Mondays to review data and strategically plan to meet the needs of our English 
Learners in ELA.  ELD teachers will use their ELD curriculum to strengthen EL students 
comprehension on meeting ELD standards in the areas of English Language Arts. ELA teachers 
will also be trained on ERWC which has an ELD portion that would provide our students the 
needed support on navigating and scoring high in ELA. 
2.  EL students in Mathematics, Teachers will use the as much realia so that EL students can grasp 
mathmatical concepts when dealing with real world problems.  Manipulatives for students to use 
concrete representations on solving mathmatical principles.  There will also be math intervention 
periods on Thursday and Fridays that should be designed and planned on meeting the needs 
where students struggle with mathmatical standards and practices. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3000         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies, Realia, Manipulatives, for ELA and 
Math 

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS for ATSI are 
1.  Low income students in English Language Arts(73.2 points below standard) 
2.  Low income students in Mathematics (130.5 points below standard) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Strategies and activities that will be used to support GMS students who were identified for ATSI for 
the following student groups will be as followed; 
1.  Low income students in ELA will have an intervention period on Tuesday and Wednesdays.  
The basic needs of a student must be met in order for a student to fully engage in their learning.  
Our health aide can check on students who are struggling with health issues to get medical 
support.  Counselor, Psychologist, and mental health clinicians for students who are struggling with 
mental health or with issues that makes it difficult for students to concentrate.  Meals, clothing, and 
basic necessites such as school and learning supplies will be provided for students who need them 
to proceed in their learning. 
2.  Low income students in Mathematics have an intervention period from Thursday and Friday.  
Students will recieve basic needs of medical, mental health, and even a meal from the cafeteria so 
that their basic needs are met for them to concentrate on their mathmatical concepts and practices.  
Learning supplies, manipulatives, will be provided so that students have concrete representations 
to make sense of abstract and difficult mathematical concepts. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3000         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies Realia, Manipulatives for ELA and 
Math 

Strategy/Activity 15 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS for ATSI are 
1. Students with disabilities in English Language Arts (136.9 points below standard) 
2. Students with disabilities in Mathematics (186.2 points below standard) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Strategies and activities that will be used to support GMS students who were identified for ATSI for 
the following student groups will be as followed; 
1.  Students with disabilites in ELA will receive the accomodations and modifications that are 
prescribed in their individual Education Plan.  Co-Teaching strategies are being taught to case 
managers and instructional aides on how to work with classroom teachers so that what is being 
taught is understood.  Push-in support allows for students to recieve services and support as each 
student learns in their classroom environment.  Students with disabilities will also be utilizing UFLI 
to build their reading skills and reading comprehension. 
2.  Students with disabilities in Mathematics will also receive the accomodation and modifications 
that are prescribed in their indiviual Education Plan.  In addition to the co-teaching support and the 
push-in support, students will be able to access realia and manipulatives. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

Strategy/Activity 16 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS for ATSI are 
1.  Hispanic students in Mathematics (125.8 points below standard) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
The strategies and activites that would be provided for our hispanic students on accessing the 
mathematical concepts would be the use of rosetta stone for the stones who have limited English.  
My tutor also has a tutor available 24 hours everyday with a bilingual tutor.  The use of 
manipulatives for students in the classroom.  There is also the support and training provided to our 
math teachers from MCOE as well as the trainings provided by CPM.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies, Realia, Manipulitives for Math 

Strategy/Activity 17 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All 6th Grade Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
All 6th grade students will have the opportunity to attend an outdoor school / camp that would allow 
for the students to learn the how the academic disciplines of math, science, history and science all 
mix together in a class building experience.  Students will study the lives of animals, habitats, 
California history, and even how the weather and stars are different in a outdoor school camp 
experience.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
50,000         Title I 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Outdoor School / Camp 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
During the 2022-23 school year, CAASPP was administered and data will be available.  
Instructional practices that were targeted will show improvement and GMS will be utilizing other 
means of measuring progress.  The PLC process continued and will continue as it refines the 
teaching strategies, common formative assessments, interventions, enrichment opportunities, 
curriculum, and pacing of the curriculum. Additional professional development will continue this 
school year to ensure staff continue to keep up to date in researched based effective strategies, 
build on English Language development strategies, and tighten up the PLC process for improved 
and focused first instruction. 
This will be the first year to provide mandatory interventions during the school day, before school, 
after school.  The introduction of new curriculum from CPM, ERWC and Twig can make it 
challenging for teachers, however training is provided so that teachers have a clear idea of 
implementation and presentation of the curriculum. 
        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Due to COVID -19 and school closures, implementation of many strategies and activities were not 
feasible. This year we will follow plans as described as we will have the majority of our students 
back on campus. 
GMS worked the work with ongoing professional development geared towards maximizing 
instructional outcomes for all English Learners in the general education (integrated) setting and 
refining grading and assessment system.   These PD services surround best practices in the five 
(5) domains for effective instruction, and are intentionally targeted for EL students to continue 
incorporating elements of formal language acquisition within an integrated setting.  PD had sound 
evidence-based practices that were transferred to the classroom. 
        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Majority of the changes occurring within this goals are previous goals being combined and 
presented with a focus on English Language Learners. As our PLC's continue first instruction 
improvement our professional development around EL learners, curricular content, grading and 
assessment, and best practices will continue. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

The 2022-2023 Goals will be 15% increase in CAASPP EL in ELA and Math. Targeted intervention, 
and differentiated instruction will fall during the school day will be assigned to students who fall 
below a specific threshold. 
        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Positive School Climate and Culture          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe facilities, student 
support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra and co-curricular activities as 
measured by state and local data. 
 
         

 

Goal 2 
Reflect a positive and safe school climate by maintaining a regularly attended, positive and safe 
learning environment for all students with an overall decline in school wide absenteeism of 1% and a 
decrease in suspension rates by 3% by focusing on focused SEL, PBIS, counseling support , 
academic interventions, and ASB activities.          

 
Identified Need 
GMS suspension rate is higher than the district and county averages. It is important that GMS 
utilizes other means of correction in order to keep kids in school and learning. Although our 
attendance is consistent we will not stop improving until we are maintaining 100% attendance.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Attendance Reports - Maintain 
97% or higher monthly 
attendance rates and offer 
monthly rewards.        

 Currently our attendance rate 
is 96.5% (2018-2019 data) Due 
to COVID 2019-2020 data is 
not comparable as school was 
closed in mid-march. 

 GMS is will improve 
attendance by1% from 96.5% 
to 97.5% or higher student 
attendance rate. 

CDE Dashboard Data - 
Suspension reports        

 During the 2019-2020 school 
year, GMS had a 9% 
suspension rate for their total 
population. 

 GMS will work to reduce the 
total number of disciplinary 
referrals that result in 
suspension and/or expulsion to 
under 6% of the student 
population. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

To increase attendance, any individual student who has earned perfect attendance on the school 
year (Perfect is defined as 100% attendance each day, with no tardy citations for any class, and not 
having been checked in or out of school for any appointments) with receive a yearbook. Monthly 
reports are run via Aeries to determine which, if any students, have sustained perfect attendance 
on the school year.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
100         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Yearbook purchases based on an approximate 
number of students eligible 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will communicate with the families via Parent Square for encouragement attendance and 
communicate special events.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Communication supplies, technology, digital 
licenses, ect 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Monthly attendance incentives will be given out to the classes that demonstrate the best 
attendance rates for each month (incentives include early release to the lunch line, school parties,  
cafeteria provided food rewards, etc.)        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Incentives 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue building PBIS, develop character development lessons around our Core Value Matrix and 
continued use of SEL curriculum lessons during Advisory period and when a student is struggling 
with specific behaviors.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Character trait lesson development around our 
core value matrix. 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to have an ASB Advisor to support leadership students, Leadership class, and 
participate in creating a positive school culture.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,400         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
ASB Advisor 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

2,000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies needed in leadership class 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to have a Teacher in Charge to support students and staff in the absence of the 
principal.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
750         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Teacher in Charge Stipend 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will build upon positive behaviors and school culture through student or teacher-initiated after 
school clubs and activities as well as enrichment opportunities via, visual, music, performing arts, 
and other activities.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Pay staff to offer enrichment opportunities after 
school 

3,000         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

1,200         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Yearbook Advisor 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue to develop a school-wide safety standard intended to help create and sustain 
improved school safety and safe culture through guest speakers, presentations, and assemblies to 
raise awareness.  The scope of this service surrounds the broad ideas of creating a safe drug and 
bully-free place for students, recognizing pro-social behavior, and encouraging students and staff to 
sustain positive relationships with one another. All staff will be equipped with two-way radios to 
ensure safety across campus.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Guest Speakers, assemblies, presentations 
around safe schools, digital licenses, two way 
radios, ect 

24,000         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Guest Speakers, Assemblies, Motivational 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
To decrease suspensions and improve attendance, GMS will maintain a school-wide Award system 
intended to help create and sustain improved school culture for all students. The scope of this 
service surrounds the broad ideas of creating a safe place for students, celebrating 
accomplishments with families, recognizing pro-social behavior, and encouraging students and 
staff to sustain positive relationships with one another.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Award Ceremonies, Promotion Ceremony and 
Celebrations 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will build upon Positive Behavior and Intervention Support (PBIS) using the ticket and store 
reward system. Staff will work together with students to celebrate positive behaviors and 
relationships by distributing earned tickets that may be turned into the student store for school 
supplies, school wear/swag, and food provided through the school cafeteria.  GMS will continue to 
build and enhance the Tier I PBIS behavioral system with the additions to the Lion's den.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
8,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
PBIS Store incentives and supplies (School 
supplies, incentives, school swag, food, and 
other items that are within students interests) 

2,000         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Digital license to assist in tracking ticket 
accumulation 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will build upon Positive Behavior and Intervention Support (PBIS) The students will be taught 
the behavior and expectations of GMS. A team of GMS teachers will attend local and state 
conferences pertaining to school behavior, leadership, and culture. (State PBIS Conference, 
CADA).  After school clubs, along with GMS’ ASB, will work together to celebrate positive 
behaviors and relationship building for all students/staff. GMS will continue to build and enhance 
Tier I-II-III PBIS behvioral system.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Professional Development around school 
behaviors, leadership, and culture (CASWA 
state conference, State PBIS Conference, 
CADA, ect) 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continued branding of GMS. Initial branding around campus.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Murals and other graphics 

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Repair, maintenance, and replacement of equipment and facilities including safety equipment        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Repair, maintenance and replacement of sports 
and safety equipment and site facilities 

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Assistant Principal        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
109,000         LCFF 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
 

Strategy/Activity 15 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS on Chronic Absenteeism are All Students(42.2%) with a focus on the 
following ATSI groups.  All groups will improve their attendance by 10% 
1.  GMS will improve the attendance for English Learners (49.7%) 
2.  GMS will improve the attendance for Low Income Students (42.5%) 
3.  GMS will improve the attendance for Students with Disabilities (60.7%) 
4.  GMS will improve the attendance for Hispanic Students (40.8%) 
 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
The following strategies and activities will be used for all students at Gustine Middle School to 
focus on lowering our Chronic Absenteeism rates.  Chronic absenteeism is defined as students 
who have missed more than 10 percent of the school year.  Students who are attending school and 
fall within the 90 plus percentile stand a better chance of succeeding as compared to students who 
are chronically absent.  All students must have a safe and conducive environment in which they are 
successful.  Students must be given the opportunity to excel in what they do. 
1.  GMS will improve the attendance for English Learners by providing the students with a bilingual 
instructional aide that could help support their learning in the classroom.  EL students will also have 
access to Spanish / English dictionaries, digital software to aid in accessing the English language.  
Empathy surveys as a means of understanding why students who struggle speaking english are 
missing so much learning time. 
2.  GMS will improve the attendance for Low Income Students would be to conduct more home and 
welfare checks on our families who are strugglng with meeting the basic needs at home.  Providing 
community resources for families in need so that students who are dealing with struggles at home 
will have one less worry at home and can focus on coming to school and being successful. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

3.  GMS will improve the attendance for Students with Disabilities by having our bilingual liaison 
and case workers reach out to parents when students are absent so that student services are not 
interrupted for long periods of time.  Placing students with disabilities on a CICO contract to provide 
the positive reenforcement of the importance of showing up every day. 
4.  GMS will improve the attendance for Hispanic Students by having the bilingual liaison reach out 
to parents and finding out the reasons for students absenses.  Empathy interviews to understand if 
the language barrier the reason for absences. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

Strategy/Activity 16 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students identified for GMS on Suspension Rates are All Students (12.2%) with a focus on the 
following ATSI groups.  All groups in suspension will be lowered by half of the percentage of where 
there at. 
1.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for English Learners (14.1%) 
2.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Low Income Students (12.4%) 
3.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Students with Disabilities (22%) 
4.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Hispanic Students (12.3%) 
5.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for White Students (12.9%) 
        
 
Strategy/Activity 
The following strategies and activities will be used for all students at Gustine Middle School to 
focus on lowering our suspension rates.  Addressing each student groups directly based on ATSI, 
the following strategies and activities will be implemented.  Each student group will be considered 
an area specifically on its own.  All students must have a safe environment and climate to feel safe 
and learn.  This will be accomplished by having staff and students fully implement a positive 
behavior and supports network.  It would require staff to teach all students the expectations of our 
GMS matrix.  All students are responsible to know what their expectations are, and by knowing 
they are on their way to achieving a safer and conducive learning environment.  The following 
groups are addressed individually based on their outcomes on ATSI. 
1.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for English Learners by providing restorative practice 
circles, no bully strategies of being able to problem solve and have conflict resolution. 
2.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Low Income Students: by providing restorative practice 
circles, no bully strategies of being able to problem solve and have conflict resolution. 
3.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Students with Disabilities by providing campus 
supervisors the necessary training on recognizing and being proactive on possible reasons or 
triggers for behavior escalation in students.  Students with disabilities will have access to mental 
health services and BCBA services to provide coping methods and techniques on dealing with 
difficult situations. 
4.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for Hispanic Students: by providing restorative practice 
circles, no bully strategies of being able to problem solve and have conflict resolution. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

5.  GMS will reduce its suspension rates for White Students:by providing restorative practice 
circles, no bully strategies of being able to problem solve and have conflict resolution. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Chronic Absenteeism has increased post Covid.  The pandemic has created a void that needs to 
be filled.  Gustine Middle School has a counselor, mental health clinician, psychologist, and a 
BCBA available for the needs of our students.  Our students Social Emotional Learning on dealing 
with returning back to school and socializing with peers to navigating learning loss and trying to 
keep up may create anxiety, depression, and feelings of being overwhelmed. 
 
During the 2021-2022 school year, the CDE Dashboard shows that Gustine Middle School students 
were eligble for ATSI in four student groups for chronic absenteeism, EL students, Low Income, 
Students with Disabilities and our Hispanic students.  GMS' Suspension Rate has also placed us 
on ATSI for EL students,  Low Income, Students with Disabilities, Hispanic students and White 
students. 
For 2022-2023 School year, GMS will improve campus safety and reduce the number of 
disciplinary referrals that result in suspension and/or expulsion to less than 10% of our student 
population.  This will be accomplished by building a network in which staff and students can build 
on a culture of respect and trust.  Implementing PBIS and the use of our 5 Star incentive program.  
Using Restorative Practices to meet the needs of student offenders and having them return back to 
GMS on the premise of being accepted back into our school environment.  The use of Check in / 
Check out (CICO), Teacher Buddies, Motivational Speakers, ASB assemblies, etc.. as a means of 
providing our students the opportunity of owning and feeling a part of Gustine Middle School.  Staff 
and Students must feel welcomed and safe at Gustine Middle School.  Chronic absenteeism and 
suspension rates will decrease if students and staff feel that they belong. 
        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
Positive Behavior and Intervention Support (PBIS) instruction will continued to be utilized to instruct 
students of the behavioral expectations of GMS. Due to school closures, social emotional issues 
have been on the increase once students returned to campus. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

GMS is continuing to refine the developed a school wide system intended to help create and 
sustain improved school culture for all children. The scope of this service surrounds the broad 
ideas of creating a safe place for students, recognizing pro-social behavior, and encouraging 
students and staff to sustain positive relationships with one another.  In addition, GMS facilitated 
many parent engagement programs on campus such as Coffee with the Principal and Parent 
Information Evenings.   GMS will continue to provide and fund various activities for parent 
involvement that include incentives, prizes, childcare, translation, food to promote participation and 
eliminate barriers for involvement. 
        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Combination of 2 broader goals, Culture and absenteeism.  GMS will increase in PBIS 
implementation for Tier 1-3 as well as decrease the number of student absences.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Parent, Family, and Community Partnerships          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will create partnerships with parents, families and the community to provide meaningful opportunities that will 
build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as well as celebrate student learning.         

 

Goal 3 
GMS will provide opportunities to increase and maintain parent engagement and involvement with 
school related activities, events, and informational meetings.          

 
Identified Need 
Parents play a key role in a students success.  Working closely with parents increases our students 
academic and social emotional health. GMS provides monthly parent workshops, collaboration 
times, and informational nights with 0 to 3 percent participation. School awards and celebrations are 
much more attended at 20 to 30%.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Parent survey focusing on 
informational topics for 
meetings and workshops.        

 Give survey during Round up 
at the beginning of the year. 

 A 3-5% participation in one or 
more workshops, informational 
nights and or parent meetings. 

Obtain parental input by 
providing a site specific, in-
depth parent survey on ways to 
increase parental involvement 
in school related activities.        

 This will be base-line 
information 

 Strategies on how to involve 
parents 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS will continue its outreach to parents, students, and the community by sending out frequent 
communications in various forms as well as advertising school events. Communication will be in 
the form of letters, Parent Squares, Student Square, FaceBook, Information on monitors in the 
office, and on the school marquee.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Office Supplies, digital licenses 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Home-School Community Liaison will provide language support to enhance communication 
between home and the school in a variety of settings.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
20,000         Title I 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Home-School Bilingual Liaison 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
GMS administration will continue working towards a whole scale reduction in the number and 
frequency of student disciplinary infractions by hosting various community-building events.  Events 
will include translation services and childcare. Events for students and families include but are not 
limited to, Parent/Family Nights, Week of Welcome, Award Assemblies, Promotion Ceremonies, 
Student Leadership Training, Student Round UP, Coffee with the Principal, Motivation/Inspirational 
Speakers, Digital Licenses (GooseChase), Student Rallies, Read Across America, 5th Grade 
Orientation, Back to School BBQ, ASB events, and other events as they arise.   Such activities may 
include incentives, swag, and meals for families and students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Amount(s) Source(s) 
3,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Hosting community events involving childcare, 
supplies, food supplies, incentives, swag, and 
guest speakers 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Present designated parent requested topics at the regularly scheduled ELAC meetings, Parents 
Club, parent nights, and Coffee with the Principal        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies and materials for monthly meetings. 
Events include but are not limited to Coffee with 
the Principal, Informational Meetings, 
Counselors Nights, ELAC meetings, SSC 
meetings, and Family Nights. 

6,000         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Motivational and or informational Speakers 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Offer a Parent Institute of a series of workshops focused on parent engagement with their children 
and education for all interested parents.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies for Institute 

3,000         Title I 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 
Workshop presenters 

500         LCFF 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Child Care Costs and Snacks 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Obtain parent participation in the 7 year plans presented by GMS counselors in preparation for 
college and college classes at the high school level.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0         None Specified 

 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
N/A        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
N/A        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
N/A        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $0 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $0 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $558,750.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title I        $200,000.00 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $200,000.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

LCFF        $352,750.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $6,000.00 

None Specified        $0.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $358,750.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $558,750.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

LCFF         352,750.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials         6,000.00 

None Specified         0.00 

Title I         200,000.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         168,050.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         66,500.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         169,700.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        

 151,500.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures        

 3,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  166,850.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  17,500.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  122,900.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 LCFF  45,500.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 Lottery:  Instructional Materials  6,000.00 

         None Specified  0.00 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  1,200.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  49,000.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  46,800.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 Title I  100,000.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures        

 Title I  3,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  341,300.00 

Goal 2  180,450.00 

Goal 3  37,000.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
Peter Duenas School Principal        
Sarah Cardoso Classroom Teachers        

Maria Alapizco Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Mireya Alatorre         X Classroom Teacher        

Tiffani Oliveira         X Classroom Teacher        

Rochelle Cotta         X Classroom Teacher        

Carolina Gopar         X Parent or Community Member        

Iona Cariglio         X Parent or Community Member        

Joe Silva         X Other School Staff        

Areceli Martinez         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on 5/23/23. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Peter Duenas on 5/31/23 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Maria Alapizco on 5/31/23 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 85 Gustine Middle School 

Instructions 
 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan process.  
 
The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through 
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school improvement programs, including 
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California 
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program 
planning requirements. It also notes how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation 
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized 
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet 
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The 
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. 
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review 
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also 
contains a notation of how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements.  
Educational Partner Involvement 
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
Annual Review and Update 
Budget Summary  
Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs  
Appendix B: Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact 
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 
 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the local 
educational agency, or the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support 
Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Purpose and Description 
Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the 
following prompts. A school that has not been identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose 
and Description prompts. 
 
Purpose 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive 
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
 
Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 

Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of 
the SPSA and the budget process. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and 
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these 
advisory groups in the development of the SPSA.  
 
The Stakeholder Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used to 
involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and 
implementation of this plan.] 
 

Resource Inequities 
Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment. Identified resource inequities 
must be addressed through implementation of the CSI or ATSI plan. Briefly identify and describe any 
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the 
identified resource inequities are addressed in the SPSA.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATSI. If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI 
this section is not applicable and may be deleted.] 
 

mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov
mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 76 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review 
In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to 
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
strategies and activities. 
 
Goal 
State the goal. A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all 
strategies/activities are directed. A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach. A S.M.A.R.T. 
goal is one that is Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound. A level of specificity 
is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it is 
reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic 
approach that supports student success.  
 
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals, 
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable 
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by 
districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements] 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating 
progress toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. 
Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available 
at the time of adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator 
includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome 
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the 
metrics that led to the school’s identification.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific 
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification.]  
 
Strategies/Activities 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal. A school may 
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of reference. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 77 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state 
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local 
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting, 
if applicable. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based 
interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation, 
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting.] 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students” 
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the 
TSI or ATSI designation. For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led 
to identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected.] 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for 
the school year to implement these strategies/activities. Specify the funding source(s) using one or 
more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other 
State, and/or Local. 
 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C), 
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or 
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting, 
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATSI.] 
 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In addition, 
funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 
 

Annual Review  
In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from 
the prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates 
to the plan. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 78 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as 
instructed. Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal the Annual Review section is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 

● Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of 
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal.  

 
● Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the 

budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
 
● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 

metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes 
can be found in the SPSA. 

 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual 
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATSI 
planning requirements. CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the 
Instructions. For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a 
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements.]  
 

Budget Summary  
In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp and 
that receive federal funds for CSI. If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this 
section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that meet the criteria 
for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total 
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for 
CSI. 
 
Budget Summary 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as 
follows: 
 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application: This amount is the 
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year.  The 
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

 
● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total of 

the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are 
listed in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows: 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 79 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

● Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is the total 
amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA.  

 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATSI. In addition, funds 
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 80 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements   
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
 
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the 
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC. The content of a 
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
 
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s 

goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as 
noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil 
performance against state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the 
Identified Need); and 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school, 
including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section 
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to— 
i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and 

learning need to be improved; and 
ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are 

not yet achieving the State's academic standards; and 
iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the 

schoolwide program under §200.28. 
iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of 

individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan. 
v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and 

the conclusions it drew from those results.  
B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA 

and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update).  

 
Requirements for the Plan 

II. The SPSA shall include the following:  
A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as 

identified through the needs assessment.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 81 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities) 
1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school 

needs, including a description of how such strategies will-- 
a. provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to 

meet the challenging state academic standards 
b. use methods and instructional strategies that: 

i. strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, 

activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education. 
c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students 
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through 
activities which may include: 
i. strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas;  
ii. preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and 

the workforce;  
iii. implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 

behavior;  
iv. professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data; and 
v. strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood 

education programs to local elementary school programs. 
C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing 

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to 
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including 
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s 
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and 
Budget Summary). Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a 
single cost objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described in 
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update). 
1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide 

program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of 
academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the 
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for 
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure 
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 82 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review, 
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Educational Partner 
Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience 
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be 
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to 
1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students. 

G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in 
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 

H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 

I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in 
the Strategies/Activities). 

Authority Cited: S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 6400 et. seq.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 83 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Appendix B:  
 
Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at 
SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and 
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement). 
The CSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. Department 
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf); 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); and  

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to 
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; and Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Targeted Support and Improvement 
In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents) 
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each 
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Educational Partner Involvement).  
The TSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); and 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. 
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf.) 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA. 

  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 84 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school identified for ATSI shall:  

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, 
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable).  

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall 
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds 
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019).  
 
However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the 
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, 
effective January 1, 2019). 
 
Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option 
are available in the LCAP Instructions.  
 
Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 85 of 85 Gustine Middle School 
 
 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  
Programs included on the Consolidated Application: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ 
ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp 
Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/ 
 
Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 84 Gustine High School 

 
School Year:    2023-24     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Gustine High School         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

24736192431807         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 15, 2023         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 14, 2023         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        
X Comprehensive Support and Improvement        
X Targeted Support and Improvement        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
Gustine High School is located in the Central Valley in Gustine, California. The school opened in 
1913. Gustine High School houses 9th-12th grade students, and the current enrollment is 591. 
Approximately 82.40% of the student population is Hispanic, and 11.68% percent is White (Non-
Hispanic), with 5.93% classified as Black/African American Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, Asian, or 
multiple races. 25% of our students are identified as English Learners. Our current data shows that 
59% are of low-socioeconomic status, but we are still finalizing this percentage, and all students are 
eligible to receive free meals. There is one principal, one assistant principal, and two counselors, in 
addition to a school psychologist who rotates between Gustine High School and Gustine Elementary 
School. There are 28 certificated teachers, one teacher without a full credential and one who taught 
outside their certification area, and one instructional coach who rotates between Gustine High 
School and Gustine Middle School. 
 
The philosophy of Gustine Unified School District can be succinctly summed up in our district Motto: 
"Preparing Students for the Future...Today." Our responsibility is to provide a rich, challenging, and 
supportive atmosphere in which all students are motivated to learn with instruction appropriate to 
their needs. Our mission is best illustrated by what we desire all students to know, understand, and 
do upon graduation. 
 
Gustine High School's Vision: 
At Gustine High School, we build strong, positive, and mutually respectful relationships in an 
inclusive, supportive, and rigorous environment. We are responsive to all students and their needs 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 84 Gustine High School 

as they become college and career-ready and productive members of their community. We are 
committed to supporting and guiding each learner so that they can excel to their fullest potential. 
 
Gustine High School's Mission: 
At Gustine High School, we foster the whole student to achieve their fullest potential by setting high 
expectations, providing rigorous and relevant instruction, and building strong relationships to prepare 
all students to become productive members of society. 
 
Gustine High School's updated Schoolwide Learning Outcomes read: 
To become productive members of a community who are college and career ready and able to excel 
to their fullest potential, the student will: 
* Be Responsible Citizens 
* Work Collaboratively and Competently 
* Be Critical and Creative Thinkers 
* Be Effective Communicators 
* Develop Personal and Professional Goals. 
         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 84 Gustine High School 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s). 
Gustine High School recognizes that self-evaluation is essential and works hard at accomplishing 
our annual goals. The district and site goals focus on good first instruction, school safety, and home-
to-school communications. Throughout each year, various surveys are completed by three groups: 
staff, parents, and students. The survey results are analyzed by the school leadership team and 
evaluated by staff to make informed schoolwide decisions.  
 
Parent input is an important part of our decision-making process, and communication from the 
school and staff to the home was an improvement item we have been addressing. In addition to the 
fundamental input we receive from parents and students, we also discuss results with different 
committees such as School Site Council and English Learner Advisory. Our parent surveys are 
carefully designed to give us direct feedback on how we are doing as a school. Safety, diversity, 
technology needs, classroom instruction, student needs, and overall satisfaction are some of the 
main focus areas in our parent surveys. Most students and parents believe Gustine High School is 
safe and prepares students for post-secondary plans.  
 
Students, Parents, and staff participated in several surveys to gather input for continuous 
improvement at Gustine High School. 

• Title I Needs Assessment 
• LCAP Survey 
• Family Input Survey for the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
• Student Needs Assessment 
• Success 101 Assessment 
• ESSER III Survey 
• FAFSA/DREAM Act Survey 
• Math Survey - CVNIC (Central Valley Networking Improvement Community 
• DELAC/ELAC 
• Kelvin Pulse Survey (students) November 2022 
• Kelvin Pulse Survey (staff) January 2023 
• Kelvin Pulse Survey (students) February 2023 
• Official Senior Meeting 22/23 
• The REDS Way Postcards 

 
What services and suggestions appeared that Gustine High could enhance or expand on? 

• Mental Health Awareness and school support 
• Student engagement 
• School Safety 
• Sense of belonging (feeling connected to the school) 
• Academic learning supports 
• Math/English Interventions 
• AP classes 
• College and Career Readiness Guidance 
• Parent education on how to support their child 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 84 Gustine High School 

• More awareness of drug use 
• Gang Awareness for students and parents 
• The use of textbooks instead of digital device 

 
What services do you suggest Gustine High School provide that we are not currently providing? 

• After-school tutoring options 
• 1 on 1 student support 
• Access to Mental Health Counselors 

 
Other Suggestions and Input 

• Better food and more options 
• Longer lunchtime 
• Nutrition Awareness for students 
• Address the bus/transportation - no busses or overcrowding 
• New uniforms for all sports teams 

 
 
 
 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during 
the school-year and a summary of findings. 
Formal and informal classroom observations are conducted periodically by the site principal and 
assistant principal, in addition to instruction rounds that are led by the site's leadership team. 
 
Each administrator (principal and assistant principal) has designated departments that they oversee 
and for which they conduct regular classroom observations of those departments' teachers. GHS 
administrators observe elements of teaching essential standards and student engagement, as well 
as guiding and supporting students, especially during distance and hybrid learning.  The Principal 
has developed a digital walk-through form to utilize for informal class visits. This form allows for data 
to be collected in an ongoing method, allowing teachers and administrators to have collaborative 
conversations about instruction Classroom observations act as a collaboration between the 
administration and the teacher.  This form is new to our informal process but will be a positive 
addition to our observation process. 
 
There is a pre-evaluation conference and a full review of the rubric and goals.  The formal evaluation 
gives teachers valuable feedback on how their lesson went for the class period, which leads to the 
post-conference.  This time is for discussion of the commendations and recommendations for the 
teacher to hear from the administrator and ask questions themselves.  Three formal evaluations and 
informal walkthroughs are completed within the school year.  Informal walkthroughs allow the 
administrator to see snapshots of the beginning, middle, and end of the teacher's class time, 
depending on when the walkthrough is performed.   These are also great conversation starters for 
commendations and recommendations for the teacher to build upon.  All probationary teachers met 
the standards met in all their formal evaluations.  As for informal evaluations, in my opinion, all 
teachers are also at the standards met level.  Teachers also participate in the instructional rounds.  
This process offers a structure for educators to work together to identify and solve common 
problems related to learning and teaching and view instructional practices that may work in their 
classrooms. 
 
         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 84 Gustine High School 

Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these 
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional 
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on 
verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the 
status of these findings and note progress made.  Special consideration should be given to any 
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical 
programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
State Assessments 
The ELPAC determines student proficiency levels and growth from the previous year and 
demonstrates needs and strengths. These test results are then used to determine the student's 
appropriate placement in ELD courses. 
 
Smarter Balance Assessment Consortium (SBAC) 
The SBAC assessment is given annually to 11th-grade students during the spring semester. The 
evaluation provides school administration and teachers valuable data used to modify the curriculum 
to ensure students can score at or above standard. The Smarter Balanced exam is administered in 
Mathematics and Language Arts at the 11th-grade level. Scores are reported based on whether or 
not students exceeded or met standards or did not. These scores are typically available in late June 
and are mailed out to parents at the start of the following school year. 
 
Dashboard 
The SBAC data include academic performance in ELA and Math and academic progress for English 
Learners.   Other items on the 
dashboard include the suspension rate and graduation rate. This information can be found on 
caschooldashboard.org. 
 
Local Assessments 
Common formative assessments are being utilized by all teachers where appropriate. Common 
formative assessments are given regularly to make informed decisions on student instruction. Data 
is then analyzed during our early release Mondays in our Professional Learning Communities (PLC) 
department. Teachers then reteach specific skills that students fail to comprehend with proficiency. 
All common formative assessments are tied to common core state standards. 
 
Students will also be administered I-Ready computer-based benchmark assessments three times a 
year in ELA and Math. These assessments are intended to expose students to computer-based 
testing and give teachers instant feedback on their students' progress. The data is 
also used to assist in making instructional decisions to support student learning. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 84 Gustine High School 

 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction 
(EPC) 
Gustine High School regularly uses curriculum-embedded and benchmark assessments to monitor 
student progress and inform instruction. These assessments may include projects, work samples, 
class discussions, or other demonstrations that can be used as evidence of learning and 
assessments for learning. Ongoing, formative assessments are employed in all classrooms to 
monitor student progress and inform instruction regularly throughout the day. In addition, common 
formative assessments (CFAs) and teacher-created assessments are used for formative and 
summative purposes to verify student learning and progression. Departmentally, some use quick 
formative check-ins such as first of five or exit tickets. 
 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
26.5 teachers currently on staff are highly qualified and meet the state license requirements. One 
teacher is working without credentials or misassignment and one teacher is an intern credential 
holder and properly assigned. 
 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional 
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
Staff participates in professional development (PD) at the site and district levels. In addition to the 
two days before school for professional development, the district added one more PD day before 
school during the 23/24 school year. The training includes PLC development, school safety (ALICE 
Training for lockdown situations), and departmental focus, such as special education training, 
FCMAT laws, Xello, Tutor.com, and research-based teaching strategies—also, Mental health 
clinicians and BCBA's presented to teachers and staff members. Professional development and 
district-wide collaboration days also provide opportunities for teachers from middle and high school 
to work within their subject-area groups. During collaboration days, teachers share resources and 
best practices and coordinate efforts to ensure standardization and reliability across the sites 
regarding scoring, grading, and reporting. 
 
The math and science departments are involved in 10 training work days during the school year 
through the Merced County Office of Education to improve the implementation of the adopted 
curriculum and create lesson designs and rubrics.  We also partner with MCOE to establish good co-
teaching practices within our special education program and push-in classes. 
 
Math continues to be a part of the CVNIC (Central Valley Networking Improvement Community). 
This is a 4-year program to track growth in college-bound African-American and Latinx students. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 84 Gustine High School 

Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional 
needs (ESEA) 
Staff development has focused on supporting our subgroups who have historically underperformed 
on local and state assessments and in the classroom; these include our English language learners, 
our special education students, and our most populated subgroup, our socio-economically 
disadvantaged students. All staff was trained in using the push-in model for working with students 
with disabilities, but this professional training will need to be revisited and ongoing.  Staff meetings 
during our early release Monday time cover student performance, safety concerns, progress 
monitoring, grades, testing, student activity, and much more. 
 
Continuous review and analysis of student academic performance (including state and local 
assessments) impact decision-making and planning about staff development. Currently, student 
academic performance in Math and English-Language Arts are below state and local goals and 
remains essential for support and staff development. English Learners, as well as our SED 
subgroup, remain important subgroups requiring additional attention and support. 
 
Staff development in core areas has focused on the faithful implementation of the adopted and 
piloted curricula aligned with the content standards. Teachers provide feedback regarding staff 
development needs on an informal and formal basis.  In addition to providing input through 
departmental discussions, staff meetings, and surveys, capture perspectives from staff regarding 
individual and school-wide areas of satisfaction and opportunities for improvement. 
 
 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional 
coaches) (EPC) 
Gustine High also utilizes experts within its teaching ranks to provide ongoing instructional 
assistance and support in special education, ELD, and research-based instructional strategies. Once 
a month, teacher leaders attend the district's MTSS meeting to share and discuss data from various 
local assessments to determine needed intervention or enrichment.  An academic coach is also 
available to support her peers in instructional delivery or lesson planning as 
determined by administration or voluntary participation by teachers 
 
 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades 
nine through twelve) (EPC) 
Teachers spend time in departmental PLCs to provide ongoing support to each other in the areas of 
curriculum, instruction, and assessment. During this time, teams work to use the data cycle to make 
informed decisions about planning, instruction, assessment, and reteaching. Times teachers are set 
to meet is Early Release Monday.  PLC teams also meet after school or at lunch if they feel there is 
a need. 
 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
Gustine High School is committed to providing professional learning communities (PLCs) with the 
time and support to plan pacing calendars, units, and lessons that align with and adhere to content 
and performance standards. To this end, core content areas have adopted or are piloting curricula 
that are aligned with the state content standards. Pacing, lesson/unit planning, and instruction are 
focused on alignment with not only the adopted curriculum but with identified essential standards in 
all core curriculum areas to support all students with an equitable education. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 84 Gustine High School 

Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) 
(EPC) 
N/A 

 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention 
courses (EPC) 
N/A 

 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
Gustine High is committed to making instructional materials available for all students that are aligned 
to content standards and proven effective in the classroom. Teachers participate in the vetting of 
curricula to maximize student learning for all students.  Standards-based instructional materials are 
available to all learners in all content areas. These materials consist of textbooks, textbook support 
materials, consumable workbooks for learners, online textbook support programs, classroom 
materials, and more. 
 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, 
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Gustine High School uses state-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials in all core 
curricular subjects at every grade level. The following list outlines our primary adopted texts used for 
the core curriculum areas for grades 9-12. 

• English is getting professional development and adopting ERWC in grades 9-12. 
• Year 1 for Math - CPM is the 3-year adoption of the mathematics curriculum for Math I, II, 

and III. Hardback books and digital licenses will be available to students. 
• Science Dept is piloting a few programs to see what fits best for Gustine High School for 

adoption. 
• STEMscopes are used for the school year's Chemistry and Physics pilots. 
• BioZone is being used for the Biology/Anatomy pilot for the school year. 
• Discovery Education is being used for the Earth Science pilot for this school year. 
• The History Department is piloting McGraw-Hill's IMPACT program for CA in grades 10, 11, 

and 12 (Government and Economics). Still, it uses a variety of supplemental curricula to 
expand learning and other departments. 

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 84 Gustine High School 

Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Extra support and intervention programs are provided to students so as to assist underperforming 
students and those who are struggling with grade-level standards. The support period focused on 
several different enrichment and intervention needs of our students.  This time within the school day 
provided more time and additional opportunities to learn and show proficiency in their area of need.  
Our enrichment time provided students to expand on their learning with different types of topics.  
The support period will be replaced by a district partnership with a tutoring service.  The company 
partners with our school district to provide unlimited access to trained tutors so every student can 
ask questions, work through problems, and grow their confidence. 
 
Some staff members and departments gave academic as well as social/emotional support during 
lunch or after school. These activities brought students together in a less stressful environment.  
Students are provided scaffolding and voice and choice in their assignment types in some courses 
on campus. Students are also welcome to make an appointment to come in at lunch or after school 
to make up work or get help from certain staff members.  Members of the staff have also created a 
Google Sheet so students know when they could come in for help and needed additional support or 
just a quiet place to work. 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 84 Gustine High School 

Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
Gustine High School has incorporated several evidence-based practices to raise student 
achievement during the school year. As a school site, one of our top priorities is to deliver quality 
first instruction, focusing on high-quality and inclusive teaching practices for every student. In Tier I, 
teachers will plan each lesson with clear objectives and cover the "what" and "why" to help them 
meet learning outcomes. Our Tier II will be additional interventions that provide extra support for 
students to get back on track. Tier III will be our personalized intervention for students requiring 
more support. Counselors focus on enhancing and expanding student opportunities in college and 
career readiness. They will monitor the enrollment of student groups in Career-Technical education 
courses, AVID, and dual/concurrent enrollment. We also need to increase student services 
throughout the school year, which has become a top priority of the school and department.  
 
Listed are evidence bases practices staff members use in their classrooms to gain positive student 
outcomes. 
 

• Attempting to minimize or decrease disruptive behaviors 
• Presenting opportunities for creativity 
• Pushing to have students spend time on task 
• Attempting to create a low-anxiety classroom environment 
• Having clear expectations (even repeating them throughout the period--*explicitly*) 
• Attempting parent involvement to let them know what is occurring with their child in my class 
• Worked examples (Having/showing/walking through) 
• Direct instruction 
• Professional development 
• Utilizing prior achievement; referencing 
• Aiming to have professional, friendly, established teacher-student relationships 
• Feedback provided to students on projects/activities 
• Teacher clarity 
• Scaffolding 
• Written and verbal instructions 
• Use of audio 
• Translation to Spanish 
• Diverse grouping 
• Gallery walks 
• Chunking lessons and/or readings 
• Graphic organizers, visual aids 
• Provide immediate feedback 

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 84 Gustine High School 

Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students 
(ESEA) 
Gustine High our newly formed Parent Engagement Committee Meetings (formerly Coffee with 
Principal) once every month to discuss school achievement, school safety, and the needs of parents 
and students; these are also topics addressed are mental health, gang awareness, drug, and 
alcohol use in schools, college and career support for students and parents. Families are also 
informed by site administrators or individual teachers of various supports available at school. In 
addition, we utilize resources from our local police department and partner with the City of Gustine to 
have a full-time School Resource Officer to conduct welfare checks on students who have 
attendance concerns; during such checks, administrators and the SRO work with families to resolve 
the concern. We also partner with Merced County Strengthening Families for behavioral health 
support and MAPS (mental health ) which have specific resources available for our students and 
families outside of the school day. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 84 Gustine High School 

Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and 
students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs 
(5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
The School Site Council and District English Language Advisory Council are comprised of site 
administrators, faculty and staff members, and parents. The purpose of these two committees is to 
work collaboratively to analyze and evaluate our educational programs. We also utilize 
parent/teacher meetings, Parent Engagement Committee meetings, and English Language Advisory 
Council meetings to assist Title I parents. To help reach our goals with Title I parents the school 
discusses the needs of our programs, and helps parents understand academic content standards, 
assessments, and how to monitor and improve the achievement of their children. 
 
We also use the following to help reach our goals: 
 
Back to School Night 
 
Parent/Teacher Conferences 
 
Student Study Team (SST) 
 
Parent Square 
 
At-Promise Meetings 
 
Tutorials 
 
ELD Language Supports 
 
PLTI (Parent Leadership Training) 
 
Gustine High School Administration and Counselors 
 
Teacher - school to home connection 
 
School Activities such as Round Up 
 
 
 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
Gustine High School used categorical monies to directly serve under-performing students by paying 
teachers to conduct after-school tutorials. 

 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Financial support is provided through General, Categorical, LCAP and grant funding. These funds, 
while essential and supportive, are not adequate to provide a program that meets the needs of every 
student. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 84 Gustine High School 

Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
The SPSA is developed in collaboration with the administrative leadership with input from teacher 
leaders,  teachers, students, and parents. Its development is continuous throughout the year and 
presented to the Admin Leadership team, School Site Council, and ELAC for suggestions and 
approval in June, with a revisit in September. This plan was developed to give all stakeholders an 
overview of school systems and targeted support areas for all students, including target groups.         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
Our suspension rate with Students with Disabilities is very high.  We are currently in ATSI (Additional 
Targeted Support and Improvement), an ESSA (Every Student Succeeds Act) designation given to 
schools needing additional and targeted support based on the performance outcomes of one or 
more student groups. 
 
         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 9        155 153 137 

Grade 10        173 160 145 

Grade 11        134 165 153 

Grade 12        121 124 151 

Total Enrollment        583 602 586 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Our current senior class decrease significantly from 11th to 12th grade.        

2. Enrollment has slightly decreased over the past year school wide.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners        127 153 150 21.80% 25.4% 25.6% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        260 240 235 44.60% 39.9% 40.1% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        2   1.6%  10 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The number of English Learners holds steady and EL's are 1/4 of the schools population.        

2. Our Fluent English Proficient (FEP) numbers and percentage have stayed the same.        

3. GHS has reclassification of students has increased to 10 with 4 students being in our special education program.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11 127 157  0 156  0 156  0.0 99.4  

All Grades 127 157  0 156  0 156  0.0 99.4  
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
 
 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11  2545.
2 

  12.18   28.85   24.36   34.62  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  12.18   28.85   24.36   34.62  
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  12.82   61.54   25.64  

All Grades  12.82   61.54   25.64  
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11  17.31   49.36   33.33  

All Grades  17.31   49.36   33.33  
 

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  8.97   69.87   21.15  

All Grades  8.97   69.87   21.15  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 84 Gustine High School 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  14.10   65.38   20.51  

All Grades  14.10   65.38   20.51  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine High School consistently ensures that all students take the state tests and is waiting for the 22/23 results.        

2. ELA Standard Met was 40.1%        

3. GHS tested 99.4 percent of its 11th grade class.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11 127 157  0 157  0 157  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 127 157  0 157  0 157  0.0 100.0  

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
  

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11  2467.
8 

  1.27   5.73   19.75   73.25  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  1.27   5.73   19.75   73.25  
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  0.64   28.66   70.70  

All Grades  0.64   28.66   70.70  
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  3.18   55.41   41.40  

All Grades  3.18   55.41   41.40  
 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
Grade 11  2.55   61.15   36.31  

All Grades  2.55   61.15   36.31  
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine High School decreased in math to 7%        

2. English Learner students' percentage of met or exceeded standard is 0.0%        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 84 Gustine High School 

3. All students tested in math, and it is still our area most in need of improvement.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    1527.8 1530.8  1513.6 1522.3  1541.6 1538.8  38 41  

  10    1528.3 1534.1  1504.0 1525.3  1551.9 1542.4  38 38  

  11    1535.9 1530.3  1521.3 1512.9  1550.0 1547.2  27 36  

  12    1523.6 1543.5  1510.7 1536.8  1536.0 1549.7  14 23  

All Grades                 117 138  
 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    7.89 4.88  28.95 34.15  36.84 41.46  26.32 19.51  38 41  

  10    7.89 15.79  28.95 34.21  36.84 23.68  26.32 26.32  38 38  

  11    7.41 2.78  29.63 38.89  40.74 30.56  22.22 27.78  27 36  

  12    14.29 17.39  35.71 30.43  21.43 30.43  28.57 21.74  14 23  

All Grades        8.55 9.42  29.91 34.78  35.90 31.88  25.64 23.91  117 138  
 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    15.79 12.20  34.21 51.22  34.21 19.51  15.79 17.07  38 41  

  10    15.79 23.68  23.68 44.74  39.47 7.89  21.05 23.68  38 38  

  11    11.11 13.89  48.15 44.44  22.22 25.00  18.52 16.67  27 36  

  12    35.71 26.09  28.57 43.48  14.29 13.04  21.43 17.39  14 23  

All Grades        17.09 18.12  33.33 46.38  30.77 16.67  18.80 18.84  117 138  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 84 Gustine High School 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    7.89 2.44  13.16 19.51  36.84 41.46  42.11 36.59  38 41  

  10    7.89 10.53  18.42 18.42  47.37 34.21  26.32 36.84  38 38  

  11    3.70 0.00  14.81 16.67  48.15 44.44  33.33 38.89  27 36  

  12    7.14 0.00  14.29 26.09  50.00 43.48  28.57 30.43  14 23  

All Grades        6.84 3.62  15.38 19.57  44.44 40.58  33.33 36.23  117 138  
 

Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    5.26 0.00  65.79 80.49  28.95 19.51  38 41  

  10    5.26 7.89  60.53 68.42  34.21 23.68  38 38  

  11    3.70 0.00  62.96 66.67  33.33 33.33  27 36  

  12    0.00 8.70  71.43 56.52  28.57 34.78  14 23  

All Grades        4.27 3.62  64.10 69.57  31.62 26.81  117 138  
 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    50.00 53.66  26.32 34.15  23.68 12.20  38 41  

  10    34.21 57.89  44.74 18.42  21.05 23.68  38 38  

  11    33.33 51.43  51.85 34.29  14.81 14.29  27 35  

  12    50.00 60.87  28.57 26.09  21.43 13.04  14 23  

All Grades        41.03 55.47  38.46 28.47  20.51 16.06  117 137  
 

Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    7.89 9.76  52.63 24.39  39.47 65.85  38 41  

  10    13.16 13.16  50.00 34.21  36.84 52.63  38 38  

  11    3.70 2.78  40.74 44.44  55.56 52.78  27 36  

  12    7.14 4.35  57.14 56.52  35.71 39.13  14 23  

All Grades        8.55 7.97  49.57 37.68  41.88 54.35  117 138  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 84 Gustine High School 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

   9    0.00 2.44  78.95 82.93  21.05 14.63  38 41  

  10    5.26 0.00  78.95 73.68  15.79 26.32  38 38  

  11    11.11 11.11  62.96 63.89  25.93 25.00  27 36  

  12    21.43 8.70  50.00 73.91  28.57 17.39  14 23  

All Grades        6.84 5.07  71.79 73.91  21.37 21.01  117 138  
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All grades combined scored a percentage of 23.91 at level 1        

2. The 10th and 12th grade levels had the highest percentage at 15.79  and 17.39 scoring at level 4.        

3. Number of students tested increased 19 students in the 21/22 SY.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
For the past two years, many state and federal accountability requirements were waived or adjusted due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on LEAs, schools, and students. Beginning with the 2021-22 school year, the requirements to hold 
schools and districts accountable for student outcomes has returned with the release of the 2022 California School 
Dashboard (Dashboard). The Every Student Succeeds Act is requiring all states to determine schools eligible for support. 
Similarly, under state law, Assembly Bill (AB) 130, which was signed into law in 2021, mandates the return of the Dashboard 
using only current year performance data to determine LEAs for support. Therefore, to meet this state requirement, only the 
2021-22 school year data will be reported on the 2022 Dashboard for state indicators. (Data for Change [or the difference 
from prior year] and performance colors will not be reported.) 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2021-22 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

602         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Gustine High School. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

77.2         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

25.4         
Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

0.2         
Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2021-22 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners         153 25.4 

Foster Youth         1 0.2 

Homeless         3 0.5 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         465 77.2 

Students with Disabilities         83 13.8 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American         5 0.8 

American Indian         3 0.5 

Asian         3 0.5 

Filipino         2 0.3 

Hispanic         499 82.9 

Two or More Races         7 1.2 

Pacific Islander         2 0.3 

White         72 12.0 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 84 Gustine High School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Gustine High School is primarily comprised of students who are Hispanic with a percentage of 82.2 as well as the 

percentage of socioeconomically disadvantages students which is at 84.4.         
2. 13.9 percent of students are classified as students with disabilities.         

3. English Learner increased to 160 students from 153.         

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2022 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
Low        

Mathematics 

 
Very Low        

English Learner Progress 

 
Low        

College/Career 
Not Reported in 2022        

Academic Engagement 

Graduation Rate 

 
High        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
High        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 84 Gustine High School 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Although the graduation rate is high, the college and career readiness went down to 34%        

2. ELA  showed improvement at 41% but math was still in the very low range at 7%.        

3. Suspension rate is high especially with our students with disabilities.  We are in ATSI which is Additional Targeted 
Support and Improvement.  We must plan evidence based interventions in this area.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Very Low        
3        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Low         

39.4 points below standard        
147 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

130.6 points below standard         
38 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

59.4 points below standard         
106 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         

137.4 points below standard         
21 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 84 Gustine High School 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Very Low         

51.3 points below standard         
116 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

White     

 
No Performance Level         

1.8 points above standard         
21 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

145.2 points below standard         

34 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

4 Students        

English Only 

18.9 points below standard         

58 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Hispanic, SED and EL subgroups are performing in the very low range.        

2. EL students are scoring 145.2 point below standard compared to English only which is 18.9 points below standard.        

3. White students are scored 1.8 points above standard.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathamtics Equity Report 

Very Low        
3        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very Low         

160.7 points below standard         
147 Students        

English Learners 

 
Very Low         

229.1 points below standard         
38 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

180.1 points below standard         
106 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         

235.9 points below standard         
21 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 84 Gustine High School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         

2 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
Very Low         

166.9 points below standard         
116 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

3 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

White     

 
No Performance Level         

138.3 points below standard         
21 Students        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

246.0 points below standard         
34 Students        

Reclassified English Learners 

4 Students        

English Only 

148.7 points below standard         
58 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. All students and all subgroups ae performing in the very low range.        

2. EL students are scoring 246.0 points below standard compared to English only which is 148.7 points below standard.        

3. White students are scoring 138.3 points below standard        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
This section provides information on the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language 
proficiency or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
Low         

39.4 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 132 Students          
Performance Level: 2        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

22.7%         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

37.9%         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

2.3%         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

37.1%         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Making progress towards Language Proficiency dropped from around 55% to 39.4%.        

2. Performance level is classified as low on students making EL Progress compared to last year.        

3. 37.1%EL students have progressed one ELPI level which is a decrease from 52.7%        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
College/Career data provides information on whether high school students are prepared for success after graduation based 
on measures like graduation rate, performance on state tests, and college credit courses.  College/Career data was not 
reported in 2022. 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. To help address the decrease, we have implemented medical and business CTE pathways to the master schedule 

and we should see those results in future reports.        
2. Students A-G eligible is 34% for the current 22/23 senior class.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Very High        High        Medium        Low        Very Low        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. no reporting at this time.        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
2        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
High         

92.4% graduated         
119 Students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Level         

88.9% graduated         
27 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
High         

91.4% graduated         
105 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         

90.9% graduated         
22 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 84 Gustine High School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

American Indian Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
High         

91.9% graduated         
99 Students        

Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

100% graduated         
17 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learner graduation rate dipped to 88.9% even though there wasn't enough student to include as a subgroup.        

2. Graduation rate for Hispanic, SED and all students is above 90%        

3. All GHS students graduation rate is 92.4%        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 84 Gustine High School 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Very High        
1        

High        
4        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
High         

7.5% suspended at least one day         
628 Students        

English Learners 

 
High         

9% suspended at least one day         
166 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

8 Students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
High         

8.2% suspended at least one day         
488 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Very High         

11.5% suspended at least one day         
87 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 84 Gustine High School 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

5 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

3 Students        

Hispanic 

 
High         

7.7% suspended at least one 
day         

519 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

16 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

White     

 
High         

6.5% suspended at least one 
day         

77 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall suspension rate for all students is 7.5% which is a decrease from 8.1%.        

2. Students with Disabilities was very high at 11.5%.  We are in ATSI (additional Targeted Support and Improvement).        

3. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged is high at 8.2%.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 84 Gustine High School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Provide students with high-quality classroom instruction and access in all courses of study.          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college and career ready 
by providing a broad course of study, academic counseling and intervention supports, technology and research-based 
curriculum, provided by a high-quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local data.         

 

Goal 1 
Gustine High School will support student achievement and college-and-career readiness by 
providing access to a broad course of study and the resources needed for success, as evidenced by 
state and local data.          

 
Identified Need 
1. Our English Learners need academic support to become proficient in English to close the gaps in 
their ELA performance on CAASPP and college and career readiness. 
2. All students need to increase their performance in ELA and Math. 
3. There is an achievement gap between our ELs. SED and SWD Learners in both ELA and Math. 
4. There is a potential learning gap or loss post-pandemic, so instructional support for all learning in 
English, Math, and all core classes must continue to be addressed in the 23/24 school year. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Student meeting or exceeding 
standards on  ELA CAASPP 
State test.        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP ELA 
State test in spring 2022 - 41% 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASSP ELA 
State test; increase 15% to 
56% 

Student meeting or exceeding 
standards on  Math CAASPP 
State test.        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test in spring 2022 - 7% 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test: increase 15% to 
22% 

Graduation Rate         Current graduation rate for all 
students is 92.4% 

 Increase graduation rate by 5% 
and overall to 97.4 % 

Teachers are highly-qualified         Current percent of teachers 
that are highly qualified - 93% 

 Percent of teachers that are 
highly qualified - 100% 

A-G Completion vs. A-G 
Enrollment        

 Waiting for 2nd semester 
grades 

 Waiting for 2nd semester 
grades 

English language learners 
progress at least one ELPI 
level or maintain a level 4        

 55.6% of EL who progressed at 
least one ELPI level or 
maintained a level 4 

 65.6% of EL who progressed at 
least one ELPI level or 
maintained a level 4 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 84 Gustine High School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Students meet or are on track 
to meet A-G requirements        

 Currently 38% - 41 students  of 
students met A-G requirements 

 45% to met A-G requirements 

On Track for Graduation (70 
credits in 9th grade)        

 Waiting for 2nd semester 
grades 

 Waiting for 2nd semester 
grades 

11th Grade ELA CAASPP - 
SPED 
        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP ELA 
State test in spring 2022 - 9.1% 
 
 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASSP ELA 
State test; increase 10% to 
19% 

11th Grade Math CAASPP - 
SPED 
        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test in spring 2022 - 
4.55% 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test: increase 10% to 
14.55% 
 
 

11th Grade ELA CAASPP - 
English Learners 
        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP ELA 
State test in spring 2022 - 2.8% 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASSP ELA 
State test; increase 10% to 
12.8% 

11th Grade Math CAASPP - 
English Learners 
        

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test in spring 2022 - 0.0% 

 Percentage of students 
meeting or exceeding the 
standard in the CAASPP Math 
State test: increase 10% to 
10%% 
 
 

D/F Report Card Grades         1st quarter grades - D's 30% 
and F's 19% 

 Decrease D/F Report Card 
Grades by 10% for D's and 
10% for F's 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION TO SUPPORT STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT: 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 84 Gustine High School 

Site and content leaders will meet with DC&I and other relevant district leaders to review and 
recommend curriculum, plan and coordinate district professional development, and recommend 
instructional methods to the governing board. 
 
Administrators, Teacher Leaders, Instructional Coach, and departments will review the CAASPP, 
ELPAC, and I-Ready data regarding their respective students’ performance on these measures so 
informed decisions can be made with instructions and strategies. 
 
Assess the vertical alignment of curriculum, instructional practices, and common assessments and 
reflect on the findings. 
 
Revise course offerings based on demonstrated student needs and interests, especially regarding 
the use of online learning. 
 
PLC/Department Teams, Site Administration, Director of Curriculum and Instructions, and Board 
are working on reviewing and adopting a rigorous, research-based curriculum for core subjects and 
ELD. 
 
Implement a research-based curriculum in core areas that correspond with critical learner needs. 
 
At the beginning of each school year, the staff and administration will develop specific, research-
based instructional norms to work on the following areas: Data, Instruction, Curriculum, and 
Engagment. 
 
Consistently implement research-based instructional strategies with measurable goals by which to 
assess effectiveness.  Per WASC Mid-Cycle Review, the focus should be on one monthly strategy.  
Implement, analyze results, and improve. 
 
 
Incorporate best health and wellness education practices into regular instruction (movement 
strategies, brain breaks, time management, stress management). 
 
Expand our Success 101 class to Success 102 so more kids are exposed to college and career 
readiness information and AVID-like strategies. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
40,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

15,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 84 Gustine High School 

15,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Technology - 

11,000.00         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

37,369.00         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

32,000.00         Title I 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Instructional coach 

14,000.00         Title I 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Bilingual Liaison 

20,300.00         Title I 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Migrant and Bilingual aide 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ACADEMIC INTERVENTION AND ENRICHMENT TO SUPPORT STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
 
As determined by the school site, administration, teachers, and leadership will implement and 
maintain reading and math intervention programs. These programs may include intervention 
teachers, additional classroom support, the purchase of a specific intervention curriculum, tutoring 
support in core academic areas, and utilizing/maintaining intervention programs with priority 
services for Low-Income pupils, English Learners, Foster Youth, and Special Education. Funding 
will also support a variety of additional academic interventions and enrichment opportunities that 
help accelerate student understanding and engagement in learning. 
 
Students needing additional support in Language Arts and Mathematics classes will be assigned to 
intervention based on CAASPP Scores, ELPAC scores, approved diagnostic data, CFAs, teacher 
recommendations, and grades. This could be a Tier II intervention (in-class or after school, weekly 
or bi-weekly, small group or individual tutorial). 
 
Conduct deeper and more disaggregated analysis of student performance data to address 
individual student learning needs and student engagement. 
 
Improve the use of formative assessments and summative assessments and focus on learning.  
Moving to Standard Based Grading will help us improve in this area. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 84 Gustine High School 

Push-in model with Inclusion Specialists (sped teachers) and aides partnering with content 
teachers. We are in year two of our push-in professional development with Vicotria Murphy, a 
consultant. 
 
Use color to highlight key ideas and separate items to help students identify the most important 
concepts and distinguish one task/problem/step from the next. 
 
CAASPP Incentive program for increasing the previous year's score. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
22,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

15,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

7,000.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Intervention afterschool support 

1,500.00         LCFF 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Intervention Instructional aide support 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
MULTI-TIERED SYSTEMS OF SUPPORT(MTSS) TO ADDRESS STUDENT NEEDS 
 
Improve access to intervention and MTSS services for English Learners, Low Income and Foster 
youth, and students with disabilities through an ongoing analysis of student performance and 
progress. 
 
Provide continued teacher support, resources, data systems, participation in instructional rounds, 
and subject- and grade-level collaboration time to participate in Professional Learning Communities 
to promote authentic and timely assessment and review of student progress and performance and 
determine and implement next steps as a means to strengthen instruction, monitor performance 
gaps between student groups, and to identify students for academic and enrichment interventions, 
including students with disabilities and English language learners. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 84 Gustine High School 

Continue a system of ongoing student performance and progress analysis utilizing the district 
assessment plan and Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) team to analyze data to support staff 
to improve student outcomes. 
 
Continue to provide training for team leaders. 
 
Provide time for teacher release, collaborative learning, Professional Learning Communities, and 
instructional rounds. 
 
Identify and review data regarding Critical Learner Needs areas and implement the next steps. 
 
Assess and modify the master schedule for the following year based on student performance, 
grades, and attendance data. 
 
Analyze data from class grades, FIABs, and IReady. 
 
Review research on practices proven to impact SED academic achievement, social-emotional well-
being, and engagement and implement best practices. 
 
Define school-wide instructional expectations Tier 1, 2, and 3 interventions and protocols to meet 
the academic needs of all students. 
 
Push-in model with Inclusion Specialists (sped teachers) and aides are partnering with content 
teachers. We are in year two of our push-in professional development with Vicotria Murphy, a 
consultant. 
 
Analyze & evaluate the impact the Inclusion-model has on the achievement of students with 
disabilities. 
 
Monitor progress toward results on CA Dashboard via internal measures. 
 
Increase social/emotional and mental health support at Tier 2 and 3 levels. 
 
Academic, data-based interventions that occur during the school day for students who do not meet 
academic standards or expectations. 
 
The administration works weekly with PLC departments on planning, assessments, and data. 
 
Monthly Improvement Team meeting to review schoolwide outcomes and initiatives. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 84 Gustine High School 

6,000.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
substitute teachers 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
HIGH-QUALITY STAFF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND INSTRUCTIONAL COACHING 
 
Recruit and retain high-quality staff to improve capacity and implement site and district initiatives 
through ongoing professional development, including training and materials for effectively 
implementing standards-aligned curriculum and effective visible learning instructional practices in 
subjects. Include substitutes to cover professional development and travel and conference. 
 
Provide professional development in core ELA, Mathematics, NGSS, MTSS, PLCs, new teacher 
induction, mentoring, administrator coaching and training, Advanced Placement courses, and other 
professional development needs to support student learning. 
 
Partnering with Solution Tree for on-site Standards-Based Grading Practices.  This will be 8 days 
for development for all our departments and teaching staff. 
 
Provide teacher training and support in using research-based practices in delivering, differentiating, 
and continually improving standards-based instruction and grading in their core content area(s) by 
promoting standards-based rigor, equity through culturally responsive and inclusive content and 
teaching practices, and social-emotional learning. Core content includes ELA, Math, Science, 
History/Social Studies, and/or Health curriculum. 
 
Teams will meet at the beginning of each school year to determine site staff development needs 
basing on CAASPP, ELPAC, and IReady results. 
 
Ongoing training in the effective use of behavioral intervention strategies, reading strategies, 
questioning strategies, and technology to deepen and enhance learning and to support all students, 
students with disabilities, English language learners, foster youth, and low-income students. 
 
PBIS Tier 1 and 2 programming and supports include explicitly teaching expectations, modeling, 
and acknowledgment. 
 
Professional development around the 5 Star Program and training more staff creates involvement. 
 
Each grading period, every departmental PLC meets with an administrator and a counselor to 
debrief scores, data protocol, glows and grows, and subgroup progress. 
 
Training for teachers to better scaffold lessons for various levels of language development. 
 
The instructional coach meets with PLC or departments to support the site and district vision in 
mind, data protocols, and data cycles to make continuous, incremental progress through the 
development of Learning Targets. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 84 Gustine High School 

 
Provide technology PD and support for teachers each as the year goes on with new educational 
platforms. 
 
A procedure was created for attendees to report learning and use to ensure that district and site PD 
is applied to and implemented in classrooms to impact student learning. 
 
New Teacher Support (TIP) 
 
Teacher training for curriculum and instruction regarding CCSS and NGSS. 
 
CADA CASL Activities conference to increase positive school culture and climate. Administrators, 
counselors, and teachers should attend to support the efforts of a positive school culture and 
environment. 
Train Success 101 and 102 college and career readiness teachers, Get Focused Stay Focused, 
Drivers Education, Xello. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
55,000.00         LCFF 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
T/C and Professional Development 

10,000.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Substitute teachers 

9,811.00         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING 
 
To provide academic learning experiences for low-income students, students with disabilities, and 
English language learners, sites will provide experiential learning activities and events. These 
experiences allow students to connect conceptual knowledge, apply skills, and reflect on the 
learning process. This funding will support academically-focused field trips and learning events. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 84 Gustine High School 

Such experiential learning opportunities include; but are not limited to: 
* Rotary and Lions Club Speech Contests 
* FFA Impromptu Speaking 
* College Campus field trips for all students 
* Art and Music Field Trips 
* Science explorations Field Trips 
* Success 101 and 102 field trip opportunities for college and career 
* FFA Opening and Closing 
* FFA Meat Judging 
* FFA Dairy Judging 
* FFA Floral Design 
* FFA Project Competition 
* 6th Grade Camp Counselor 
* Physics, Science, and Math Days (Great America) 
* Speech and Debate 
* Gamers Club Program 
* After School Programs 
* Performing Arts/Music performances 
* Club activity and sporting events 
* Counselor and Mental Health events which include students 
* Guest Speakers, both assembly and in-class 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
12,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

20,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
Experiential Learning 

2,500.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
substitute teachers 

35,124.00         Agriculture Vocational Incentive 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

20,209.00         Other 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Perkins Grant 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 84 Gustine High School 

ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
INCREASE COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS 
 
District data demonstrates that low-income students, English Learners, Foster Youth, and Special 
Education students have lower college and career preparedness rates. 
 
To enhance and expand student opportunities in college and career, readiness staff will monitor the 
enrollment of student groups in Career-Technical education courses, Success 101 guidance 
course, AVID, and dual/concurrent enrollment.  Funding will cover fees and supplies associated 
with dual enrollment or work experience. 
 
Enhance and expand student opportunities to learn about College and Career Readiness and to 
experience innovative, authentic learning through a broad course of study, including elective 
courses aligned to Career and Technical Education standards and Career Ready Practices, which 
support CCSS.   Xello, a college and career platform purchased by the district - Xello is an 
engaging online program that helps K-12 students define their goals and transform their aspirations 
into actionable plans for success. The program puts students at the center of their college and 
career planning experience. 
 
Gustine High School will also participate in the Networked Improvement Communities for 
Mathematics to improve the college acceptance rate to four-year universities. The math department 
will be involved in the CVNIC project for the next 4 years (2nd full year). 
 
Engage in active data team discussions at the PLC, site, and district levels to address Critical 
Learner Needs and Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs) 
 
Align CCSS + CCR standards with SLOs 
 
Campaign to enculturate all stakeholders regarding our vision, mission, and SLOs. 
 
Expand our on-site Library with books and library supplies where applicable. Student media 
(photos, prints, ASB, etc.), including yearbook 
 
Added a variety of courses to our course list: Business Management (capstone), Ag chemistry, 
Environmental Horticulture, and Ag Leadership. 
 
Success 101 and 102 introduce students to high school. It allows them to develop skills that will 
enable them to succeed in personal and academic life.  Success 101 and 102 assist students in 
transitioning to a comprehensive high school course and will help students integrate career, 
energy, and educational planning into a career choice and takes deeper dives into college and 
career information.  Classes, video presentations, and lectures are run in an open discussion 
format.  Classwork and homework include writing papers about concepts discussed in the career 
choice book, worksheets, projects, and a portfolio. 
 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 84 Gustine High School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
20,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

10,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
College and Career and AVID 

10,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ADDITIONAL STUDENT SUPPORTS TO ENSURE ACCESS TO HIGH-QUALITY INSTRUCTION 
 
Ensure all instructional aide positions are staffed to provide additional support and extended 
student learning time. 
 
Purchasing of books and library supplies where applicable. 
 
Push-in model with Inclusion Specialists and aides partnering with content teachers 
 
PBIS Tier 1 programming and supports include explicitly teaching expectations, modeling, and 
acknowledgment. 
 
Follow SART/SARB process to increase positive student attendance. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
8,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 84 Gustine High School 

(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNER SUPPORT TO DECREASE THE NUMBER OF LONG-TERM 
ENGLISH LEARNERS, INCREASE RECLASSIFICATION AND DEMONSTRATE PROGRESS ON 
THE ELPI 
 
Increase services to English Learner students and reclassified students by expanding intervention 
support and programs and by providing professional development in the latest research-based 
practices in English Language Development. Services will be improved by supporting teachers in 
the strategic use of student performance data for continuous improvement. This action is expected 
to decrease the number of long-term English Learners, increase reclassification, and demonstrate 
progress on the ELPI. 
 
Provide professional development for integrated and designated ELD Support. 
 
Improve ELD classroom focus on preparing students so they understand the importance of ELPAC 
testing. 
 
ELD scaffolds will be used across content areas embedded in the adopted curriculum. 
 
Utilize the bilingual community liaison for a home to school connections regarding situations that 
arise throughout the school year. 
 
Bilingual community liaison schedules and translates IEPs and parent meetings for Spanish 
speakers. 
 
Translation of documents and presentations 
 
Adopt ELD Curriculum - new curriculum approved for ELD - EDGE. 
 
Continue to monitor progress and grade report periods to structure intervention and support. 
 
Students needing additional English Language development support based on ELPAC and 
CAASPP, as well as classroom grades, will be assigned to a period of designated ELD. 
 
Hire an aide to support EL students.  Professional development of testing team yearly. 
 
Contact parents with positive outcomes/situations.  Have grade chats with EL students and provide 
weekly support and/or support day during ELD class time. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
8,000.00         LCFF 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 84 Gustine High School 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

7,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

2,000.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ACADEMIC COUNSELING TO INCREASE STUDENT SUCCESS 
 
The California Dashboard and district data show a discrepancy between all students and English 
Learners, Foster Youth, low-income students, and students with special needs who are a-g ready, 
enrolled in Career Technical Education (CTE) courses, and enrolled in dual/concurrent enrollment. 
 
School counselors will meet with unduplicated students to encourage completion of CTE pathways, 
monitor progress toward graduation and A-G readiness, and provide interventions and academic 
plans to ensure all students are prepared for college and career. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

7,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 84 Gustine High School 

TECHNOLOGY TO IMPROVE ACCESS TO CORE CONTENT AREAS AND PREPARE 
STUDENTS FOR COLLEGE AND CAREER 
 
Increase the integration of technology into classrooms and provide students with Chromebooks and 
improved internet access as well as digital tools such as Google Apps for education and other 
digital supports necessary to improve access to core content areas and prepare for college and 
career. Ensure common areas and classrooms are equipped with technology tools such as 
projectors, screens, and speakers. This action will be measured by survey data provided by 
classroom teachers and students that technology use is increasing and students are benefitting 
from the integration of technology. 
 
Increase the effective use of technology that supports and enhances learning, including platforms 
such as Google Classroom, EdPuzzle, Kami, Padlet, Nearpod, Screencastify Gimkit, Quizizz, etc. 
 
Technology and support for all students. 
 
Provide technology PD and support for teachers 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
25,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Technology 

20,000.00         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT AND SUPPLIES TO PROVIDE ALL STUDENTS WITH A 
POSITIVE LEARNING 
 
In order to provide all students with a positive learning experience, basic materials and furniture will 
be purchased to provide flexible seating, collaboration tables, and supplies; this action will provide 
space for increased collaboration and teamwork, as well as improve college and career readiness. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 84 Gustine High School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
50,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Flexible seating 

10,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Instructional Materials 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Gustine is working to improve student achievement through high-quality instructional practices. To 
accomplish this, ELA and math have implemented SBE-adopted, standards-aligned curricula and 
are actively using their data-monitoring functions to drive instruction, reteaching, and modification 
of instruction to ensure improved achievement, in addition to using the CAASPP IABs or FIABs to 
monitor student progress informative ways. These efforts are supported across all content areas 
and through the use of evidence-based techniques to enhance learning (i.e., EdPuzzle, Padlet, 
Nearpod, Screencastify, FlipGrid, Gimkit, Quizizz, etc.). In addition, the assigned instructional 
coach works with departments and individual teachers to strengthen instructional practices. The 
motivation for improvement and proficiency on the CAASPP has been correlated with increased 
test scores in the past, which indicates that this strategy could result in continued growth in test 
scores.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
There is no major difference at this time.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will be going through an ELA adoption with ERWC. Math chose CPM which we are currently in 
year one, and Science is close to adoption.  Supporting Standard-Based grading professional 
development efforts for the 23/24 school year.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 84 Gustine High School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Safe and healthy learning environment.          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe facilities, student 
support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra and co-curricular activities as 
measured by state and local data.         

 

Goal 2 
Ensure a safe and secure environment for all Gustine High School families, students, staff and 
visitors.          

 
Identified Need 
1. Continuous need to update, upgrade and maintain campus security systems such as 
camera/video, fencing around the school parameter, and outdoor PA system. 
2. Need for social-emotional support available on campus within the school day. 
3. Revamp the visitor check-in system before checking into the office. 
4. Decrease the suspension for all students and subgroups (EL, SED, and SWD) -  Students with 
Disabilities are in ATSI ( Additional Targeted Support and Improvement) 
 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Increase Facility Inspections 
Tool (FIT) report outcomes 
scores every year.        

 Exemplary Facility Rate  Continue to stay in the 
Exemplary Rate Range 

Parent Involvement as 
measured by Parent Surveys.        

 7% response  20% response 

Increased campus supervision 
on campus.        

 1 full-time campus supervisors  2 full-time campus supervisors 

Update fire, alarm, and phone 
systems.        

 School-wide communication 
system 

 All communication systems on 
campus are in working 
condition 

Mandatory safety trainings         Yearly training for all staff  All staff trained in 22/23 
Suspension Rate as indicated 
by the California Dashboard - 
overall        

 7.5% of all students have been 
suspended at least one day 

 Reduce to 2.5% of all students 
suspended for at least one day. 

Suspension Rate as indicated 
by the California Dashboard - 
Students with Disabilities        

 11.5% students with disabilities 
suspended 

 Reduce suspension rate to 5% 
for Student with Disabilities 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 84 Gustine High School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Student and Parent Meetings 
with School Counselors        

 Counselor will meet with 
students 2 times per year and 
communicate with parents 1 
time per year 

 Counselors will meet in person 
with students 2 times per year 
and meet with parents 1 time 
per year. 

Attendance Rate         Attendance Rate for Regular 
Program 91.8 % 

 Increase Attendance Rate for 
Regular Program 5% to 96.8% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
SAFE FACILITIES 
 
GHS will provide regular maintenance, repairs, and updates to school buildings and grounds to 
increase FIT percentages and ensure student and staff safety. The site will regularly clean and 
sanitize high-touch surfaces to maintain good health. 
 
Includes custodial, maintenance, and other facilities support staff, as well as materials and services 
associated with the maintenance of school sites and other district facilities. 
 
Conduct safety drills on campus. 
 
Proactive discipline model and policies. 
 
Implement Share 911, a school-wide safety alert system for teachers/staff 
 
Continue to employ a full-time Health Aide. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
20,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

8,000.00         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 84 Gustine High School 

 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
SUPPORT SERVICES FOR SOCIAL-EMOTIONAL AND MENTAL HEALTH 
 
School counselors and psychologists, plus our new additional staff personnel (Mental Health 
Clinician and BCBA), will offer counseling and mental health services district-wide to help students 
resolve personal or interpersonal problems. They may also provide small group counseling to help 
students enhance listening and social skills, empathize with others, and find social support through 
healthy peer relationships. 
 
Support services will include Social and Emotional Learning through programs, classroom 
presentations, small groups, and individual sessions. Expanding these services and supports for 
students will improve the academics, behavior, and social-emotional needs of identified groups as 
measured by surveys and referrals. 
 
Conduct a student perceptions survey regarding school climate, culture, learning, and safety. 
 
Quarterly student survey regarding social-emotional well-being and support in the Student Insight 
Survey. 
 
Counselors, ASB, AVID, and some teachers provide self-care, suicide prevention awareness, time 
management, goal-setting, and other SEL-related content. 
Increased social/emotional and mental health support at their Tier 2 and Tier 3 level. 
 
PBIS will be implemented school-wide: we will establish regular meetings for attendance and 
behavior, analyze needs and goals, develop strategies, and share with staff and parents. 
 
CADA Activities conference to increase positive school culture and climate for Activities Director, 
Sucess 101 and 102 instructors, Link Crew, Renaissance advisors, and other club advisors that 
their clubs create a positive impact. 
 
Utilize Counselors and School psychologists to support students. 
 
Increase follow-up for students with poor attendance by phone, emails, ParentSquare messenger, 
and SRO. 
 
Follow SART/SARB process to increase positive student attendance. 
 
School-wide rewards for positive attendance and behavior. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 84 Gustine High School 

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
15,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

10,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
LOW-INCOME, FOSTER YOUTH, AND STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES        
 
Strategy/Activity 
HEALTH SERVICES FOR LOW-INCOME, FOSTER YOUTH, AND STUDENTS WITH 
DISABILITIES 
 
Maintain an equal level of health services at all sites to provide students better care. 
 
Continue to support a full-time School Nurse time to provide more comprehensive care to low-
income and foster youth as well to serve all students better. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

3,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ENGAGEMENT, ENRICHMENT, AND LEADERSHIP 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 84 Gustine High School 

 
Opportunities for engagement, enrichment, and leadership will be increased by providing funding 
for sites for stipends to coach, arbiter fees, and create additional student activities. This action 
includes events and guest speakers to encourage students to participate in school through 
activities, enrichment, clubs, and the arts.  Transportation will be required as needed. 
 
The district and sites will continue to expand student leadership opportunities to ensure students' 
voice that drives strategies and initiatives.  A district student advisory committee will be established, 
and sites will continue to support student leadership through ASB, the student board, and other 
clubs on campus.  Training for students and materials will be provided. 
 
Conduct a deeper analysis of student engagement, explore means of improving student 
engagement, and make recommendations. 
 
Teachers perform a daily health and wellness check with students per district directive. 
 
School-wide rewards for positive attendance and behavior (PBIS and Renaissance) 
 
CAASPP Incentive program for increasing the previous year's score in English, Math, Science, and 
ELPAC. 
 
CADA/CASL Activities conference to increase positive school culture and climate. 
 
Update and upgrade sports uniforms for competitive CIF contests. 
 
Partner with Money Moves Business Club to promote academic, athletics, and club recognition 
awards through spirit gear, certificates, and breakfast or lunch items. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
7,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

12,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

10,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

5,000.00         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 84 Gustine High School 

83,410.00         Other 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Lottery Funding - Resource 1100 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
SCHOOL SAFETY 
 
Campus Supervisors (increase to 2 full-time or 1 full-time and 1 5.25), the School Resource Officer 
(SRO), and Assistant Principals will work together to provide a safe school campus for students 
and staff as well as improve student conduct by being present, building healthy relationships, and 
monitoring the school campuses. A Teacher in Charge role will be assigned at each school site to 
maintain student safety without administrators. 
 
To maintain communication and safety, materials such as radios, equipment, and supplies and 
additional services ensure all school sites are secure and staff and students are safe. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

10,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
radios or communication system 

2,000.00         LCFF 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
supervision 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
POSITIVE BEHAVIORAL INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 59 of 84 Gustine High School 

Gustine High School works for teaching all students appropriate behaviors through the evidence-
based three-tiered Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) framework that uses 
data, systems, and strategies to improve student outcomes each day. Supplies and materials will 
be purchased as incentives and rewards for following expected behaviors. The sites will improve 
data collection ways to track data and successful outcomes. Decreased referrals, suspensions, and 
expulsions will measure this action. The student survey will also reflect an increase in students 
stating that good behaviors are recognized, and they feel safe at school. 
 
Through ATSI ( Additional Targeted Support and Improvement) for all students with a clear focus 
on our Students with Disabilities suspension rate, Implement a TieI system of support through 
research-based behavioral strategies. Monitor fidelity of the implementation and overall status of 
progress toward our goals.  Identify and develop data-based plans and communicate with school 
site teams and members.  The leadership team and all staff will discuss and adopt research-based 
strategies on behavior through vetted organizations like Collaborative for Academic, Social, and 
Emotional Learning, PBIS World, and the Center of PBIS. 
 
We will implement a PBIS activity into our staff meetings once a month and have monthly PBIS 
committee meetings to discuss progress and next steps. 
 
Strengthen the PBIS incentive program to recognize students with PLC/PBIS quarterly meetings. 
Continue to purchase the 5 Star Program, develop teachers to use it as a reward system, and 
purchase incentive items for rewarding positive or improved behaviors. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
20,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

10,000.00         Title I 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

10,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
rewards system, 5-Star, professional 
development 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 60 of 84 Gustine High School 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Partner with outside agencies in focused efforts to reduce chronic absenteeism and increase 
attendance rates. 
 
Continue the Attendance Review Board and develop strategies, supports, and incentives for 
students to ensure higher attendance rates and avoid chronic absenteeism. 
 
Improve upon the tiered re-engagement strategies through family partnerships and home visits to 
determine why the student is absent from school and create plans to re-engage in the school 
system. 
 
Data will be tracked to determine best practices and to monitor attendance trends. 
 
Professional development in best practices for working with families with attendance concerns. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
15,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

15,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

15,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Gustine has improved on its overall communications with all stakeholders. We have maintained our 
suspension rate, but attendance continues to be an area for improvement.        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 61 of 84 Gustine High School 

Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
There are no major differences.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We are continuing with our goals to effectively communicate and support schoolwide safety and 
behaviors.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 62 of 84 Gustine High School 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Parent, Family, and Community Partnerships          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will create partnerships with parents, families and the community to provide meaningful opportunities that will 
build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as well as celebrate student learning.         

 

Goal 3 
We will increase parent, student, and stakeholder involvement and build partnerships          

 
Identified Need 
1. Increase parent participation by responding to surveys and attending on-campus events. 
2. Preparing and developing parents with academic knowledge to support their children. 
3. Advising and informing parents with college and career readiness information so they can support 
their child's post-high school plans. 
4. Build a better communication system from school to home to better serve students. 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Parent/Teacher communication 
and support        

 Parent conference one time 
per semester to review 
academic progress 

 Parent conference two times 
per year to review academic 
progress. 

Attendance at school 
sponsored events        

 50% of the student body attend 
at least one school sponsored 
event. 

 80% of the student body attend 
at least one school sponsored 
event. 

Increase the number of school-
wide student activities.        

 28 major events put one at 
GHS 

 Increase major events by 2 for 
the upcoming school year. 

Work with district to provide 
bullying and mental health 
awareness nights        

 School/district partnership one 
or more times per school year 

 Increase school/district 
partnership for awareness 
night events to 2 or more times 
per year 

Social media and 
ParentSquare event reminders        

 Highlight 90% of campus 
events on all social media 
platforms that are tied to GHS 

 Highlight 100% of campus 
events on all social media 
platforms that are tied to GHS 

Attendance monitoring of 
parent education and parent 
engagement meeting and 
information events via a sign-in 
sheets.        

 Parent engagement, 
college/career events and 
social and emotional, paint 
night and GPD town hall 
events at Gustine High School.  

 Increase parent attendance 
and involvement to 225 parents 
attending throughout the year. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 63 of 84 Gustine High School 

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

The number of total parents 
that attended these meetings 
were 164. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
PARENT CAPACITY BUILDING 
 
Increase and improve opportunities for parents of English learners, foster youth, and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students to understand and be involved in district processes and 
school activities, advisory groups, and strategies to support learning at home. 
 
Counselors will hold Parent Education nights, Senior Night, College Information sessions, FAFSA 
workshops, and events and communications for all students. 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

5,000.00         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

5,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

10,000.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 64 of 84 Gustine High School 

(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
Plan and promote activities, programs, and showcase events to highlight and celebrate student and 
parent successes to build community and belonging. 
 
Host school-sponsored academic/co-curricular and extracurricular events to enhance student and 
parent involvement, such as Parent Engagement Committee, college nights, mental health and 
social-emotional awareness, and general parent meetings. 
 
Maintain GHS Facebook, Instagram, and website platforms for news and information and post 
information about all meetings for parents (i.e., SSC, ELAC, Parent Education Nights, Report Card 
Night, Parent Engagement Committee) on the school’s social media. 
 
Send communication for all meetings for parents (i.e., SSC, ELAC, Parent Education Nights, 
Report Card Night, Parent Engagement Committee) via ParentSquare. 
 
Post information about all meetings for parents (i.e., SSC, ELAC, Parent Education Nights, Report 
Card Night, Parent Engagement Committee) on the school website. 
 
Home-to-School Communication for all supports and events that happen on campus through 
Parent Square, Facebook, and Instagram. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

5,000.00         LCFF 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 
 

4,573.09         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ALL STUDENTS        
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 65 of 84 Gustine High School 

Strategy/Activity 
CHILDCARE TO INCREASE PARENT ENGAGEMENT AND PARTICIPATION 
 
To increase access and the ability for parents to attend school meetings, childcare will be provided. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000.00         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Child Care 

1,000.00         LCFF 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS/ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Our site will have a dedicated family bilingual liaison to reach out to families to build partnerships 
with families to increase engagement, convey school information, and ensure all parent meetings 
are interpreted and materials are translated. 
 
Place calls to Spanish- speaking parents via the Bilingual Liaison to ensure clear communication. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000.00         LCFF 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Translator 

15,000.00         Title I 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
EL Instructional Aide 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 66 of 84 Gustine High School 

ALL STUDENTS        
 
Strategy/Activity 
STRUCTURES FOR COMMUNICATION 
 
Promote ongoing and open communication among all stakeholders that maintains a culture of 
respect, integrity, and inclusion through site personnel, programs, an updated website, multiple 
forms of district/site communication, office/communication supplies, and document translation 
services. 
 
This will include a variety of tools, including Parent Square, websites, email communication, text 
messaging, postage, incorporating the use of apps, and traditional communication. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Parent Square and Supplies 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Parent involvement has increased over the past year, which has made a positive impact on the 
school. Our daily and monthly communications with our families, as well as the events hosted, have 
proved effective this past school year.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
There are no major differences at the time.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue to reach out and communicate with parents in a variety ways. Our developing 
knowledge of effective communication with parents on several different platforms will only enhance 
our home to school connections.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 67 of 84 Gustine High School 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 68 of 84 Gustine High School 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $ 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $ 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $940,796.09 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title I        $212,873.09 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $212,873.09 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

Agriculture Vocational Incentive        $35,124.00 

LCFF        $551,811.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $37,369.00 

Other        $103,619.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $727,923.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $940,796.09 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 69 of 84 Gustine High School 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

Agriculture Vocational Incentive         35,124.00 

LCFF         551,811.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials         37,369.00 

Other         103,619.00 

Title I         212,873.09 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries         61,500.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries         52,800.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         611,496.09 

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures        

 215,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Agriculture Vocational Incentive  35,124.00 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  29,500.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 LCFF  3,500.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  337,811.00 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 LCFF  181,000.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 70 of 84 Gustine High School 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  37,369.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Other  103,619.00 

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  32,000.00 

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries        

 Title I  49,300.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  97,573.09 

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures        

 Title I  34,000.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  592,813.00 

Goal 2  285,410.00 

Goal 3  62,573.09 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 71 of 84 Gustine High School 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
4 Classroom Teachers        

3 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        

4 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Adam Cano         X Principal        

Barbara Azevedo         X Other School Staff        

Andrea Verdin         X Other School Staff        

Yaneli Ledezma         X Classroom Teacher        

Natalie Wojinski         X Classroom Teacher        

Alan Ward         X Classroom Teacher        

Maria Alapizco         X Parent or Community Member        

Jennifer Okamoto - President         X Classroom Teacher        

Gerzayr Alapizco         X Parent or Community Member        

Nelida Lomeli         X Parent or Community Member        

Isabel Martinez         X Parent or Community Member        

Antonia Sierra         X Parent or Community Member        

Kaitlin Dores         X Secondary Student        

Garret Gomes         X Secondary Student        

Alejandro Maldonado Limon         X Secondary Student        

Alma Medina Tovar - Vice President          

 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 72 of 84 Gustine High School 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 

 

X English Learner Advisory Committee        

 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on May 15, 2023. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Adam Cano on May 15, 2023 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Jennifer Okamoto on May 15, 2023 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 73 of 84 Gustine High School 

Instructions 
 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan process.  
 
The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through 
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school improvement programs, including 
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California 
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program 
planning requirements. It also notes how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation 
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized 
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet 
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The 
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. 
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review 
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also 
contains a notation of how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements.  
Educational Partner Involvement 
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
Annual Review and Update 
Budget Summary  
Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs  
Appendix B: Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact 
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 
 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 74 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the local 
educational agency, or the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support 
Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Purpose and Description 
Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the 
following prompts. A school that has not been identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose 
and Description prompts. 
 
Purpose 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive 
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
 
Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 

Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of 
the SPSA and the budget process. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and 
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these 
advisory groups in the development of the SPSA.  
 
The Stakeholder Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used to 
involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and 
implementation of this plan.] 
 

Resource Inequities 
Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment. Identified resource inequities 
must be addressed through implementation of the CSI or ATSI plan. Briefly identify and describe any 
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the 
identified resource inequities are addressed in the SPSA.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATSI. If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI 
this section is not applicable and may be deleted.] 
 

mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov
mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 75 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review 
In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to 
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
strategies and activities. 
 
Goal 
State the goal. A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all 
strategies/activities are directed. A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach. A S.M.A.R.T. 
goal is one that is Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound. A level of specificity 
is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it is 
reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic 
approach that supports student success.  
 
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals, 
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable 
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by 
districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements] 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating 
progress toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. 
Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available 
at the time of adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator 
includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome 
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the 
metrics that led to the school’s identification.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific 
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification.]  
 
Strategies/Activities 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal. A school may 
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of reference. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 76 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state 
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local 
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting, 
if applicable. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based 
interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation, 
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting.] 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students” 
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the 
TSI or ATSI designation. For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led 
to identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected.] 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for 
the school year to implement these strategies/activities. Specify the funding source(s) using one or 
more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other 
State, and/or Local. 
 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C), 
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or 
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting, 
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATSI.] 
 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In addition, 
funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 
 

Annual Review  
In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from 
the prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates 
to the plan. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 77 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as 
instructed. Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal the Annual Review section is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 

● Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of 
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal.  

 
● Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the 

budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
 
● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 

metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes 
can be found in the SPSA. 

 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual 
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATSI 
planning requirements. CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the 
Instructions. For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a 
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements.]  
 

Budget Summary  
In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp and 
that receive federal funds for CSI. If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this 
section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that meet the criteria 
for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total 
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for 
CSI. 
 
Budget Summary 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as 
follows: 
 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application: This amount is the 
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year.  The 
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

 
● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total of 

the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are 
listed in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows: 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 78 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

● Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is the total 
amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA.  

 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATSI. In addition, funds 
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 79 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements   
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
 
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the 
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC. The content of a 
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
 
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s 

goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as 
noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil 
performance against state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the 
Identified Need); and 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school, 
including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section 
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to— 
i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and 

learning need to be improved; and 
ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are 

not yet achieving the State's academic standards; and 
iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the 

schoolwide program under §200.28. 
iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of 

individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan. 
v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and 

the conclusions it drew from those results.  
B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA 

and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update).  

 
Requirements for the Plan 

II. The SPSA shall include the following:  
A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as 

identified through the needs assessment.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 80 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities) 
1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school 

needs, including a description of how such strategies will-- 
a. provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to 

meet the challenging state academic standards 
b. use methods and instructional strategies that: 

i. strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, 

activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education. 
c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students 
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through 
activities which may include: 
i. strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas;  
ii. preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and 

the workforce;  
iii. implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 

behavior;  
iv. professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data; and 
v. strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood 

education programs to local elementary school programs. 
C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing 

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to 
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including 
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s 
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and 
Budget Summary). Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a 
single cost objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described in 
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update). 
1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide 

program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of 
academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the 
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for 
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure 
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 81 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review, 
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Educational Partner 
Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience 
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be 
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to 
1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students. 

G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in 
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 

H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 

I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in 
the Strategies/Activities). 

Authority Cited: S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 6400 et. seq.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 82 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Appendix B:  
 
Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at 
SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and 
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement). 
The CSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. Department 
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf); 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); and  

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to 
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; and Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Targeted Support and Improvement 
In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents) 
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each 
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Educational Partner Involvement).  
The TSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); and 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. 
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf.) 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA. 

  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 83 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school identified for ATSI shall:  

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, 
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable).  

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall 
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds 
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019).  
 
However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the 
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, 
effective January 1, 2019). 
 
Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option 
are available in the LCAP Instructions.  
 
Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 84 of 84 Gustine High School 
 
 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  
Programs included on the Consolidated Application: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ 
ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp 
Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/ 
 
Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

 
School Year:    2023-24     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Pioneer High 
(Continuation)         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

24736192430031         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 15, 2023         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 14, 2023         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
Pioneer High School is an alternative education program (continuation school), which provides 
opportunities and strives to meet the needs and goals of students that have not been met at the 
comprehensive high school.  We provide an individualized instructional program in a flexible learning 
environment.  Pioneer's educational program and curriculum are aligned with Gustine High School 
and California state educational standards but is modified for acceleration.   There is one principal, 
two counselors available.  There is one certificated teacher that facilitates the the online learning 
program and we will be adopting a new online program called Edgenuity.         
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Table of Contents 
 

SPSA Title Page ...............................................................................................................................................1 

Purpose and Description ...................................................................................................................................1 

Table of Contents ..............................................................................................................................................2 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components ...........................................................................................4 

Data Analysis ............................................................................................................................................4 

Surveys .....................................................................................................................................................4 

Classroom Observations ...........................................................................................................................4 

Analysis of Current Instructional Program .................................................................................................4 

Educational Partner Involvement ......................................................................................................................7 

Resource Inequities ..........................................................................................................................................7 

School and Student Performance Data ............................................................................................................8 

Student Enrollment ....................................................................................................................................8 

CAASPP Results .....................................................................................................................................10 

ELPAC Results .......................................................................................................................................13 

Student Population ..................................................................................................................................15 

Overall Performance ...............................................................................................................................17 

Academic Performance ...........................................................................................................................19 

Academic Engagement ...........................................................................................................................25 

Conditions & Climate ...............................................................................................................................28 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures ..................................................................................................30 

Goal 1 ......................................................................................................................................................30 

Goal 2 ......................................................................................................................................................33 

Goal 3 ......................................................................................................................................................35 

Goal 4 ......................................................................................................................................................37 

Goal 5 ......................................................................................................................................................38 

Budget Summary ............................................................................................................................................39 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................39 

Other Federal, State, and Local Funds ...................................................................................................39 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan ..............................................................................................40 

Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source .................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Funding Source ............................................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Budget Reference ........................................................................................................40 

Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source .......................................................................40 

Expenditures by Goal ..............................................................................................................................40 

School Site Council Membership ....................................................................................................................42 

Recommendations and Assurances ...............................................................................................................43 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Instructions ......................................................................................................................................................44 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents ....................................................................................................44 

Purpose and Description .........................................................................................................................45 

Educational Partner Involvement ............................................................................................................45 

Resource Inequities ................................................................................................................................45 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review ........................................................................................46 

Annual Review ........................................................................................................................................47 

Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................................48 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements .............................................................................................................50 

Appendix B: .............................................................................................................................................53 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs ...................................................................................55 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-
year, and a summary of results from the survey(s). 
There was no comprehensive needs assessment completed this year but through teacher/parent 
conferences, the school administrator or counselors are able to gage the parents and students 
needs.         
 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during 
the school-year and a summary of findings. 
Classroom observations are conducted on a weekly basis throughout the school year.  The 
observations are focused on the monitoring and engagement of our online learning platform.         

 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 
1965 and Essential Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these 
categories may be used to discuss and develop critical findings that characterize current instructional 
practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on 
verifiable facts. Avoid vague or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the 
status of these findings and note progress made.  Special consideration should be given to any 
practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing monitoring of categorical 
programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
The Edgenuity online courseware system has grade level content and built interventions for all 
students whether students are at grade level, falling behind, or advanced. 

 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction 
(EPC) 
The Edgenuity system and teacher tracks the students personalized learning and assessments 
throughout the course to achieve mastery. 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
There is a credentialed teacher facilitating student learning. 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional 
materials training on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
The classroom teacher has access to the current and updated instructional information and a-g 
approved courses are found on Edgenuity's home page. 

 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional 
needs (ESEA) 
N/A 

 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional 
coaches) (EPC) 
Edgenuity provides yearly professional development for the teachers who facilitate the classes 
online. 

 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades 
nine through twelve) (EPC) 
N/A 

 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
Edgenuity Online Curriculum offers educators best-in-class online curriculum for kindergarten 
through adult learners with over 400 engaging courses. Edgenuity's curriculum is customizable to 
meet the needs and pace of individual learners. 
 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) 
(EPC) 
N/A 

 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention 
courses (EPC) 
N/A 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
Edgenuity Courseware enables students to take ownership over their learning and supports 
educators with Teacher-Powered Technology™ that helps them improve efficiency and maximize 
student success. 
Courseware curriculum is grounded in research and aligned to state standards, the Common Core, 
and the NGSS. Courses combine direct-instruction videos featuring expert, on-screen teachers with 
rigorous assignments, performance tasks, and assessments to engage students and ensure subject-
area mastery. 
 
Courseware connects with students with a flexible offering that supports evolving instructional needs 
for fully online, blended, hybrid, and in-person instruction. 
 
 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, 
and for high school students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Targeted Intervention to Help Students Catch Up 
Edgenuity’s online intervention programs,  MyPath® (6–12), provide students with personalized 
instruction that focuses on the skills and concepts in math and ELA they still need to master so they 
can catch up, keep up, or get ahead. The programs tailor learning to the needs of each student with 
a focus on building the confidence they need to move forward. 
 
 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
N/A 

 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
N/A 

 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students 
(ESEA) 
Families have access to the teacher, counselors and administrator to help support their child's goals 
while at Pioneer High. 

 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and 
students in secondary schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs 
(5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
N/A 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards 
(ESEA) 
The Edgenutiy service is provided by categorical funds. 

 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Financial support is provided through the district through general funds. 

 
Educational Partner Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
At this time stakeholder involvement is on a case by case basis for a students who want to attend 
Pioneer High School.  The stakeholders that are involved in the decision to enroll at PHS are the 
Site Principal, Counselor, Parent and Student.  There two ways to enroll at Pioneer High School.  
One being that a student and parent want to voluntarily transfer because Pioneer is the best 
educational fit for the student.  The second way is the student is deficient in credits and has no other 
option but to transfer to Pioneer to recovery lost credits.  Both processes always involve both the 
student and parent to sign off on the voluntary transfer and the student who is in credit recovery can 
opt to stay at the comprehensive high school and risk graduating.         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
N/A         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 10        2  2 

Grade 11        4 6 6 

Grade 12        18 6 18 

Total Enrollment        24 12 26 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Enrollment at Pioneer High School has increased over the last three years.        

2. Student enrollment has a high number of Hispanic students.        

3. Students who are considered white have decreased in enrollment and our Hispanic students have increased in 
enrollment.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

English Learners        6 0 9 25.00% 0.0% 34.6% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        10 6 12 41.70% 50.0% 46.1% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        0   0.0%   
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. English Learner students and Fluent Proficient students make up slightly more the half the student population at 

Pioneer High School.        
2. English Learner enrollment has increased and  FEP student enrollment has decreased.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11 8 12  0 12  0 12  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 8 12  0 12  0 12  0.0 100.0  
The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
 
 

 
Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11  2414.
2 

  0.00   8.33   8.33   83.33  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  0.00   8.33   8.33   83.33  
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

 
Listening 

Demonstrating effective communication skills 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

 
Research/Inquiry 

Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Only 15 of the 22 students enrolled participated in the CAASPP ELA test.        

2. Of the 15 student who participated, 73% did not meet standard.        

3. The two lowest performance areas were research/inquiry at 66.67% and writing at 73% below standard.        



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores 

% of Enrolled Students 
Tested 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11 8 12  0 12  0 12  0.0 100.0  

All Grades 8 12  0 12  0 12  0.0 100.0  

* The “% of Enrolled Students Tested” showing in this table is not the same as “Participation Rate” for federal accountability 
purposes. 
 
  

 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard Met % Standard Nearly 
Met 

% Standard Not 
Met 

Grade 
Level 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

Grade 11  2356.
3 

  0.00   0.00   0.00   100.0  

All Grades N/A N/A N/A  0.00   0.00   0.00   100.0  
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Of the 22 students enrolled, 15 participated in the CAASPP math test.        

2. Of the 15 students who participated, 100% did not meet standard.        

3. 100% of the student did not meet standard in concepts and procedures.   Problem solving dropped from 80% to 
93.3% with student not meeting standards.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

ELPAC Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 
Students Tested Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  4 *  

All Grades                 5 6  
 

Overall Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

Oral Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

Written Language 
Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

Listening Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Speaking Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

Reading Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

Writing Domain 
Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number 
of Students Grade 

Level 
20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 20-21 21-22 22-23 

  12    * *  * *  * *  * *  

All Grades        * *  * *  * *  * *  
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No ELPAC scores due to Covid-19        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
For the past two years, many state and federal accountability requirements were waived or adjusted due to the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic on LEAs, schools, and students. Beginning with the 2021-22 school year, the requirements to hold 
schools and districts accountable for student outcomes has returned with the release of the 2022 California School 
Dashboard (Dashboard). The Every Student Succeeds Act is requiring all states to determine schools eligible for support. 
Similarly, under state law, Assembly Bill (AB) 130, which was signed into law in 2021, mandates the return of the Dashboard 
using only current year performance data to determine LEAs for support. Therefore, to meet this state requirement, only the 
2021-22 school year data will be reported on the 2022 Dashboard for state indicators. (Data for Change [or the difference 
from prior year] and performance colors will not be reported.) 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2021-22 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

12         
Total Number of Students enrolled 
in Pioneer High (Continuation). 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

83.3         
Students who are eligible for free 
or reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

Students who are learning to 
communicate effectively in 
English, typically requiring 
instruction in both the English 
Language and in their academic 
courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

Students whose well being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2021-22 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners           

Foster Youth           

Homeless           

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         10 83.3 

Students with Disabilities           
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American           

American Indian           

Asian           

Filipino           

Hispanic         8 66.7 

Two or More Races         1 8.3 

Pacific Islander           

White         3 25.0 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Pioneer High has a high population of socio-economically disadvantaged and Hispanics students.         

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 

2022 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

English Language Arts 

 
No Performance Level        

Mathematics 

 
No Performance Level        

English Learner Progress 

 
No Performance Level        

College/Career 
Not Reported in 2022        

Academic Engagement 

Graduation Rate 

 
No Performance Level        

Conditions & Climate 

Suspension Rate 

 
Very Low        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Suspension rate is in the Orange as 6.3% of the students have been suspended at least once.        

2. Suspension rate percentage has maintained but Hispanic and socio-economically disadvantaged students 
population has increase slightly.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts 
assessment. This measure is based on student performance on either the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or 
the California Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
No Performance Level         

6 Students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
No Performance Level         

5 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Level         

4 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in English Language Arts. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

0 Students        

Reclassified English Learners English Only 

2 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not enough data to report.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathamtics Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides a view of how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This 
measure is based on student performance either on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment or the California 
Alternate Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and grade 11. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
No Performance Level         

6 Students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Level         

0 Students        

Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
No Performance Level         

5 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Level         

4 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         

1 Student        

 
This section provides additional information on distance from standard for current English learners, prior or Reclassified 
English learners, and English Only students in mathematics 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

0 Students        

Reclassified English Learners English Only 

2 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Not enough data to report.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
This section provides information on the percentage of current EL students making progress towards English language 
proficiency or maintaining the highest level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard English Learner Progress Indicator 

 English Learner Progress 

 
No Performance Level         

 making progress towards English 
language proficiency          

Number of EL Students: 6 Students          
Performance Level: No Performance 

Level        

 

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of current EL students who progressed at least one ELPI level, maintained 
ELPI level 4, maintained lower ELPI levels (i.e, levels 1, 2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H), or decreased at least one ELPI Level. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Student English Language Acquisition Results 

Decreased  
One ELPI Level 

0.0%         

Maintained ELPI Level 1, 
2L, 2H, 3L, or 3H 

0.0%         

Maintained 
ELPI Level 4 

0.0%         

Progressed At Least 
One ELPI Level 

0.0%         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data to report.        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career Report 

 
College/Career data provides information on whether high school students are prepared for success after graduation based 
on measures like graduation rate, performance on state tests, and college credit courses.  College/Career data was not 
reported in 2022. 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data to report in regards to students prepared after high school.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Very High        High        Medium        Low        Very Low        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data to report.        

 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 

 
Very Low 

 
Low 

 
Medium 

 
High 

 
Very High 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Very Low        
0        

Low        
0        

Medium        
0        

High        
0        

Very High        
0        

 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
No Performance Level         

72.2% graduated         
18 Students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

4 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
No Performance Level         

72.2% graduated         
18 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

2022 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Level         

68.8% graduated         
16 Students        

Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

2 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data to report.        

 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state law allows the 2022 Dashboard to only display the most current year of data (also 
known as Status). For this year only, performance levels will be reported using one of five Status levels (ranging from Very 
High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low) for state measures. Please note that the Status levels associated with the Chronic 
Absenteeism and Suspension Rate Indicators are reversed (ranging from Very Low, Low, Medium, High, and Very High). 
Information regarding this year's Dashboard data is available within the Dashboard Communications Toolkit. 
 
Because performance on state measures is based on current year (i.e., 2021-22) results only for the 2022 Dashboard, the 
color dials have been replaced with one of five Status levels (ranging from Very High, High, Medium, Low, and Very Low). 
 

 
Very High 

 
High 

 
Medium 

 
Low 

 
Very Low 

Lowest Performance    Highest Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each level. 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Very High        
0        

High        
0        

Medium        
0        

Low        
0        

Very Low        
1        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 
 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
34 Students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

9 Students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Very Low         

0% suspended at least one day         
30 Students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/cm/dashboardtoolkit.asp


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

2022 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Level         

0% suspended at least one 
day         

28 Students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

1 Student        

Pacific Islander White     

 
No Performance Level         
Less than 11 Students         

5 Students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The suspension rate at PHS is 6.3% and is in the Orange.        

2. English Learners and SED students increased in suspensions.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Student Achievment in English Language Arts and Mathematics          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Gustine Unified School District will increase student achievement and prepare students to be college and career ready 
by providing opportunities for access to a broad course of study, academic counseling and intervention supports, 
technology and research based curriculum, provided by a high quality professional staff, as evidenced by state and local 
data.         

 

Goal 1 
For the 2023-24 school year 
Pioneer High School will improve in ELA by 5% on students meeting or exceeding standard from 
55% to 60% on ELA CAASPP. 
 
 
Pioneer High School will improve in Math by 5% on students meeting or exceeding standard from 
20.5% to 25.5% on Math CAASPP. 
 
 
 
Develop a plan for goal setting to track progress throughout the course. 
          

 
Identified Need 
All student performance on the CAASPP will improve yearly as Pioneer High students work on their 
courses for graduation as well as performing above mastery in their course work.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

CAASPP ELA         ELA percent proficient 54%  59% proficient 
CAASPP Math         Math percent proficient 20.5%  25.5% proficient 
Increase the mummer of CTE 
and College and Career 
courses taken with the school 
year.        

 Students enrolled in 1 course 
per year 

 Students enrolled in 2 courses 
per year 

Goal setting during online 
learning        

 Master 2 of 4 end of the unit 
assessment with 70% mastery 
in the first attempt 

 Master 3 of 4 end of the unit 
assessment with 70% mastery 
in the first attempt 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Targeted intervention and support for ELA and Math and all courses taken using the Edgenuity 
online learning program and program supports. 
Teacher 
 
College and Career Readiness -  High school counselors will host a College & Career Fair which 
Pioneer High students are able to attend. Pioneer students will be invited to college and career 
presentations. The school counselors are available to assist students in the financial aid process 
for college. 
 
Effective support in Edgenuity - The Pioneer teacher will continue to support all students who are 
taking courses on the Edgenuity online learning program.   Along with A-g courses offered, 
students can enroll in CTE and College and Career Readiness courses. 
 
Goals will need to change after students have begun working toward meeting them, so it’s best for 
students, counselors and the teacher to monitor progress and make adjustments. 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
15,490.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

2,720.00         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

9,695.00         Title I 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

1,385.00         Other 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
The overall collaboration between the district secondary site is to enhance its supports to students 
who are enrolled in the online program so they are successful throughout the school year and 
during state testing.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No changes at this time.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
None at this time.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Safe and healthy learning environment          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will provide an inclusive and supportive learning environment by providing clean and safe facilities, student 
support services for social emotional learning and mental health, as well as extra and co-curricular activities as 
measured by state and local data.         

 

Goal 2 
Pioneer High will ensure a safe learning environment for all students and staff and to ensure the 
school is prepared to effectively respond to emergencies.          

 
Identified Need 
Upgrade communication systems between secondary sites and upgrade safety procedures         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Increase Fit Report outcomes         85%  90% 
Parent and student feedback 
survey forms        

 20% of parents respond  25% of parents respond 

Attendance rate         60% positive attendance  70% positive attendance 
 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement PBIS program and safety initiatives for students 
 
Conduct safety drills on campus. 
Principal 
Teacher 
 
Increase follow up for students with poor attendance 
Principal 
Teacher 
 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Continue to supervise students on distance learning 
Principal 
Teacher 
 
Utilize counselors and behavioral supports for students 
Princiapl 
Teacher 
Counselors 
 
 
MTSS - Administration and teacher will produce an attendance incentive at the end of grading 
periods to reward students who have shown improvement in attendance and have adhered to 
consistent attendance for academic success 
 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,000.00         LCFF 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Pioneer would like to implement parent events into its calendar to engage families.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue to provide schoolwide information to families so students feel supported.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
Parent engagement          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
GUSD will create partnerships with parents, families and the community to provide meaningful opportunities that will 
build the capacity of all in order to inform and enhance student achievement as well as celebrate student learning.         

 

Goal 3 
Pioneer High administration and teacher will work with parents and community members to create a 
positive culture and climate.          

 
Identified Need 
Increase the communications between home and school.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Parent engagement and 
communication via Parent 
Square, phone or email        

 90% of parents will receive 
communications from school 
about events and general 
messages. 

 95% of parents will receive 
communications from school 
about events and general 
messages. 

Parent/Teacher conferences         academic and college and 
career conference set up 3 
times per year 

 academic and college and 
career conference set up 3 
times per year 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
Enhance PBIS on campus 
Principal 
Teacher 
 
Home to school communications for all supports on campus. 
Principal 
Teacher 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

 
        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000.00         Title I 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2022-23 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We plan to implement  monthly or bimonthly parent communications to families in regards to 
student performance.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Continue to reach out to parent and community to be involved at Pioneer High school.        

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
         

 

Goal 4 
          

 
Identified Need 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 
startcollapse  
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
 

 
 
  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
Goal Subject 
          

 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
         

 

Goal 5 
          

 
Identified Need 
         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 
startcollapse  
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
 

 
 
  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $ 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $ 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $36,290.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title I        $11,695.00 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $11,695.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

LCFF        $20,490.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $2,720.00 

Other        $1,385.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $24,595.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $36,290.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan 
 
The tables below are provided to help the school track expenditures as they relate to funds budgeted to the school. 
 
Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount  Balance 
 
Expenditures by Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Funding Source  Amount 

LCFF         20,490.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials         2,720.00 

Other         1,385.00 

Title I         11,695.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Amount 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         36,290.00 
 
Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source 
 
startcollapse 

Budget Reference  Funding Source  Amount 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         LCFF  20,490.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Lottery:  Instructional Materials  2,720.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Other  1,385.00 

4000-4999: Books And Supplies         Title I  11,695.00 

 
Expenditures by Goal 
 
startcollapse 

Goal Number  Total Expenditures 

Goal 1  29,290.00 

Goal 2  5,000.00 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Goal 3  2,000.00 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
6 Classroom Teachers        

3 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        

5 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Adam Cano         X Principal        

Barbara Azevedo         X Other School Staff        

Andrea Verdin         X Other School Staff        

Yaneli Ledezma         X Classroom Teacher        

Jennifer Okamoto         X Classroom Teacher        

Alan Ward         X Classroom Teacher        

Nely Lomeli         X Parent or Community Member        

Natalie Wojinski         X Classroom Teacher        

Antonia Sierra         X Parent or Community Member        

Maria and Gerzayr Alapizco         X Parent or Community Member        

Lettie Borrelli         X Other School Staff        

Garret Gomes         X Secondary Student        

Kaitlin Dores         X Secondary Student        

Alejandro Maldonado Limon         X Secondary Student        

Alma Medina Tovar         X Secondary Student        

Isabel Martinez         X Secondary Student        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Recommendations and Assurances 
 
The School Site Council (SSC) recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the district governing board for 
approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
The SSC is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with district governing board policy and state law. 
 
The SSC reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district governing board policies, including those board policies 
relating to material changes in the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) requiring board approval. 
 
The SSC sought and considered all recommendations from the following groups or committees before adopting this plan: 

Signature Committee or Advisory Group Name 
 
The SSC reviewed the content requirements for school plans of programs included in this SPSA and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing board policies and in the local educational 
agency plan. 
 
This SPSA is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. The actions proposed herein form a sound, 
comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance. 
 
This SPSA was adopted by the SSC at a public meeting on May 15, 2023. 
 
Attested: 

 

 Principal, Barbara Azevedo on May 15, 2023 

 

 SSC Chairperson, Jennifer Okamoto on May 15, 2023 

 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 

Instructions 
 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a strategic plan that maximizes the resources 
available to the school while minimizing duplication of effort with the ultimate goal of increasing 
student achievement. SPSA development should be aligned with and inform the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan process.  
 
The SPSA consolidates all school-level planning efforts into one plan for programs funded through 
the consolidated application (ConApp), and for federal school improvement programs, including 
schoolwide programs, Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI), pursuant to California 
Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). This template is designed to meet schoolwide program 
planning requirements. It also notes how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements, as applicable. 
 
California’s ESSA State Plan supports the state’s approach to improving student group performance 
through the utilization of federal resources. Schools use the SPSA to document their approach to 
maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved students. The implementation 
of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for schools to innovate with their federally-funded 
programs and align them with the priority goals of the school and the LEA that are being realized 
under the state’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).  
 
The LCFF provides schools and LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet 
the needs of students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The 
SPSA planning process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement. 
Consistent with EC 65001, the Schoolsite Council (SSC) is required to develop and annually review 
the SPSA, establish an annual budget, and make modifications to the plan that reflect changing 
needs and priorities, as applicable. 
 
For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
The SPSA template meets the requirements of schoolwide planning (SWP). Each section also 
contains a notation of how to meet CSI, TSI, or ATSI requirements.  
Educational Partner Involvement 
Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
Planned Strategies/Activities 
Annual Review and Update 
Budget Summary  
Appendix A: Plan Requirements for Title I Schoolwide Programs  
Appendix B: Plan Requirements for Schools to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to LEA and school planning, please contact 
the Local Agency Systems Support Office, at LCFF@cde.ca.gov. 
 

mailto:LCFF@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

For programmatic or policy questions regarding Title I schoolwide planning, please contact the local 
educational agency, or the CDE’s Title I Policy and Program Guidance Office at TITLEI@cde.ca.gov. 
 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting federal school improvement planning 
requirements (for CSI, TSI, and ATSI), please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support 
Office at SISO@cde.ca.gov. 
 

Purpose and Description 
Schools identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI), Targeted Support and 
Improvement (TSI), or Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATSI) must respond to the 
following prompts. A school that has not been identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI may delete the Purpose 
and Description prompts. 
 
Purpose 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan by selecting from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive 
Support and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
 
Description 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
 

Educational Partner Involvement 
Meaningful involvement of parents, students, and other stakeholders is critical to the development of 
the SPSA and the budget process. Schools must share the SPSA with school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., English Learner Advisory committee, student advisory groups, tribes and 
tribal organizations present in the community, as appropriate, etc.) and seek input from these 
advisory groups in the development of the SPSA.  
 
The Stakeholder Engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. Describe the process used to 
involve advisory committees, parents, students, school faculty and staff, and the community in the 
development of the SPSA and the annual review and update. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for TSI and ATSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, the LEA shall partner with the school in the development and 
implementation of this plan.] 
 

Resource Inequities 
Schools eligible for CSI or ATSI must identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA-
and school-level budgeting as a part of the required needs assessment. Identified resource inequities 
must be addressed through implementation of the CSI or ATSI plan. Briefly identify and describe any 
resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs assessment and summarize how the 
identified resource inequities are addressed in the SPSA.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI and ATSI. If the school is not identified for CSI or ATSI 
this section is not applicable and may be deleted.] 
 

mailto:TITLEI@cde.ca.gov
mailto:SISO@cde.ca.gov


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review 
In this section a school provides a description of the annual goals to be achieved by the school. This 
section also includes descriptions of the specific planned strategies/activities a school will take to 
meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
strategies and activities. 
 
Goal 
State the goal. A goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all 
strategies/activities are directed. A goal answers the question: What is the school seeking to achieve? 
 
It can be helpful to use a framework for writing goals such the S.M.A.R.T. approach. A S.M.A.R.T. 
goal is one that is Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound. A level of specificity 
is needed in order to measure performance relative to the goal as well as to assess whether it is 
reasonably achievable. Including time constraints, such as milestone dates, ensures a realistic 
approach that supports student success.  
 
A school may number the goals using the “Goal #” for ease of reference.  
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, improvement goals shall align to the goals, 
actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
Identified Need  
Describe the basis for establishing the goal. The goal should be based upon an analysis of verifiable 
state data, including local and state indicator data from the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) 
and data from the School Accountability Report Card, including local data voluntarily collected by 
districts to measure pupil achievement.  
 
[Completing this section fully addresses all relevant federal planning requirements] 
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Identify the metric(s) and/or state indicator(s) that the school will use as a means of evaluating 
progress toward accomplishing the goal. A school may identify metrics for specific student groups. 
Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with the metric or indicator available 
at the time of adoption of the SPSA. The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator 
includes data reported in the annual update of the SPSA. In the subsequent Expected Outcome 
column, identify the progress the school intends to make in the coming year. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI the school must include school-level metrics related to the 
metrics that led to the school’s identification.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI/ATSI the school must include metrics related to the specific 
student group(s) that led to the school’s identification.]  
 
Strategies/Activities 
Describe the strategies and activities being provided to meet the described goal. A school may 
number the strategy/activity using the “Strategy/Activity #” for ease of reference. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Planned strategies/activities address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with state 
priorities and resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of the local 
educational agency’s budgeting, its local control and accountability plan, and school-level budgeting, 
if applicable. 
 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI, this plan shall include evidence-based 
interventions and align to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA LCAP.] 
 
[When completing this section for CSI and ATSI, this plan shall address through implementation, 
identified resource inequities, which may have been identified through a review of LEA- and school-
level budgeting.] 
 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the strategies/activities by indicating “All Students” 
or listing one or more specific student group(s) to be served. 
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI.] 
 
[When completing this section for TSI and ATSI, at a minimum, the student groups to be served shall 
include the student groups that are consistently underperforming, for which the school received the 
TSI or ATSI designation. For TSI, a school may focus on all students or the student group(s) that led 
to identification based on the evidence-based interventions selected.] 
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
For each strategy/activity, list the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures for 
the school year to implement these strategies/activities. Specify the funding source(s) using one or 
more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal, identify the Title and Part, as applicable), Other 
State, and/or Local. 
 
Proposed expenditures that are included more than once in a SPSA should be indicated as a 
duplicated expenditure and include a reference to the goal and strategy/activity where the 
expenditure first appears in the SPSA. Pursuant to Education Code, Section 64001(g)(3)(C), 
proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing board or 
governing body of the LEA, to address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state 
priorities including identifying resource inequities which may include a review of the LEA’s budgeting, 
its LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable.  
 
[This section meets the requirements for CSI, TSI, and ATSI.] 
 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools identified for TSI or ATSI. In addition, 
funds for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 
 

Annual Review  
In the following Analysis prompts, identify any material differences between what was planned and 
what actually occurred as well as significant changes in strategies/activities and/ or expenditures from 
the prior year. This annual review and analysis should be the basis for decision-making and updates 
to the plan. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Analysis 
Using actual outcome data, including state indicator data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the 
planned strategies/activities were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as 
instructed. Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal the Annual Review section is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 

● Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of 
the strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal.  

 
● Briefly describe any major differences between either/or the intended implementation or the 

budgeted expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
 
● Describe any changes that will be made to the goal, expected annual measurable outcomes, 

metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes 
can be found in the SPSA. 

 
[When completing this section for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, any changes made to the goals, annual 
measurable outcomes, metrics/indicators, or strategies/activities, shall meet the CSI, TSI, or ATSI 
planning requirements. CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements are listed under each section of the 
Instructions. For example, as a result of the Annual Review and Update, if changes are made to a 
goal(s), see the Goal section for CSI, TSI, and ATSI planning requirements.]  
 

Budget Summary  
In this section a school provides a brief summary of the funding allocated to the school through the 
ConApp and/or other funding sources as well as the total amount of funds for proposed expenditures 
described in the SPSA. The Budget Summary is required for schools funded through the ConApp and 
that receive federal funds for CSI. If the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this 
section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
From its total allocation for CSI, the LEA may distribute funds across its schools that meet the criteria 
for CSI to support implementation of this plan. In addition, the LEA may retain a portion of its total 
allocation to support LEA-level expenditures that are directly related to serving schools eligible for 
CSI. 
 
Budget Summary 
A school receiving funds allocated through the ConApp should complete the Budget Summary as 
follows: 
 

● Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application: This amount is the 
total amount of funding provided to the school through the ConApp for the school year.  The 
school year means the fiscal year for which a SPSA is adopted or updated.  

 
● Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA: This amount is the total of 

the proposed expenditures from all sources of funds associated with the strategies/activities 
reflected in the SPSA. To the extent strategies/activities and/or proposed expenditures are 
listed in the SPSA under more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 
A school receiving federal funds for CSI should complete the Budget Summary as follows: 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

● Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI: This amount is the total 
amount of funding provided to the school from the LEA.  

 
[NOTE: Federal funds for CSI shall not be used in schools eligible for TSI or ATSI. In addition, funds 
for CSI shall not be used to hire additional permanent staff.] 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Appendix A: Plan Requirements   
 
Schoolwide Program Requirements 
This School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) template meets the requirements of a schoolwide 
program plan. The requirements below are for planning reference.  
 
A school that operates a schoolwide program and receives funds allocated through the ConApp is 
required to develop a SPSA. The SPSA, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the 
school through the ConApp, must be reviewed annually and updated by the SSC. The content of a 
SPSA must be aligned with school goals for improving student achievement.  
 
Requirements for Development of the Plan 

I. The development of the SPSA shall include both of the following actions: 
A. Administration of a comprehensive needs assessment that forms the basis of the school’s 

goals contained in the SPSA. 
1. The comprehensive needs assessment of the entire school shall: 

a. Include an analysis of verifiable state data, consistent with all state priorities as 
noted in Sections 52060 and 52066, and informed by all indicators described in 
Section 1111(c)(4)(B) of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act, including pupil 
performance against state-determined long-term goals. The school may include data 
voluntarily developed by districts to measure pupil outcomes (described in the 
Identified Need); and 

b. Be based on academic achievement information about all students in the school, 
including all groups under §200.13(b)(7) and migratory children as defined in section 
1309(2) of the ESEA, relative to the State's academic standards under §200.1 to— 
i. Help the school understand the subjects and skills for which teaching and 

learning need to be improved; and 
ii. Identify the specific academic needs of students and groups of students who are 

not yet achieving the State's academic standards; and 
iii. Assess the needs of the school relative to each of the components of the 

schoolwide program under §200.28. 
iv. Develop the comprehensive needs assessment with the participation of 

individuals who will carry out the schoolwide program plan. 
v. Document how it conducted the needs assessment, the results it obtained, and 

the conclusions it drew from those results.  
B. Identification of the process for evaluating and monitoring the implementation of the SPSA 

and progress towards accomplishing the goals set forth in the SPSA (described in the 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and Annual Review and Update).  

 
Requirements for the Plan 

II. The SPSA shall include the following:  
A. Goals set to improve pupil outcomes, including addressing the needs of student groups as 

identified through the needs assessment.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

B. Evidence-based strategies, actions, or services (described in Strategies and Activities) 
1. A description of the strategies that the school will be implementing to address school 

needs, including a description of how such strategies will-- 
a. provide opportunities for all children including each of the subgroups of students to 

meet the challenging state academic standards 
b. use methods and instructional strategies that: 

i. strengthen the academic program in the school,  
ii. increase the amount and quality of learning time, and  
iii. provide an enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, 

activities, and courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education. 
c. Address the needs of all children in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting the challenging State academic standards, so that all students 
demonstrate at least proficiency on the State’s academic standards through 
activities which may include: 
i. strategies to improve students’ skills outside the academic subject areas;  
ii. preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education and 

the workforce;  
iii. implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 

behavior;  
iv. professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data; and 
v. strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early childhood 

education programs to local elementary school programs. 
C. Proposed expenditures, based on the projected resource allocation from the governing 

board or body of the local educational agency (may include funds allocated via the 
ConApp, federal funds for CSI, any other state or local funds allocated to the school), to 
address the findings of the needs assessment consistent with the state priorities, including 
identifying resource inequities, which may include a review of the LEAs budgeting, it’s 
LCAP, and school-level budgeting, if applicable (described in Proposed Expenditures and 
Budget Summary). Employees of the schoolwide program may be deemed funded by a 
single cost objective.  

D. A description of how the school will determine if school needs have been met (described in 
the Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes and the Annual Review and Update). 
1. Annually evaluate the implementation of, and results achieved by, the schoolwide 

program, using data from the State's annual assessments and other indicators of 
academic achievement; 

2. Determine whether the schoolwide program has been effective in increasing the 
achievement of students in meeting the State's academic standards, particularly for 
those students who had been furthest from achieving the standards; and 

3. Revise the plan, as necessary, based on the results of the evaluation, to ensure 
continuous improvement of students in the schoolwide program. 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

E. A description of how the school will ensure parental involvement in the planning, review, 
and improvement of the schoolwide program plan (described in Educational Partner 
Involvement and/or Strategies/Activities). 

F. A description of the activities the school will include to ensure that students who experience 
difficulty attaining proficient or advanced levels of academic achievement standards will be 
provided with effective, timely additional support, including measures to 
1. Ensure that those students' difficulties are identified on a timely basis; and 
2. Provide sufficient information on which to base effective assistance to those students. 

G. For an elementary school, a description of how the school will assist preschool students in 
the successful transition from early childhood programs to the school. 

H. A description of how the school will use resources to carry out these components 
(described in the Proposed Expenditures for Strategies/Activities). 

I. A description of any other activities and objectives as established by the SSC (described in 
the Strategies/Activities). 

Authority Cited: S Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations (34 CFR), sections 200.25-26, and 
200.29, and sections-1114(b)(7)(A)(i)-(iii) and 1118(b) of the ESEA. EC sections 6400 et. seq.  



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Appendix B:  
 
Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements 
For questions or technical assistance related to meeting Federal School Improvement Planning 
Requirements, please contact the CDE’s School Improvement and Support Office at 
SISO@cde.ca.gov. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
The LEA shall partner with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and 
parents) to locally develop and implement the CSI plan for the school to improve student outcomes, 
and specifically address the metrics that led to eligibility for CSI (Educational Partner Involvement). 
The CSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable) (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. Department 
of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” at 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf); 

3. Be based on a school-level needs assessment (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Annual Review and Update, as applicable); and  

4. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, to 
be addressed through implementation of the CSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual 
Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities; and Annual Review and Update, as 
applicable). 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(A), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(1) of the ESSA. 

Targeted Support and Improvement 
In partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders, teachers, and parents) 
the school shall develop and implement a school-level TSI plan to improve student outcomes for each 
subgroup of students that was the subject of identification (Educational Partner Involvement).  
The TSI plan shall: 

1. Be informed by all state indicators, including student performance against state-determined 
long-term goals (Goal, Identified Need, Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Annual 
Review and Update, as applicable); and 

2. Include evidence-based interventions (Planned Strategies/Activities, Annual Review and 
Update, as applicable). (For resources related to evidence-based interventions, see the U.S. 
Department of Education’s “Using Evidence to Strengthen Education Investments” 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf.) 

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B) and 1111(d)(2) of the ESSA. 

  

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/guidanceuseseinvestment.pdf


School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement 
A school identified for ATSI shall:  

1. Identify resource inequities, which may include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting, 
which will be addressed through implementation of its TSI plan (Goal, Identified Need, 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes, Planned Strategies/Activities, and Annual Review 
and Update, as applicable).  

Authority Cited: Sections 1003(e)(1)(B), 1003(i), 1111(c)(4)(B), and 1111(d)(2)(c) of the ESSA. 

Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement 
Single school districts (SSDs) or charter schools that are identified for CSI, TSI, or ATSI, shall 
develop a SPSA that addresses the applicable requirements above as a condition of receiving funds 
(EC Section 64001[a] as amended by Assembly Bill [AB] 716, effective January 1, 2019).  
 
However, a SSD or a charter school may streamline the process by combining state and federal 
requirements into one document which may include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
and all federal planning requirements, provided that the combined plan is able to demonstrate that the 
legal requirements for each of the plans is met (EC Section 52062[a] as amended by AB 716, 
effective January 1, 2019). 
 
Planning requirements for single school districts and charter schools choosing to exercise this option 
are available in the LCAP Instructions.  
 
Authority Cited: EC sections 52062(a) and 64001(a), both as amended by AB 716, effective January 
1, 2019. 
 



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 55 Pioneer High (Continuation) 
 
 

Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs 
 
For a list of active programs, please see the following links:  
Programs included on the Consolidated Application: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ 
ESSA Title I, Part A: School Improvement: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp 
Available Funding: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/ 
 
Developed by the California Department of Education, January 2019 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/schoolsupport.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/af/









































































































	2023 RES SPSA Eng.pdf
	SPSA Title Page
	Purpose and Description
	Table of Contents
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	Data Analysis
	Surveys
	Classroom Observations
	Analysis of Current Instructional Program
	Standards, Assessment, and Accountability
	Staffing and Professional Development
	Teaching and Learning
	Opportunity and Equal Educational Access
	Parental Engagement


	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate


	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal
	Goal 1
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 2
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 3
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes


	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan


	Appendix B:
	Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Targeted Support and Improvement
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement



	2023 GES SPSA Eng.pdf
	SPSA Title Page
	Purpose and Description
	Table of Contents
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	Data Analysis
	Surveys
	Classroom Observations
	Analysis of Current Instructional Program
	Standards, Assessment, and Accountability
	Staffing and Professional Development
	Teaching and Learning
	Opportunity and Equal Educational Access
	Parental Engagement


	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate


	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal
	Goal 1
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 2
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 3
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 4
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 5
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes


	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Purpose and Description
	Purpose
	Description

	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities

	Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
	Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
	Annual Review
	Analysis

	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan


	Appendix B:
	Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Targeted Support and Improvement
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs
	For a list of active programs, please see the following links:



	2023 GMS SPSA.pdf
	SPSA Title Page
	Purpose and Description
	Table of Contents
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	Data Analysis
	Surveys
	Classroom Observations
	Analysis of Current Instructional Program
	Standards, Assessment, and Accountability
	Staffing and Professional Development
	Teaching and Learning
	Opportunity and Equal Educational Access
	Parental Engagement


	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate


	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal
	Goal 1
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 2
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 3
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes


	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Purpose and Description
	Purpose
	Description

	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities

	Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
	Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
	Annual Review
	Analysis

	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan


	Appendix B:
	Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Targeted Support and Improvement
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs
	For a list of active programs, please see the following links:



	2023_2024 GHS SPSA Eng.pdf
	SPSA Title Page
	Purpose and Description
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	Data Analysis
	Surveys
	Classroom Observations
	Analysis of Current Instructional Program
	Standards, Assessment, and Accountability
	Staffing and Professional Development
	Teaching and Learning
	Opportunity and Equal Educational Access
	Parental Engagement


	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate


	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal
	Goal 1
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 2
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 3
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes


	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Purpose and Description
	Purpose
	Description

	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities

	Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
	Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
	Annual Review
	Analysis

	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan


	Appendix B:
	Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Targeted Support and Improvement
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs
	For a list of active programs, please see the following links:



	2023 PHS SPSA Eng.pdf
	SPSA Title Page
	Purpose and Description
	Table of Contents
	Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components
	Data Analysis
	Surveys
	Classroom Observations
	Analysis of Current Instructional Program
	Standards, Assessment, and Accountability
	Staffing and Professional Development
	Teaching and Learning
	Opportunity and Equal Educational Access
	Parental Engagement


	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities
	School and Student Performance Data
	Student Enrollment
	Enrollment By Student Group
	Enrollment By Grade Level
	English Learner (EL) Enrollment

	CAASPP Results
	English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students)
	Mathematics (All Students)

	ELPAC Results
	Student Population
	Overall Performance
	Academic Performance
	English Language Arts
	Mathematics
	English Learner Progress
	College/Career Report

	Academic Engagement
	Chronic Absenteeism
	Graduation Rate

	Conditions & Climate
	Suspension Rate


	Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal
	Goal 1
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 2
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 3
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 4
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Goal Subject
	LEA/LCAP Goal

	Goal 5
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes


	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary
	Other Federal, State, and Local Funds

	Budgeted Funds and Expenditures in this Plan
	Funds Budgeted to the School by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Funding Source
	Expenditures by Budget Reference
	Expenditures by Budget Reference and Funding Source
	Expenditures by Goal

	School Site Council Membership
	Recommendations and Assurances
	Instructions
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Purpose and Description
	Purpose
	Description

	Educational Partner Involvement
	Resource Inequities

	Goals, Strategies, Expenditures, & Annual Review
	Goal
	Identified Need
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Strategies/Activities
	Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity
	Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity
	Annual Review
	Analysis

	Budget Summary
	Budget Summary

	Appendix A: Plan Requirements
	Schoolwide Program Requirements
	Requirements for Development of the Plan
	Requirements for the Plan


	Appendix B:
	Plan Requirements for School to Meet Federal School Improvement Planning Requirements
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Targeted Support and Improvement
	Additional Targeted Support and Improvement
	Single School Districts and Charter Schools Identified for School Improvement

	Appendix C: Select State and Federal Programs
	For a list of active programs, please see the following links:






